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Dperating Revenues
fercome from Continuing Qperations

et {Loss)

Basic fLoss) Per Share

Drituted Barnings Per Share from Continuing Operations
Dilubid (Loss) Per Share

Dividernds Per Common Share

Returmon Average Cofnmon Equity

Book value Per Common Share

Cash Flow frovs Continuing Operations
Nurnber of Common Shares Outstanding

Number of Common Shareholders

Closing Stode Price

Betyrn (share prite appreciation plus dividends)
WMarket Value of Common Stock

1 i A

15,273)

{017}
1.0

{07
1.1

W

Operating Revenues;
Retall
Whatesale-Net of Purchased Power Costs
Other

Total Electric Operating Revenues )

308,530
14,377
29,778

350,679

&, 240,789

Total Retall Flectric Sales {mwh)
Operating hcome

Lustomers

sross Plant investiment

Total Assets

apital BExpenditures

Fullairne bmployess
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stiting Revenues 5
efating ncome 3 $
aricitures 5 13,706 $

1,568

vyees

N

~ Percent

Change
840,169 23
34,910 11.6
(13,243) 60.0
(0.40) 57.5
0.95 10.5
(0.40) 57.5
1.19 o
(2.3)% 52.2
15.83 (8.8)
93,678 804
36,101,695 0.2
14,687 (0.7)
2202 135
3.0% 5300
754,959 137
2,556 (10.6)

T EEEFEEEENEEEEEEE R R N E

304,181
16,837
21,615

342,633

4,291,637
63,453
129,259
1,421,657
1,170,449
49,707
8661

EE N SRR ER R

497,536
23,891
266,525
15,606
1,841

1.4
(14.6)
28.5

2.3
(1.2)
(3.8)

0.4

5.4

48

1050
0.3
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2.2
455
(8.3)
(12.2)
(14.8)




Ging witil late bn 2013, and
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nued cur investment strategy, with
iffion in capital experatitures
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our busl gite and able, with operation

cannot be achieved unless the snce at the cove of all we do. After
raatter experts, 1o marns corporation attracts, develops, and several challenging years, we believe wi )
entrance profitability fﬁ*mgsq;?n:;m our retaing exceptional talent, are on course and on strategy to reward -

the patience you bave shown us by your

ertive organi

cpsokly and prod

iny

Much work is lef

estraent in Otter Tall Corporation,

§

1 be done, and we

have the team in place to do it Or

behalt of our board of divectors, the

7

pxecutive team and our es‘ﬁp‘%m

thank vou for your continued support.

Sincerely,

ele have positioned us for success in the

Coming years in fmany ways, A5 we Echward . {Jm) Me

and empower the st

ded to drive v move into 2003, we remaln determined

iy everything we tlo,
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Market Price:
High
Low
Common Price/Earnings Ratio:
High
Low
Book Value Per Common Share

Interest Coverage Before Taxes
Effective Income Tax Rate (2}

Return on Capitalization Including Short-Term Debt

Return on Average Common Equity

Dividend Payout Ratio

Capital Ratio (percents):
Short-Term and Long-Term Debt
Preferred Stock and Other Equity
Common Equity

Notes: (1) Continuing Operations.

5 25.25
& 2090
§ 14.43

5 23.48
$ 17.53
LS 15.83

2011

w &

440
1.6
54.4
100.0

EIE I I

2011

2.1%
1%
6.7%
(2.3)%

44.6
1.4
54.0

100.0

W

2010 2009 2008
$ 2539 $ 25.40 5 46.15 $ 39.39
$ 18.24 $ 15.47 s 14.99 5 28.96
----- 35.8 42.3 22,
— 218 13.8 16.3
$ 17.55 5 18.75 $ 19.10 $ 17.51
PN EEEEEEEEEEEEEE E X 25 I I I 30 2T T N A 2 A B B AR
2010 2009 2008 2007
1.8% 1.5x 2.4x% 2.9x
11% (45)% 29% 33%
5.5% 4.3% 5.0% 5.3%
(0.3)% 3.8% 6.0% 10.5%
168% 109% 656%
44,1 419 40.5 445
14 1.4 14 1.7
545 56.7 58,1 53.7
100.0 100.0

100.0

100.0

E

EE R R R R R BN R

(2) Continuing Operations, see note 15 to consofidated financial statements in 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(3) 2011 and prior years restated to exclude discontinued operations.

Revenues (thousands)
Residential

Commercial and Farms
industrial

Sales for Resale

Other Electric

Total Electric
Kilowatt-Hours Sold (thousands)
Residential
Commercial and Farms
Industrial
Other

Total Retail
Sales for Resale

Total
Annual Retail Kilowatt-Hour Sales Growth
Heating Degree Days
Cooling Degree Days
Average Revenue Per Kilowatt-Hour
Residential
Commercial and Farms
Industrial
All Retail
Customers
Residential
Commercial and Farms
Industrial
Other

Total Electric Customers
Residential Sales
Average Kilowatt-Hours Per Customer (4)
Average Revenue Per Residential Customer
Depreciation Reserve (thousands)
Electric Plant in Service
Depreciation Reserve
Reserve to Electric Plant (percent)
Composite Depreciation Rate (percent)

Peak Demand and Net Generating Capability

Peak Demand (kw)
Net Generating Capability (kw): (5)
Steam
Wind
Combustion Turbines
Hydro
Total Owned Generating Capability

$ 104,145
115,299
79,969
14,377
36,975

5 350,785

64,595
4,330,789
568,274

4,800,063
{1.2)%

7,882

654

8,314
7.36¢
5.90¢
7,200

102,404
26,

S 1,423,303
s BA6.457
37.0
298

823,591

547,300
138,000
108,000

2,800

TO6,100

Notes:  (4) Based on average number of customers during the year.
(5) Measurement of summer net dependable capacity under MISO beginning in 2009.
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2011

LS 105,997
: 116,491
76,690
16,837
26,712

s 342,727

1,315,798
1,592,432
1,315,051
68,356
4,291,637
633,408
4,925,045
0.7%
8,861
547

8.06¢
7.32¢
5.83¢
7.02¢

101,789
26,427
43
1,000

129,259

13,191
S 1,070.65

$ 1,372,534
$ 499,327
364
2.94

810,984

545,100
138,000
108,000

2,700

793,800

2010

5 101,588
118,178
75,628
23,197
25,788

$ 344,379

1,273,122
1,570,611
1,350,065
68,950
4,262,748
961,028
5,223,776

0.4%
8,631
484

7.98¢
7.52¢
5.60¢
7.06¢

101,797
26,406
43
1,010

129,256

12,693
$  1,00350

$ 1,332,974
5 476,188
357
3.01

817,130

551,600
138,000
112,400

3,700

805,700

2009

S 98,164
109,914
69,790
15,762
21,036

S 314,666

1,296,779
1,592,870
1,286,092
68,636
4,244,377
1,407,414
5,651,791
0.1%
9,516
256

7.57¢
6.90¢
5.43¢
6.65¢

101,804
26,435
40
1,028

129,307

12,947
S 99416

$ 1,313,015
$ 446,008
34,0
2.90

800,488

539,466
138,500
116,550

3,765
798,281

$

5

$

$
$

2008

97,567
113,307
74,879
27,236
27,086

340,075

1,257,641
1,576,230
1,339,726

68,310
4,241,907
2,682,629
6,924,536

2.9%

9,752
330

7.76¢
7.19¢
5.59¢
6.78¢

101,600
26,557
42
1,069

129,268

12,449
976.37

1,205,647
421,177
34.9

2.81

786,560

549,925
41,383
131,045
3,742

726,095

S

5

$

$
$

2007

92,254
111,960
68,648
25,640
25,089
323,591

1,218,026

1,515,635

1,321,249

68,921

4,123,831

1,648,841

5,772,672
3.3%

9,050

482

7.57¢
7.39¢
5.20¢
671¢

101,750
26,500
42
1,050

129,342

12,100
893.01

1,028,917
401,006
39.0

278

704,940

549,800

132,744
4,338

686,882

2007



Otter Tail Power Company
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W CORPORATIO

MARNUFACTURING

BTD

BYD Manufacturing, Ine

Metal fabricator
Detroif Lakes, MN/1995
Paul Gintner
829 employees
www.btdmifg.com

TO. @U&‘%T C5

T.0. Plastics, Inc.
Custor plastic
parts manufacturer
Clearwater, MN/2001
Mike Vallafskey
151 einployess
www-toplastics.com

CONSTRUCTION

EVENIA

Aevenia, Inc.

Energy and electrical construction

Moorhead, MN/1992
Mike Hanson
193 employees
Www.aevenia.com

'@\ ”L% » }W

Foley Company
Water, wastewater, power
and industrid! construction

Kansas City, MO/2003
Chris Callegari
253 employees
wivw foleycompany.com

PLASTICS

Horthern Pipe Products, Inc.
PYC pipe mamifacturer
Fargo, ND/1995
Steve Laskey
91 employees
www.northerapipe.com

Vinyitech Corporation
PYC pipe manufacturer
Phoenix, AZ/2000
Steve Laskey
5T employees
Www.vipipe.com
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The following abbreviations or acronyms are used in the text.

References in this report to “we”, “us” and “our” are to Otter Tail Corporation;, collectively.

o
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= ADP

+ Aevenia
« AFUDC
+ AQUS

= ARQ

@ ASC

w ASM

b Aviva

o BACT

@ BART

@ BTD

o CAA

« CAIR
& CapX2020
@ Cascade
2 CCMC
= CCRA
+ L0,

« CSAPR
« CWIP
+ DENR
« DMI

@ DMS
o ECRR
o BEL

w EPA

# ERCOT
« ESSRP
# Fargo Project
« FASE

« FERC
+ Foley
= GAAP
= 1PH

v IRP

# JPMS
w kY

@ W

@ kwh

@ LSA

» MAPP
i« MATS
« MDU
# MEI

Advance Determination of Prudence

Aevenia, Inc.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
Air Quality Control System

Accumnulated Asset Retirement Obligation
Accounting Standards Codification

Ancillary Services Market

Aviva Sports, Inc.

Best-Available Control Technology
Best-Available Retrofit Technology

- Bemidji Project Bemidiji-Grand Rapids 230 kV Project
# Brookings Project Brookings-Southeast Twin Cities 345 kV Project

BTD Manufacturing, Inc.

Clean Air Act

Clean Air Interstate Rule

Capacity Expansion 2020

Cascade Investment LLC

Coyote Creek Mining Company, L.L.C.
Conservation Cost Recovéry Adjustment
Carbon Dioxide

Certificate of Need

Cross-State Alr Pollution Rule
Construction Work in Progress
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
DMI Industries, Inc.

DMS Health Technologies, Inc.
Environmental Cost Recovery Rider
Edison Electric Institute Index
Environmental Protection Agency
Electric Reliability Council of Texas
Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement Plan
Fargo-Monticello 345 kV Project
Financial Accounting Standards Board
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Foley Company

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Greenhouse Gas

Idaho Pacific Holdings, Inc.

Integrated Resource Plan

J.P. Morgan Securities

kiloVolt

kiloWatt

kilowatt-hour

Lignite Sales Agreement

Mid-Continent Area Power Pool
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards

MDU Resources Group, Inc.

Moorhead Electric, Inc,

» MISO

= MNCIP
# MNDOC
= MNODAG
= MNRRA
» MPCA
# MPUC

@ MRO

o MVP

& MW

o NAEMA
NDDOH
o NDPSC
# NDRRA

@ NICF

# NPCA

« Northern Pipe
# NOy

« NSPS

@« OTESCO
w OTP

# PACE

= PCOR

& PEM

© PM2.5
PS

PSD

@ PTC

s« PVC

“ RCRA

# SCR

= SDPUC

= SEC

# S§F6

# ShoreMaster
» 5P

# 50,

& T.O0 Plastics
o Tariff

w TCR

& Trinity

@ VaR

# Varistar
o VIE

# Vinyhtech
o Whylie

F

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator
Minnesota Conservation Improvement Program
Minnesota Départment of Commerce
Minnesota Office of Attorney General
Minhesota Renewable Resource Adjustment
Mirinesota Pollution Control Agency
Minnesota Public Utilities Cormmission
Midwaest Reliability Organization

Multi-Value Project

Megawatt

North American Energy Marketers Association
North Dakota Department of Health

North Dakota Public Service Cornmission
North Dakota Renewable Resource Cost Recovery
Rider Adjustment

Notice of Interest to Construct Facilities
National Parks Conservation Association
Northern Pipe Products, Inc.

Nitrogen Oxide

New Saurce Performance Standards

Otter Tail Energy Services Company

Otter Tail Power Company

Partnership in Assisting Community Expansion
Plains CO, Reduction Partnership

Power and Energy Market

Particulate Matter Less Than 2.5 Microns
Polystyrene

Pravention of Significant Deterioration
Production Tax Credit

Polyvinyl Chloride

Recource Conservation and Recovery Act
Selective Catalytic Reduction

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
Securities and Exchange Commission

Sulfur Hexaflouride

ShoreMaster, Inc.

State Implementation Plan

Sulfur Dioxide

T.O. Plastics, nc.

Eriergy and Operating Reserve Markets Tariff
Transmission Cost Recovery

Trinity Industries, Inc:

Value at-Risk

Varistar Corporation

Variable Interest Entity

Vinyltech Corporation

EW. Wylie Corporation

QETER TAIL COR
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(o) General Development-of Business

Oter Tait Power Company was incorporated in 1907 under the laws of
the Statwol Minresota: I 2007, the narse was changed to “Otber Tall
{ vinore accurstely represent the broader stope gl slentric
ic operationsand the name Otter Tail Power Company
fordise by the electric wility, On July T 2009 Otter
poration complated a "}Q@éxﬂg company reorganization whereby
i ;}mxf;c)w;i&; bean operated as a division of Otter Tail

e a whoily owned subsidiary of the new parent holding
FOter Tail Gorporation (thé Cormpany). Thenew parént
2 »y Wag ma{;{p’{sra‘ieé indune ?{}Qf} under the laws i)i‘ fh@

TP was vetainedd

Fargo, ‘ém th Dakota
's te!ﬁphem: number is (866) 410-8780,
ipany makes available free of charge at its internet website
(wwivotterdtailcom) its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
FormA0-0), currént reports on Form 8-K Farms 3, 4 and 5 filed.on behalt
of directors:and executive officers and any amendments to these reports
filedt or furnished purstiant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
GEACTOMI93, Be suon a8 reasanably practicable aftér sich
is-electranically Bled with of furnished to the Securities and
Comraission (3EC )y Information on'the Company's v % siteis
erned to bedncorporated by reference into this Annual Beport on

The Cor 1y

orationand its subsidiaries condutt business primarily
States The Company had approxima ately 2,2 %ﬁs fuli-time
vits comtining operations at Decermber 3 ;, 2012
2, the Lompany sold several businesses in sxecution
ratepy of realizning its business portfolio to reduceits
T@ & greater portion of its resources toward glectric
5 & Company sold ldaho Pacific Heldings, Inc
P, ~is Food Ingredient Processing business, and EW. Wylie Corporation
(Wlie), its tricking comipany, which was included in'its former Wind
Ertergy segrment. o January 2012, the Company sold the assets of Aviva
Sports, e, (Aviva); a tecieational equipment manufacturer and a whiolly
ownad subsidiary of ShoreMaster, Int. (ShoreMaster), the Companiy's
W)!{»xf‘h'wm e"»(;sz?ggmmt' 21l am.zfaﬁtumn ireFebruary 2012, the npany

Eon Sl s

'mw i}
acturing busi
%he u}mp%fsy sr}tﬁfed ifto ﬁegm fions tos
and f(«m,f;% tedthe :ala on February 8, 2013
fructurs iow consiats B the olowling
cturing, Construction and Plastics,

OWErs
ness. In

el the agsets
Th

£

of Shorel

Ot Foley Noftherd Plpe
& mspam Company Procyets; e,
Citer Talt Enavgy Kevernia; e, Vinyiech
Services Company Gorporation

§EGTRFANNUEAL G

Al iriformation.in this repdrt; including comparative financiz
information, has been revised to reflect the continuing operations of the
Company’s business segments.

& Electric includes the production, transeission, distribution and sale of
electric energy In Minnesota, North Dakota and South Dakota by OTP,

In addition, OTP is an active wholesale participant in the Midwest

Independent Transmission System Operatar (MISO) markets OTPS

oparations have been the Company's prirmary business since 1907,

Additiohally, Eléctric alsoincludes Otter Tail Energy Servicas

Corpany (QTESCOY, which provides technical and engineering seivices:
& Manufacturing cansists of businesses in the following manufseturing

activities: contract machining, metalparts stamping and fabrication,

and production of material and handling trays and horticultural
containers. These businesses have rranﬁfécta%‘ng facilities in Hinais
and Minnssota, and s&l] p*’OéB{:”S priman!y m tbe United States
& Construction consists of businesses involved in commercial and
industrial electric contracting and construction of fiber optic and
electric distribution systeims, water, wastewater and HVAC systems
peimarily ir i e central United States.
# Plastics consists of businesses producing polyvinylchieride (PVE ) pipe
in the uppe !’\Jiid\»vest and Southwest regions of the United States

The Company’s corporate operating costs include iterms such as
corporate staff and overhead costs, the results of the Company’s captive
insurance campany and other items excluded from the measurement of
operating segment perfarmance. € cnpumi@ assets consist pwmmy of

cash, prepaid expenses, investments and fixed assors, Corporate is not
aroperating segment. Rather, it is added to operating segment tolals 1o
reconcile to mta s on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

OTP and OTESCO are wholly ownied Subsidiaries of the Company.

All of the m;mpmy’g other businesses are owned by its wholly bwned
subsidiary, Varistar Corporation {Varistar).

The Company's corrent strategy 15 to continue toreview its bus
portiolio to see where additional opportunities exist o improve 7t
profile, improve credit metrics and generate additionaf sourc Feash
to support the growth 1 opportunities in its electric utility. The Campany
has lowered ts overall tsk by investing In rate base growth opportinities
in its Electric segment and divesting certain non-electric opera ing
companies that rolonger fit the Company’s portiolio criteria. This steategy
{8 intended to craate a more predictable earnings stream, improve the
Company's credit quality and preserve/its ability to fund the dividend:
The Company's goal is to deliver annual growth in earnings per share
between four to seven percentover the next several vears. The growth is
expected to come fromithe substantial increasein the Company's
regulated utility rate base and from planned increased earnings frofm
existing capacity already in place at the Company's manufacturibi and
infrastructure businesses. The Company will also evaluate opportunities
ital to potential acquisitions in its Mamfacturing segmient.
the Company expects the electric utility business will provide
¥ /5% to 85% of its overall earnings. The Comparny éxpects

uring m(j Infrastructure businesses will provide 15% ta 25%
¢ will continue to be'a fundamental part of it gy,

approxim

its Manufac

of its sarmings, an
tnevaluating its portfalio of vperating companies, the Com panytooks

for the following characteristics:

& a threshold level of net earnings and a réturi o invested capital in

excess of the Company's weighted average cost of capital,

@ g strategic diffe ation frorm competitors and & sustainable cogt
advantage,

@ 3 stable or growing industey,

& an ability to quickly adapt to changing economic cycles, and

# @ strong management team committed to aperational excellence,

For a discussion of the Cornpany's results of operations, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ard



Results of Operations,” on pages 30 through 44 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments

The Company is engaged in businesses classified into-four segrnents:
Electric, Manufacturing, Construction and Plastics, Financial information
about the Company's segments and geographic areas is included in note
2 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 58 through
60 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(c) Narrative Description of Business

GEMNERAL
Electric consists of two businesses; OTP and OTESCO. OTP, headguartered
in Fergus Falls, Minnesota, provides electricity to more than 129,000
customers ina service area with outer boundaries that encompass a
total expanse:of 70,000 square miles of western Minnesota, eastern
Notth Dakota, and northeastern South Dakota, QTESCO, headqguartered
in Fergus Falls, Minnesota, provides technical and engineering services
primarily in North Dakota and Minnesota, The Company derived 41%,
1% and 48% of its consolidated operating revenues from-the Electric
segment for each of the three years ended December 31,2012, 201 and
2010, respectively.

The breakdown of retail electric revenues by state is as follows:

a0

Minnesota 48:9% 48.8%

North Dakota 42.0 422

South Dakota 9.1 9.0
Total 100.0% 100.0%

The territory served by OTP is predominantly agricultural. The aggregate
population of OTP's retail electric service area is approximately 230,000
In this service area of 422 communities and adjacent rural areas and farms,
approximately 125,646 people live in communities having-a population
of more than1,000, according to the 2010 census. The only communities
served-which have a population in-excess of 10,000 are Jamestown,
North Dakota (15,427); Bemidji, Minnesota (13,431); and Fergus Falls,
Minnesota (13,138). As of December 31, 2012, OTP served 129,786
customers, Although there are relatively few large customers, sales to
commercial and industrial customers are significant.

The following table provides a breakdown of electric revenues by
customer category. All other sources include gross wholesale sales from
utility generation, net revenue from energy trading activity and sales to
municipalities.

Commercial 36.0% 36 2%
Residential 32:6 32.9
Industrial 250 238
Al Other Sources 6.4 7.1
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Wholesale electric energy kilowatt-hour (kwh) sales were 11.8% of total
kwh sales for 2012 and 12.9% for 2011 Wholesale electric energy kwh
sales decreased by 10.8% between the years while revenue:per-kwh sold
decreased by 14.5%. Activity in‘the short-term energy market is subject
to change based on a number of factors and it is difficult to predict the
quantity of wholesale power sales or prices for wholesale power in the
future.

CAPACITY AND DEMAND
As of December 31, 2012 OTP's owned net-plant dependable kilowatt
(kW) capacity was:

Baseload Plants
Big Stone Plant 256,600 kW
Coyote Station 149,100
Hoot Lake Plant 1 141,600
Total Baseload Net Plant 547,390 k\'\{
Combustion Turbing and Small Diesel Units 3 “}aa{ag@“&;\g
HMydroelectric Facilities ‘ ;ama_g%yy
Owned Wird Facilities (rated at nameplate)
Luverne Wind Faym (33 turbines) 49,500 kW
Ashtabula Wind Cénter (32 turbines) 48,000
Langdon Wind Center (27 turbines) 405007
Total Owned Wind Facilities 138,000 kW

The baseload net plant capacity for Big Stone Plantand Coyote Station
constitutes OTP's ownership percentages of 53.9% and 35%, respectively.
OTP.owns 100% of the Hoot Lake Plant, During 2012, OTP generated
about 68.3% of its retail kwh sales and purchased the balance.

I addition to the owned facilities described above OTP had the
following purchased power agreements in place on December 31, 2012:

ak PR RSB ANy

(rated at nameplate and gréaterthan 2,000 kW)
Edgeley
Langdon

Total-Purchased Wind

21,000 kW
AR08,

. ‘4{),500 kV\a

50,000 kW
50,000
100,000 kW

Wisconsin Electric Power Company (D
Great River Energy (2D

Total Purchased Power

res May 2013

(2) Incrénses 1010 O kW framn June 2013 through May 2017,

OTP has a direct control load management system which provides
sorne flexibility to OTP to effect reductions of peak load: QTP also offers
rates to-customers which encourage off-peak usage.

OTP's capacity requiremnentis based on MISO Module E requirements.
OTP s required tohave sufficient Planning Resource Credits to meet its
morithly wéather normalized forecast demand; plus a reserve obligation.
OTP metits MISO obligation forall months in-2012: The MISO Resource
Adequacy Construct is significantly changed for the 2013/2014 MISO

lanning Year, These changes will be'effective beginning June, 2013,
OTP generating capacity combined with additional capacity under
putchased power agreements (as described above) and load management
contrel capabilities is expectedto meet 2013 systerm demand and MISO
reserve requirements, g

FUEL SUPPLY

Coabisthe principal fuel burned at the Big Stone, Coyote-and Hoot Lake
genérating plarits: Coyote Station, a mine-mouth facility, burns North
Dakota lignite coal. Hoot Lake and Big Stone plants burnwestern
subbiturminous coal.
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Ket Kilowatt

SonEees (Phousands)  Generated | (Thousands).....Gefierated
Subbituriingg 2:094,293 BL2% 2,128,170 56.7%
{ ol 782,358 229 28.3
490,587 143 14,1
55637 16 0.8
422,675 100.0% - 3748603 100:9%
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Acbreakdown of electric rate regulation by each urisdictionis as follaws:
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201
Y%of - Yhof Yol Yol
Electric Joarhy Electic  kivh
Rates Regulation Revenues - Sales - Revenues: - Sales
IMIN Retail Salies” MN Public Utilities 45.2% A3 AYT B 19 42 %
Commission i
NB Rétail Sales 388 364 391 36.5
5D Retail Sales 5D Public Uitilities 8.4 85 8.3 #.4
Commission
Transimissic sral Energy
& Wholes Regulatory Commission 7.6 117 75
Total 100.0% 100.0% T00:0%::100

OTP operates under approved retail electric tarifis in all three statesd
serves. OTP has an obligation to seérve any customer reques
withirvits assigned service territory. The patters.ol electric usag
vary um’matsa,a yiduringa 24=-hour period and froni season to ge
OTP's taritfs are designed to.cover the costs of providing electric service;
To the-extent that peslk usage can be reduced or shifted to perivds of
lower usage; the Cost to serveall customers s reduced dnorderto shitt
usage from peaktimes, OTP has-approved taritfs i all three stites for
residential demarid control; general service time of tse and time oF day,
real-time pricing and controlled and interruptible service; Each of these
speciallzed rates s designedfoimprove efficient use ot OTP rasourdes:
while giving customers maore cantrol over their electric bill, OTP alse bas
approvedtariffs in jts three service territories which allow guslifying
customers to release and sell energy back to OTP when wholesale
energy prices make such transactions desirable.

With a few minor exceptions, OTP's electric retail rate schedules
provide for adjustments in rates based on the cost of fuel deliversd to
OTP's generating plants, as well as for adjustments based onthe costof
electric energy purchased by QTR ot alsu credits certain margin
wholésale sales to the fuel and pus rchased power adiustiment. The
adustmentsfor fual and purchased power costs are presently based on
atwo montremoving average in Minnesota and bythe Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC), a three month moving average in South
Dakotaand a four month moving average in North Dakets. These
adjustments are applied to the next billing period after becoming
applicable: These adjustiments alsoinclude anovir orunder recaving
mechanism, whichis calculated on an annual basis in Minnesota and
ona monthlybasis in Morth Dakota and South Dakets:

The following summarizes the material regulations of each jurisdiction
applicable to OTP's electric operations; as well as any specific slectric
rate proceedings during the last three years with the Minnesota Public
Utilities Commission- (MPUC), the North Daketa Public Service
Cormmission {NDPSCY, the South Dakota Public Uit i
(5DPUC) and the FERC. The Company’s manufaciuring and infrast
businesses are not subject to direct regulation by any of these agei

yifrom

MINNESOTA

Under the Minhesota Public Utilities Act, OTP is subject to the jurisdiction
afthe MPUC with respect to rates,-issuance of securities, depreciation
rates, put le utility amv( a5, construction of majorutility faellities,
establishment of ekclusive assigned service arsas, contracts and
arrangements with's b< liaries and other affiliated interests, and other
matters. The MPUC has the authority to assess the nesd for large ensry
facilities andiodssug or deny certificates of need; after public hedrings,
withinroneyearof an application to construct such a facility:

Pursuant tothe Minnesota Power Plant Siting Act, the WBUC has
authority to'selector dmignat@ sites in-Minnesotafor new electiic
powergenarating plants (50:000 kW or more) and rottes Tor trangri
lines (100 kilovolt (kV) or merg) in an orderly manner compatiblewith
environmental preservation and the efficient use of resburces, and 1o

carti W such sites and routes-as to environmental compatibility after an




environmental impact study has been conducted by the Minnesota
Department of Commeice (MNDOC) and the Office of Administrative
Hearings has conducted contested case hearings.

The Minnesota Division of Energy Resources, part of the MNDOC; is
responsible for investigating all matters subject to the jurisdiction of the
MNDOC orthe MPUC, and for the enforcement of MPUC orders: Among
other things, the MNDOC is authorized to collect and analyze data-on
energy including the consumption of energy, develop recommendations
as to energy policies for the governor and the legislature of Minnesota
and evaluate policies governing the establishment of rates and prices for
energy as related to energy conservation. The MNDOC also-has the
power, in the évent of energy shortage or for a long-term basis, to
prepare and adopt regulations to conserve and allocate energy.

2010 General Rate Case Filing—0TP filed a general rate case on April 2,
2010 requesting an 8.01% base rate increase as well asa 3.8% interim
rateincrease. On May 27, 2010, the MPUC issued an order accepting
the filing, suspending rates, and approving the interimrate increase, as
requested; to be effective with customer usage on'and after June 1, 2010,
The MPUC held a hearing to decide o the issues in the rate case on
March 25, 201 and issued a written order on April:25, 2011 The MPUC
authorized a revenue increase of approximately $5.0 million, or 3.76% in
haserate revenues, excluding the effect of moving recovery of wind
investments to base rates. The MPUC's written order included:

(1) recovery of Big Stone 1l costs over five years, (2) moving recovery of
wind farm assets from rider recovery to base rate recovery, (3) transter
of a portion of Minnesota Conservation Improvement Program (MNCIP)
costs from rider recovery to base raterecovery, (4) transfer of the
nvestment intwo transmission lines from rider recovery to base rate
recovery, and (5) changing the mechanism for providing customers with
a credit for marging earned on asset-based wholesale sales of electricity
frorh a credit to base rates to a creditto the Minnesota Fuel Clause
Adjustiment, Final rates went into effect October 1,2011 The overall
increase to customers was approximately 1.6% compared to the
authorized interim rate increase of 3.8%, which resulted in an intéerim
rate refund-to Minnesota retail electric customers of approximately

%3.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2011 Pursuant to the order, OTP's
allowed. rate of return on rate base increased from 8.33% t0.:8.61% and
its allowed rate of return on equity increased from 10.43% 1o 10.74%.
OTP's authorized rates of return are based ornva capital structure of

48 728% long term debt and 51.72% common equity.

Conservation Improvement Programs--Under Minnesota law, every
regulated public utility that furnishes electric service must make annual
investments and expenditures in energy conservationimproverments, or
make a'contribution to the state’s energy and conservatiorntaccount, in
an amount equal to at-least 1.5% of its gross operating revenues from
service provided in Minnesota. The Next Generation Energy Act ot:2007,
passed by the Minnesota legislature in May 2007, transitions from a
conservation spending goal to a conservation energy-savings goal.

The MNDOC may require a utility to make investments and expenditures
in energy conservation improvements whenever-it finds that the
improvement will result in energy savings at a total cost to the utility less
than the cost to the utility to produce or purchase an equivalent amount of
a new supply of energy. Such MNDOC orders can be dppealed to the MPUC.
Investments made pursuant to such orders generally are recoverable
costs inrate cases, eventhough ownership of the improvement-may
helong to the property owner rather than the utility. OTPrecovers
conservation related costs not included in basé rates under the MNCIP
through the use of an annual recovery mechanisim approved by the MPUC.

A written order was issued by the MPUC on January 11, 2012 approving
the recovery-of $3.5 million in 2010 MNCIP financial incentives. Beginning
inJanuary 2012; OTP's MNCIP Conservation Cost Recovery Adjustment
(CCRA) increased from 3.0% to 3.8% for all Minnesota retail electric
customers,

OTP recognized $2.2 million in MNCIP financial incentives in 2011

relating 102011 program.restilts: On March 30,2012 OTR-submitted its
annual 201 financial incentive filing request for $2:6 million and
recognized.an additional $0:4 million of incentive related to 2011 in 2012,
In Decemnber 2012, the MPUC approved the recovery of $2.6 million-in
financialincentives for 2011and also ordered a change inthe MINCIP cost
recovery methodology used by OTP from a percentage of a customer’s
bifl to-an amount per kwh consurmed: The written order was issued on
December 10, 2012. On January 1,2013 OTP's MNCIP surcharge
decreased from 3.8% of a customer's bill to. $0.00142 per kwh, which
equates to approximately 1.9% of a customer’s bill. The per-kwh cost
allocation méthod is the principle method-approved by the MPUC for
other eleciric utilities in-Minnesota. OTFP recognized $2.6 million of
MNEIP financialincentives in- 2012 relating to 2012 program results,
OTP had aregulatory asset of $6. T million for allowable costs and
financial incentives aligible for récovery through the MNCIP riderthat
had not been billed to Minresota customers as of December 31, 2012,

Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)=Minnesota law requires utilities to
submit to the MPUC for approval a 15-year advance IRP. The MPUC's
findings of fact and conclusions regarding resource plans shall be
cansidered prima facie evidence, subject to rebuttal, in Certificate of
Need (CON) hearings, rate reviews and other proceedings. Typically,
thefilings are subrmitted every two years.

On June 25,2010 OTP filed its 2011-2025 IRP with the MPUC. The
MNDOC requested and was granted an extension of the initial comment
period to-March 1, 2011, Presenitations of the 2011-2025 IRP-were made
to both the NDPSC and: SDPUC, Approximately 60% of the 2011-2025
IRP is comprised of improvements at-existing resources and wholesale
enérgy purchases similarto existing levels: The remaining 40% of the
plan is.comprised of the following components: 64% natural gas simple
cycle combustion turbines, 21% conservation and demand response,
and 15% wind generation: Capacity-additions proposed in the 2011-2025
IRP are as follows:

"‘?rbposed
Natural Gas 213 MW
Derriand Response/Congervation TO-MW
Wind 50 MW

On.December 20,201 and February 9, 2012, respectively; the MPUC
approved-and issued a written order approving OTP's 2011-20251RE,
subject to the following conditions, among others:

#: Preparation and subrmissionof a base-load diversification study
specifically focused on evaluating retirement and repower options for
Hoot Lake Plantto be filed nolater than November 8, 2012, This study
should evaluate the costs and OTP's plans related to the Environmental
ProtectionAgency's (EPAY rules and How they mightimpact OTP
operations: It also should include implications to transmission system
reliability: of any changes to'Hoot Lake Plant.

® Future OTPIRPS should include-carbon dioxide (CO,) costs at the
rmid-point of the commission-approved range in the base caseand also
shouldinclude market costs for sulfur dioxide (50,) allowances: Futdre
OTP [RPs should use the mast current MISO long-termwind capacity
creditor anaverage ofits historical wind capacity credits,

& OTP should-increase its wind additions to 100 megawatts (MW) from
the 50-MW of additional wind included in its five-year preferred plan,
assuming the prices are reasonable.

Forresource planning purposes, the MPUC approved OTR's 1.2%
energy savings target-and encouraged OTP to expand its demand-
resporise and energy-efficiency portfolio: OTP's nextIRP filing is due no
later than December 1, 2013

In a January 31, 2013 hearing, the MPUC approved OTP's
recommendation that Hoot Lake Plant add pollution-control equipment
at a cost of approximately $10.0 million to comply with EPA mercury
and air toxics standards by 2015 and discontinue burning coal in 2020.
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Transmission Cost Recovery CTCRY Rider=In addition o the WINRRA
rider the Minnesota Public Utilities Act provides a similar miechanisim 16y
automatic adjustment outside of agenaral rate proceeding to recover the
castsiof newtransmission facilities that have been previously appraved
by the MPUCHn a CONproceeding, certified by the MPUC as & Minnesots
priority transm sgiohproject; made totransmit the electricity gensrated
fromirerewable generationsources ultimately used to provide serviceto
theutility's retall custormers, or exempt fromitherequirement toobtain o
Mirresota CONGSuch TER riders allow a retirn ondinvestiment at the
levelapproved ina utiity's last general rate case Additionally following
:‘a;“—*‘:mwi of the rate schedule, the MPUC may approve annualrate
antgtiled pursuantto the rate schedule OTP's initial reguestlor
ap pmvsa% slaTER ider was granted by the MPUC sn-anuar | 2000
and became effective Febiruary 1, 2010:
OTPreqguested recovery ofifs transmissioninvestments being
wcavered thiough its Minnesota TOR Hder rate as part of i
casefiledon April 2, 2000l its Aprl25; 2011 general rate case
the MPUC approved the transter of transmission costs currently being
recovered through OTP's Minnesota TCR riderto recovery in Base ¥
Finalratesawvent intoeffect onCcelober 1 2011 OTP will continue to
the rider costrecovery mechanismiuntii the rémaining balance of the
current transmission projects has been collected as well a5 to retover
costs associated with approved regional projects, OTP filed wrequest for
an update tots Minriesota TCR rider on October 5, 2010, The Update to
OTPs Minnesota TCR rider, approved by the MPUC on'Mareh 26, 2012,
wentinte affect-April T, 2012:

frvthis TER dider update; the MNPUC addressed hiow to handle uiility
investrients intransmission facilities that qualily Tor regional cost
alfocationunder the MISOari - MISO regional cost allocation allows
OTP torecover someof the costeof its transmission investivient from
the other MISO-utilities: On-March 26,2012 the MPUC approved an
all-in mgthod for MISO regional cost allocations it whith OTPs tetai

ustorners would be responsible fi'}i’ the eatire investment OTP

vi?}, an offseiting credit for revenues received from other Mi ‘\0 fies
underthe MISO tariff.

O Vi 012 OTPfiled a petition with the MPUC fo seélca
determinationof ellgibility forthe inclusion of 12 additional transmission
refatediprojects in subseguent Minnesota TCR rider filings On August
22,2012 the MNDOC filed comments andon August 24, 2012 the
Minnesota:Office of the Attormey General (IMNOAG) Tilad Commants.
OTP filed reply comments on September 25, 2012 and supplemental
cortrnerits on January 8, 2013 describing an agresment reached
betwgen QTP the MNDOC and the MNOAG, tofind eligible 3iofthe 12
projects MPUC approvalof that agreement is pending 1t approvalis
obtained tolnclude additional projects in the rider, investment in the
approved projects will-be included in the next annual- Minhesota TUR
vidervate update filings and recovery of the investment will begin
through the TCR riderrates if subsequently-approved by the MPUC,
Updated costs a\; sociated with existing projects within the Minnes m
TCR rider will also be included i the niext annual ider rate update filing.
QTP had a rs%g;ma‘%my liability of $0.5 million as of December 31 2012 for
armounts billed to Minnesota customers that are subject tofefund

throtigh the Minnesata TCR rider

Big Stone 1l Project=OTR and a coalition of sk other electric providers
filed anapplicationfor a CONfor the Minnesota portion of the Big Stone !
transenisgion line project on October 3, 2005 and filed an application for
a Route Permit for the Minnssota portion of the Big Stone I transmissivg

line project with the MPUC on December 9, 2008, On lanuary 15, 2009,

the MPUC approved & motion to grant the CON and Route Perriit mr e
Minnesota partion of the Big Stone I transrrission line;

The MPUC grarted the CON subject to @ number of dditions)
conditions; including but not limited to: (D Tulfiting Various requirerients
relating torenewadble energy goals, energy efficiency, community-based
energy developrient projects and emissions reductiony {2) that the




generation plant be built-as a “carbon capture retrofit ready™ facility;

(3) that the applicants reportto the MPUC on the feasibility of building
the plant-using ultra=supercritical technology; and (4) that the applicants
achieve'specific limits on-construction costs at $3,000/kW and CQ;
costs at $26/ton.

The CON and Route Permit, required by statelaw, would have allowed
the Big Stone Il utilities to construct and upgrade 112 miles of electric
transmission lines in western Minnesota for delivery of power from the
Big Stone site and from numerous other planned generation projects,
most-of which are wind energy.

Following OTP's September 11, 2009 withdrawal from the Big Stone Hl
project and the remaining Big Stone Il participants” November 2, 2009
cancellation of the project, the suitability of the route permits and
easements obtained by OTP asa MISO transmission owner for other
interconnection customers backfilling through the MISO interconnection
process into the Big Stone area continues to be evaluated.

On December 14, 2009 OTP filed a request with the MPUC for deferred
regulatory accounting treatment for the costs incurred related to the
cancelled Big Stone I plant. OTP requested recovery of the Minnesota
portion of its Big Stone [l developrnent costs over & five-year period as'part
of its general rate case filed in Minnesota on April 2, 2010, In a writtén
order issued on April 25,2011, the MPUC authorized recovery of the
Minnesota portion of Big Stone It generation development costs from
Minnesota ratepayers over a 60-month recovery period which began on
October 1, 2011 The amount of Big Stone 1l gerieration costs incurred by
OTP that were deemed recoverable from Minnesota ratepayers was
$3.2 million (which excludes $3.2 million of project transmission-related
costs). As of December 31, 2012, OTP had a regulatory asset-of $2.1 million
of Big Stone H generation costs to be recovered.

On December 30, 2010 OTP filed a request for an extension ot the
Minnesota Route Permit for the Big Stonetransmission facilities. The
request asked to extend the deadline for filing a CON for these transmiission
facilities until March 17, 2013. The April 25, 2011 MPUC order instructed
OTP 1o transfer the $3.2 million Minnesota share of Big Stonell
transmission costs to Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) and to
create atracker account through which any over or under recoveries
could be-accumulated for refund or recovery determination infuture rate
cases-as a regulatory liability or-asset, If determined eligible for recovery
underthe FERC-approved MISO regional transmission tariff, the
Minnesota portion of Big Stone 1l transmission costs and accumulated
Allowance for FundsUsed During Construction (AFUDC) will receive
rate base treatment and recovery through the FERC-approved MISO
regional transmission rates. Any amounts over or under collected
through MISO rates will be reflected in the tracker-account:

Big Stone Air Quality Control System (AQCS) Request for Advance
Determination of Prudence (ADP)—Minnesota law authorizes a public
utility to petition the MPUC for an ADP for aproject-undertaken to comply
with federal or state air quality standards of states in which the utility's
electric generation facilities are located, if the project has an expected
jurisdictional cost Lo Minnesota ratepayers of atleast $10 million ADPs
can help lower the cost of financing by providing additional regulatory
certainty, which ultimately reduces customer costs: On January 14,

2010 0TP filed a petition asking the MPUC foran ADP forthe design;
constructioncand operation of the Best-Available Retrofit: Technology
(BART) compliant air quality-control system at Big Stone Plant attributable
toserving OTP's Minnesota customers, and on December 20, 2071 the
MPUC granted OTP's petition. The MPUC s written order was issuedon
January 23, 2012.

Capacity Expansion 2020 (CapX2020)=-CapX2020 is.a joint initiative
of eleven investor-owned, cooperative, and municipal utilities in Minnesota
and the surrounding region to upgrade and expand the electric
transmission grid to ensure continued refiable and affordable service.
The CapX2020 companies identified four major transmission projects

for the region: (1)the Fargo-Monticello 345 kV Project (the Fargo Project),
(2) the Brookings-5outheast Twin Cities 345 kV Project (the Brookings
Project), (3) the Bemiidji-Grand Rapids 230°kV-Project (the Bemidji
Project); and (4) the Twin Cities-LaCrosse 345 kV Project. OTPis an
investor i the Fargo Project; the Brookings Project and the Bemidji Project.

The Fargo Project-~All major permits have been received from state
regulatory bodies and project agreements have been signed for the
constriction of the Fargo Project. The Monticello to St. Cloud portion of
the Fargo Projéect was placed into servicé on December 21, 2011
Consteuction is underway for the remaining portions of the project with
completionscheduledfor the first quarter of 2015.-0TP's share of the
costs for the St Cloudto Fargo portion of the Fargo Projéct is expected
to be $84.2 million, :

The Brookings Project=All major permits have been received from state
regulatory bedies and project agreements-have been signed for the
construction of the Brookings Project, The MISO granted unconditional
approvalef the Brookings Project as'a Multi-Value Project (MVP) under
the MISO Open-Access Transmission; Energy and Operating Reserves
Market Tariff (Tariff) in' December 2011 This project will be placediin
service in segments with the earliest segment being placed in service in
the sumrger of 2013 and the Tast segment placed inservice during the
first quarter of 2015, OTP's share of the costs for the Brookings Project'is
expected to be $26.0 million:

The Bemidji Project-=The Bemidji-Grand Rapids tiansmission ling was
fully energized and put in service on September 17,2012

Recovery of OTP's CapX2020 transmission investments will be
through the MISO Tariff and the Minnesota; North Dakotaand South
Dakota TCRriders,

Capital Structure Petition—Minnesota lawrequires anannualfiling of a
capital structure petition with the MPUC Inthis filing the MPUC reviews
and approves the capital structure for OTP Once the petition is approved,
OTPmay issue securities withoutfurther petition or approval, provided
theissuance is consistent with the purpeses and amounts set forth in the
approved capital structure petition. OTR's current capital structure petition
is ineffactuntil the MPUC issues a new capital structure order for 2013
OTPis required to file its 2013 capital structure petition by May 14, 2013,

NORTH DAKOTA

OTP is subject tothe jurisdiction of the NDPSCwith respect to rates;
services, certain issuances of securities and other matters. The NDPSC
periodically performs audits of gas and electric utilities over which it has
rate setting jurisdiction to determine the reasonableness of overall rate
levels. In the past, these audits have occasionally resulted in settlernent
agresmerits adjusting rate fevels for OTP. The North-Dakota Energy
Conversion and Transmission Facility Siting Act grants the NDPSC the
authority to approve sites in North Dakota for large electric generating
facilities and high voltage transmission lines: This Actissimilar to the
Minnesota Power Plant Siting Act deseribed above-and applies to
proposed new electric power generating plants exceeding 60,000kwW
and proposed new fransmission lines with a designinexcess of 115 kV.
OTPis required to submit @ ten-year planto the NDPSC annually:

The NDPSC reserves the right to review the issuance of stocks; bonds,
riotes and other evidence of indebtedness of a public utility. However, the
issuance by a public utility of sacurities registered with the SEC s expressly
axempted from review by the NDPSC under North-Dakota state faw.

Gengral Rate Case=-On November 3, 2008 OTP filed a general rate case
in North Dakota requesting an overall revenug increase of approximately
6.1 million, or 51%, and an interim rate increase of approximately 4.1%,
or $4.8 million annualized, that went into effect on January 2, 2009, In

an order issued by the NDPSC on November 25, 2009, OTP was granted




i North Dakota retall elécticrates of $3:6miillioneor
iiately 3 0% which wentinto effect in w:memb@f 2009 The
aithorizing andnterimyate increase required O TP to refund
Morth Dakota custor ditference between tinal andintérim rates,
withiinterest: OTPestat drefuntd reserve for revenies dollected
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reserve balance of $0.9 i asof December 31,2009 was refinded
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MORBA wis received i fhe mkﬁ quarter of 2010 with-implementation
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Tranamission Cost Recovery Rider- North Dakota law provides.a
mechanism for atitoi diustment outside of ageneral rate procesding
to recoverjursdiction and operating costs Incurred by-a pub!ic
utility for dew or moditie tric transmiission facilities OTRifiled 5.
reguest foranioilal North Dakota TCRriderwith the NDPSG o April 29
20T which was approved by the NDPSC on April 25, 201 o peinto
effectMay L 2002 O Bugust 31 2012 OTP fled its annal update to
the ot Dakota TCR fder rate toreflect updated-cost inforination

associated withoprojscts currently inthierider, aswellas proposing 1o
include costs associated with ten additional projectsdor recovery within
the rider whichithe NDPSE approved on December 122012 o gointo
effect fanuary 12013, OTE has-a regulatory asset of $01 millien-for
arnounts eligible for recovery through the North Dakota TCR rider that:
have riot been billed to-North-Dakota customers as of Deceraber 31, 2002,

Big Stone 1 Project-=<Adfiling in North Dakata for an ADP of Big Stone 1l
was madeby OTR inNovember 2006, OnAugust 27,2008 the NDPSE
determined that OTP's participation in Big Stone b was prudentina
range-of 121840 130 MW Ondanuary 20, 2010, OTR tiled @ request with
the NDPSCHora-determination that continuinig with the Big Stona )
projectwould nothaverbean prudent: North Dakota's ADP statate allows
a utiity torecover costs, and-a reasonable retusn enthe casts pending
recovery, fora project previousty deemed prudent and for which the
NDOPSE later makes a determinationthat continiing with the prajent
wasnofornger prudent,

On:Decermber 14,2009 0TP Hled s request with the NDPSCH
defarred regulatory accounting treatment for its costaincurred related
to the cancelled Big Stone Wproject: nanorderissued June 25, 2010 tne
NDPSC authorizedrecovery of Big Stone 1l development costs from
North: Dakota ratepayers, pursuant to s final settiement agreement filed
June 23,2010, betiveen the NDPSC advocacy staff, QTR and tha North
Dakota Large Industrial Energy Group, which had-ntervened. The terms
of the settlement agreement ndicate that OTPs discontinuation of
partigipationinthe project was prudent and OTP should be authorized to
recover the portior ot costs itincurred related to the Big Stane | generation
project: The total amount of Big Stoné il generation costs incurred by TR
(which excludes $2.6 milliorof project transmissionsrelated costs) was
determined:to be $10 I million, of which $4.1 millian represents North
Dakota's xsmahchm’sa— share: The North Daketa ,;m’tmn qs* B
gereration costs i
August 2000 A« ot Dece
$0.9 million of Big Stone 1l géheraiié%t Costs tobe 'réété::(\férmd

The North Dakata's jurisdictionalb share of Big Stone costsincusred
by OTPrelated to fransmissionis $1 T million: OTF frangferred the North
Drakotashare of Big Stone transmission costs to CWIP with such costs
subjectto- AFUDC continulng from September 2009 construction of
all or a portion of the transmission facilities commences within three
yearsof the MIPSC orderapproving the settlemient agreement; the North
Dakota portion af Big Stone I transmission costs and accumulated ARUDC
shall beincluded-in the rate base investment for these future transmission
facilities I construction s not commenced on any of the transmission
facilities within three years of the NDPSC order approving the settlerent
agreament, OTP may petition the NDPSC to either continue accounting
forthese costs as CWIPor 1o chmmence recovery of stich costs.

CapX2020 Requestfor Advance Determinationof Prudences=0On

Cictober 5, 2009 OFP filed an application for an ADPwith the NDPESC for
its-praposed participation o three of the four Group Lprojects
Project the Brookings Project and the Bemidii Proeet Anadminishrative
law juidge conducted an evidentiary hearing on the application in
2010: On October 6, 2010 the NDRSC-adopted an orderapproving @
settlermnent betwaen OTP and intervener NDPSC advpcacy staff and issued
anADPAG QTR forparticipation in the three Group | projects: The order s
subject to a number of terms and conditions in addition 1o the seftiement
agresment; including the provision of additional information vi the
eventual resahition of cost alldcation issues relevant to the Brookings
Brojectand its associated impact on North Dakota: On Aprit 29, 201,
OTP filed its compliance filing with the NDPSC seaking adetermination
of conifinued pridence for OTF S Investiment in the Brookings Project.
The NDPSCapprovédthe request foran ADP forthe Brookings Projeet




on November 10, 2011 conditioned on the MISO'MVP cost allocation
rernaining materially-unchanged. The MISO granted unconditional
approval of the Brookings Project as an MVP under the MISO Tariff in
Decermnber 2011

CapX2020-Fargo Project—All major permits have been received from
state regulatory bodies and project agreements have been signed for the
construction of the Fargo Project. Completion of all phases of the Fargo
Project is scheduled for the first quarter of 2015, OTP’s share of the
costs of the Fargo Project is expected to be $84.2 million.

SOUTH DAKOTA

Under the South Dakota Public Utilities Act, OTP s subject to the
jurisdiction of the SDPUC with respect to rates, public utility services,
establishment of assigned service areas and other matters. Under the
South Dakota Energy Facility Permit Act, the SDPUC has the authority to
approve sites in-South Dakota for large energy conversion facilities (100,000
kW ormore) and transmission lines with a design of 115 kV or more.

2010 General Rate Case Filing—On August 20, 2010 OTP filed a general
rate case with the SDPUC requesting an overall revenue increase of
approximately $2.8 million, or just under 10.0%, which includes, among
other things, recovery of investments and expenses related to renewable
resources. On September 28, 2010 the SDPUC suspended OTP's proposed
rates for a period of 180 days to allow time to review OTP's proposal. On
January 19, 2011 OTP submitted a proposal to use current rate design to
implement an interim rate in South Dakota to be effective on and after
February 17, 2011, On January 26, 2011 OTP submitted an amended
proposal to use a lower interim rate increase than originally proposed.
At its February 1, 2011 meeting, the SDPUC approved OTP's request to
implement interim rates using current rate design and the lower interim
increaseto be effective on and after February 17, 2011 On April 21,2011,
the SDPUC issued its written order-approving an overall final revenue
increase of approximately $643,000(2.32%) and ari-overall rate of
return on rate base of 8.50% for the interim rates and final rates: Final
rates were effective with bills rendered om and after June 1, 201

Transmission Cost Recovery Rider—South Dakota law provides a
mechanisin for automatic adjustment outside of a general rate proceeding
to recover jurisdictional capital and operating costs incurred by a public
utility for new or miodified electric transmission facilities. OTP submitted
a request foran initial South Dakota TCR rider to the SDPUC on
November 5, 2010, The South Dakaota TCR was approved by the SDPUC
and implemented on December 1, 2071 OTP billed $570,000 to South
Dakota customers under the TCR rider from December 1, 2011 through
December 31, 2012 and had a regulatory asset of $2,000 for amounts
eligible for recovery through the South Dakota TCR rider that had not
been billed to South Dakota customers as of December 31, 2012, On
September 4, 2012;-OTP filed its annual update to the South Dakota
TCRrider rate. The request is currently under review by the SDPUC,

Big Stone |l Project—On Decemiber 14, 2009 OTP filed a request-with
the SDPUC for deferred regulatory accounting treatment forits costs
incurred related to the cancelled Big Stone 1l plant. The SDPUC approved
OTP's request for deferred accounting treatment-on February 11,2010
QTP requested recovery of the South Dakota portioriof its Big Stone:ll
development costs over a five-year period as part of its general rate case
filed in ‘South Dakota on August 20, 2010, In the first quarterof 2011 the
SDPUC approved recovery of the South Dakota portion of Big Stone It
generation development costs totaling approximately $1.0 million from
South Dakota ratepayers over-a ten-year period beginning in February
2011 with the implementation of interim rates, OTP will be allowed to
earn a return on the-amount subjectto recovery over theten-year recovery
period. QTP transferred the South Dakota portion of the remaining Big
Stone Nransmission costs to CWIP, with such costs subject to AFUDC

and recovery infuture FERC-approved MISO rates or retal rates. Oncjuly 31,
2012 the SDPUC approved the transfer of the Big Stone H-transmission
route-perpits from the ofiginal Big Stane H-transmission owners-to QTP

Big Stone Plant AQCS-0n‘March 30, 2012 OTP requested approval from
the SDPUC Toran Environmental Cost Recovery Rider (ECRR)to recover
costs associated with the Big Stone Plant AQCS, with a proposed effective
date of October 1, 2012: Thisrider is desigried to recover the revenue
requirements plus carrying charges of the Big Stone AQCS project while
under construction as well as after completion of the project until placed
into-base rates through the filing of a rate case; For the initial period of
Octoberd; 2012:through September 30,2013, OTP is requesting revenue
reqUirement recovery on expenditures incurred for the Big Stone Plant
AQCS. The requestis currently under review by the SDRPUC:

CapX2020 Brookings-Southeast Twin Cities 345 kV Project—All major
permits have been réceived from state regulatory bodies and project
agreements have beensigned for the construction of this project. The
MISO granted unconditional approval of the Brookings Project asan
MVP under the MISO Tariff in December 2011 This project will be
placed in service in segments with the earfiest segment being placed in
service inthe summerof 2013 and the last segment placed-inservice
during the fiest quarter of 2015, OTP's share of the costs of the Brookings
Projectis expected to be $26.0 million:

Energy Efficiency Plan=The SDPUC has encouraged all investor-owned
utilities in- South Dakota to be part of an Energy Efficiency Partnership to
significantly reduce energy use. :

On June 16, 2010:0TF filed arequest with the SDPUL for-approval of
updates toits 2010 South Dakota Energy Efficiency Plan and approval for
the continuation of the prograrm in 2011 OTP requested increases in energy
and demand savings goals and increases in related financial incentives
for both 2010 and the requested 201 program. In an order issued on
July:27, 2010 the SDPUC-approved OTP's request for updated energy,
demand and participation goals for continuation of the program into 2071,

OnApril 29, 2011 0TP-filed a reguest with the SDPUC for approval of
a 2070 finantial incentive of $73,415 and a surcharge adjustment of
$0.00063 on South Dakota customers bills, OrnMay 25, 2011 OTP filed
a request with the SDPUC for approval of updates to its 2012-2013
South Dakota Energy Efficiency Plan. The SDRPUC approved the 2012-2013
plan with & maximurn.available incentive payment limited to 30% of the
budget armount provided inthe plan; or $84,000.

FERC

Wholesale power sales and transmission rates are subject to the
jurisdiction of the FERC under the Federal Power Act of 1935, as amended.
The FERC s an independent agency, which has jurisdiction over rates for
wholesale electricity sales; transmission and sale of electricenergy in
interstate commerce interconnection of facilities; and accounting policies
and practices: Filed rates are effective after a one day-suspension period,
subject to ultimate approval by the FERC;

Effective January 1, 2010 the FERC authorized OTF's implementation
of a forward logking formulatransmission rate underthe MISO Tariff.
OTPwas also authorized by the FERC torecoverin its formularate
(1) 100% of prudently incurred CWIP in rate base and (2) 100% of
prudently incurred costs of transmission facilities that are cancelled or
abandoned for reasons beyond OTPS control (Abandoned Plant Recovery)
specifically forthirée regional transmission CapX2020 projects that OTP s
investing ini the Farga Project, the Bemidji Project and the Brookings Project.

On December 16, 2010 the FERC approved the cost allocation fora
new:classification of projects in MISO called MVPs. MV Ps are designed
to'enable the region to comply with energy policy mandates and to
address reliability and economic issues affecting multiple transmission
rones within the MISO region. The cost allocation is designed to ensure
that the costs of transrission projects with regional benefits are properly
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LapR2020 Brookings Project=ndune 201 the MISO Board ofdirettors
granted conditicnal approval of the MV P cost allocation destgnation
under the NSO Tasiff for the Brookings Project, andthe projectwas
granted unconditlonal sgproval in Decermber 2011 as an MVE

NAEMA

OTPis ameniberof the North American Energy Marketers Association
(NAENMAwhich dependent; non=profittrade association

it m%i‘é' invalvad n the marketing of energy orin providing
stoihe snbrgyindustry NAENMA hasover 130 members with
Sstatesand Lanade NAEMA was formedas ast
hie Power snd Energy Market (PEM):of the Mid-
EPOsHINMARE) nrecognition that PEN had sutgrown the
St %wu‘;; sobsalesard conducted oot "1?;‘fziscaz;5‘%\/ through
guitheachedules filed by NAEMA with the FERE,

ihwest Reliability Organization (MRO). The
Wisanonsprotit organization dedicated toensuring thepalishility
andsecurty of the bk powsr systerin the north central fegion ol
NerthAmsrics g

Fisone ofeightregionatantitiesin
3 o;‘mmt Hig m‘}zj.zf;r authority: fromiregulatorein the United
Ahdsad Cmmda through a delezation agreement with the: North
viGar s Reliability Corporation: The MRO B responsiblefor
h ::%{»mi{;pzrzg sndimplarmenting reliability standards, 2y enforting

compliznce with those standards (3 providing seasonal andlongsterm
assessiments ot thebulk power syster's ability to mest demand for

ale i{:styj and Ay providing an appeals and:dispute resolution process:

The MRO region covers roughly onemillion square miles spanning the

provinces of Saskatchewan and Manitoba, the states of North Dakota,
Minnesota; Mebraska and the majorityof the tervitory in the states of
South Dakota; lows andWisconsing The region includes more that 100
organizations that are tnvolved in the productionand deliveryof power:
to moréthan 20 raillion people. These organizations inelude municipal
utifities, cooperatives; investor-owned utilities, a tederal power marketing
agency, Canadian Crown Corporgtions, independent power producers
anch othars who have interests o the reliability of the bulk power
MRO assumed thereliability functions of the MAPE: Gnd Mid-Americs
Interconnected Network, bothifermer-voluntary regional relisbility

covneiis:

MISO

coordinator for the ragion; the MISD seeks tooptimize the ef
the interconnected system, provide regional solutions to regivnal planting
neets and minhmize risk to refiability through/its security coordination;
long-termeregional planning, market monitoring, scheduling and tarif
adhministrationfunctions. The MISO coversa broad reglon containing all
or parts of 12 states and the Canadian province of Manitoba: The MISO
hag operatianal control of OTP's transmission facilities above 100 kY,
but OTF continues to.own and maintain its transmission assels.

The MISO Energy Markets commenced aperation on April 1 2008,
Throtigh'its Ernergy Markets, MISD seeks to develap options for erergy
supply inerease utilization of transmission assets; optimize the useof
erergy restrces across a wider reglon and provide greater visibilityiof
data, MISOaims o facilitate a rore cost-effective and efficient udeof

thewholesale bulk electric system:

The MISO: Ancillary Services Market (ASM) commenced on January 6

200%: The market facilitates the provision of Regulation, Spinning Rm;ew{a
and Supplemental Ressrves. The ASMintegrates the procurerment and
useof fegulation:and contingency reserves with the axisting Energy Market,
OTP hag actively participated inthe market since s commencement,

I Diecember 2008 pursuant to the provisions of the MISO Transmission
Owners Agreement, OTPsent MISO a letter of infent towithidraw from
MISO orvor étter Decembier 31, 2009, This procedural step was takén to
atlow OTP the eariest available opportunity to withdraw from MISO i
its concerns about the unintended consequences produced by the MISD
Tariff, whichimpuosed adisproportionate allocation of charges toits
custorners; attributable to the allocation of costs for transimission hetwork
upgrades; cannot be equitably resolved. Withdeawal from MISO would
raquire QTP to sither secure replacement of and /o self-provide the
services currently provided by MISO: OTPs notice remalng inelfect:

OTHER

OTP is subject to vadous federaband state laws, incliding the Federal
Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act and the Enerpy Policy Act ol 18
which-are intended to promote the conservation of energy and the
developmentand use of alternative energy sources, and the
Comprehensive Ehergy Polivy Actol 2005

COMPETITION, DEREGULATION AND LEGISLATION
Electric sales are subject to Compatitionn some areas from municipally
owned-systems, rural electric cooperatives and, in certaiirespects fram
onssite generaforsand cogenerators, Elactyicity also competes with
other forms ofenergy: Thedegree of competition may vary fram time to
tirme depending o relative costs and supplies of other forms of Bnergy:
TheCompany believes OTP g well positionedto besuccessiuling
competitive environment: Acomparson of OTP's electric retail ratesto
therates of otherinvestor-owned utilities, cooperatives zﬁﬂd miviicipals
in the states OTPserves indicates OTP s rates are competiti

Legistative and regulatory activity could affect dperations iﬁ tize Futuré:



OTP cannot predict the timing or substance of any future legistationor
regulation. The Company does not expectretail competition to come to
the states.of Minnesota, North Dakota or South Dakota in the foreseeable
future. There has been:nolegislative action regarding electric retail
choice inany.of the states where OTP operates, The Minnesota legislature
has in the past considered legislation that, if passed, would have limited
the Company's ability to maintain and grow its nonelectric businesses:

OTP.is unable to predict the impact on its operations resulting from
future regulatory activities, from future legislation or from future taxes
that may be imposed on the source or use of energy.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

impact of Environmental Laws—OTP's existing generating plants are
subject to stringent federal and state standards and regulations regarding,
among other things, air, water and solid waste pollution. In the five years
ended December 31, 2012 OTP invested approximately $23.5 million in
environmental control facilities. The 2013 and 2014 construction budgets
include approximately $89.5 millioncand $99.5 million; respectively, for
environmental equipment for existing facilities.

Ajr Quality-Criteria Pollutants—Pursuant to the Faderal Clean Air Act
(the CAA), the EPA has promulgated national primary and secondary
standards for certain air pollutants.

The primary fuels burned by OTP's steam generating plants are North
Dakota lignite coal and western subbituminous coal. Electrostatic
precipitators have been installed at the principal units-at the Moot Lake
Plant. Hoot Lake Plant Unit 1, which is the smallest of the three coal-fired
units at Hoot Lake Plant, was retired as of December 31,2005, Asa result,
OTP believes the units at the Hoot Lake Plant currently meet all presently
applicable federal and state air quality and emission standards,

The South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources
issued a Title V Operating Permit to the Big Stone siteron june 9, 2009
allowing for operation of Big Stone Plant. The Big Stone Plant continues
to operate under Title V permit provisions. The Big Stone Plant is currently
operating within all presently applicable federal-and state air quality and
emission standards,

The Coyote Station is equipped with SO; removal equipment. The
removal-equipment—referred to as a dry scrubber-—consists of a spray
dryer, followed by a fabric filter, and is designed to desulfurize hot gases
from the stack. The fabric filter collacts spray dryer residue along with
the fly ash. The Coyote Stationis currently operating withinall presently
applicable federal and state air quality and emission standards.

The CAA, in addressing acid deposition, imposed requirements on
power plants in-an effort to reduce national emissions of $0; and
nitragen oxides (NOy).

The national SO, emission reduction goals are achieved through a
market based system under which power plants are allocated "emissions
allowances” that require plants to either reduce their 5O, emissions or
acquive allowances from others to-achieve compliance: Each allowance
is an authorization to emit one ton of $0,. 50, emission requirements
are currently being met by all of OTP’s generating facilities withiout the
need to acquire other allowances for compliance with the-acid deposition
provisions of the CAA,

The national NO, emission reduction goals are achieved by imposing
rmandatory emissions standards on individual sources: All of OTP's
generating facilities met the NOy standards during 2012,

The EPA Administrator signed the Clean Alr Interstate Rule (CAIR) on
March 10, 2005: The EPA has concluded that SO, and NOy are the chief
emissions contributing to interstate transport of particulate matter less
than 2.5 microns (PM2.5). The EPA also concluded that NOy emissions
are the chief emissions contributing to ozone nonattainment.

Twenty~three states and the District of Columbia were found to
contribute to ambient air quality PM2.5 nonattainment in downwind
states. On that basis, the EPA proposed to cap 50, and NOy emissions
in the designated states. Minnesota was included among the twenty-three

states subject to'emissions caps: North Dakota and South Dakota were
notidncluded, Twenty-five states were found to contribute to downwind
-hour pzone nonattainment: None of the states in OTP's service territory
were stated for NOy reductionfor 8=hour ozone nonattainment purposes.
Onluly 11,2008, the U5 Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit vacated
CAIR and the CAIR faderal implementation plan inits entirety.

On December 23,2008, the court reconsidered and remanded the case
forthe EPAto conduct further proceedings consistent-with the court’s
prigr opinion:Oh Jaruary 16, 2009, the EPA proposed a rule that would
stay the effectiveness of CAIR and the CAIR federal implermentation plan
forsources'in Minnesota while the EPA conducts notice-andscomment
rulernaking on remand fronvthe D.C Circuit's decisions in the litigation
or: CAIR: Remanding the issug to the EPA for further consideration, the
court held that the EPA-had'not adequately addressed errors alleged by
Minnesota Powerin the EPA's-analysis supporting inclusion of Minnesota.
Neither the EPA nior any other party sought rehearing of this part of the
court’s CAIR decision: Public Notice of the final rule staying the
implementation of CAIR in Minnésota appeared in the Novemnber 3,
2009 Federal Register.

On July 6, 2010, the EPA proposed the Transport Rule that essentially
would replace the CAIR, but which was proposed to include Minnesota
saurces duetoa finding that Minnesota's emissions contribute to PM2:5
nonattainment in'downwind states, However, itsimpact on Moot Lake
Plant-and OTP's Solway cormbustionturbine under the initial proposal
would have heenless than what had been conternplated-under CAIR.
The EPA released the final Transport Rule, renamed as the Cross=State
Alr Pollution Rule CCSAPR), onJuly 8; 2011 The final rule made several
changes és compared to the proposed rule; including a substantial
charige in the allowance allocation methodology. A number of states
andd industry representatives challenged the rule; and onDecember 30,
201, the U5, Court ot Appeals for the DIC Circuit granted motions to
stay CSAPR pending the court's resolution of the petitions for review.
The Courtissuedan order on August 21,2012 to vacate CSAPR. The order
requires EPALD continue adm%niste%ing CAIR pe'hdirzg the promulgation
of:a valid replacement rule: Since CAIR is currently stayed for Minnesota,
anddoes notapply to Northor South Dakota, there isnoimpact to QTP
atthis time.

Air Quality-Hazardous Air Pollutants=—0On December 16, 2011 the EPA
signed a final rile to reduce mercury and other air toxics emissions from
powerplants known as the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS)
rule: The final rule became effective on April 16, 2012, and plants wil)
have urtil April 16, 2015 to comply; However, the EPAis encouraging
state permitting authorities to broadly grant a one~year compliance
extension to-plants that need additional time to install controls. The EPA is
also providing apathway for reliability critical units to obtainan additional
year torachieve compliance; however the EPA hasindicated that it believes
there will be few, ifany situations, in which this pathway is needed.
Based on OTPsreview of the final rule, it appears that OTP's affected
units would meet the requirements by installing the AQCS system at Big
Stane,; by adding Tabricfilters orupgrading the electrostatic precipitators
onHoot Lake Units 2.and 3, by installing mercury controltechnology
such ag activated carboninjection on allunits, and by possibly installing
dry sorbentinjection at Moot Lake Plant. Emissions menitoring equipment
and/or stack testing will also be needed to verify compliance with the
standards: Mercury emissions-monitoring equipment was previously
installed at Big Stone Plant and-Coyote Station; but the equipment will
need to be re-evaluated foroperability under the finalrule.

Air Quality=EPA New Source Review Enforcement initiative~=in 1998
the EPA announced its New Source Review Enforcement Initiative
targeting coal-fired utilities, petroleum refineries, pulp and paper mills
and otherindustries for alleged violations of the EPA's New Source
Review rules. These risleg require owners or operators that construct new
major sources or make major modifications to existing sources o obtain
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: eyes that the Big Stone Plant isinmaterial

ance with allapplizable requirements ofithe CAA

z 3‘1 as'*é &t JssrzelS 2005 the EPA g:}t’i}\i%di‘@ 2 :
&Aé?cgét«%ymf‘aﬂms pnderthe rule: The Regional %ma;{\
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FResources (DENRY détermingd that thepléant
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Class Lairguality sreas: On November 2, 2009 OTPsubimitted to DENR
its analvsis of wiat ol technology should be'considerer BART for
MOy, 56 and partivutate matter for the Big Stone Plant.

Ordaniary 15201000 DENR provided: QTP witha:copy:of South
Dkt drdt proposed Regional Maze State Implementation Blan (519,
SouthiDakota's deatt proposed Regional Haze 51Pretpnunended the S0,

sarbiculate mabier emission control fechnolapy and emission rates
{ sloliowed TP s BAR T analysis: The DENR recommended
alytic Reducticn(SER) tachnology-tor NOemiss)
dditiontothe UTPerscommended separatad oyer-fite aln
4 {iﬁi!e{(i;?Eé andsubmitted s implementationplanand
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sowhichavere
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8 Sﬁl I (ﬁ'}!ﬂ;‘rx&akoia sabs’ﬂitted arevisedimplerentation
mentation rules tothe EPA oo Seplemberiy,
al rulecapproving thie South Dakota Regional baze
stermination on Man*h 29, 2012, and the
fnml aamemw becamie stective on May 292012 Under theSouth Dakota
implamentation plansand ts implenenting mios, thie Big StoneRlant
miugt netall mxej gperateatow BART compliantair guality controlsystem
vpeditioushraspracticable; butno Ahan
berthe EPAS aoproval: Although:studies and evsluations are

. hr:a currsi project cost is'estimatad o beapproximately

FASCmillion(OTR s share would be $265 million)

Oredanuaey 14, 2010 TR filed a petition asking the MPUCor anADP
forthedesign; construction and operation of the BART compliantaln
guality contiolisystem at Big Stone Plant attributable to'serving OTPs
Mirnssotasustorners and on Degeimber 20, 201 the MPUC granted:
the petition: The MPUC issued its written order granting the ADPon
January 28 20025

O led anapplication for an ADP with the NDPSC of May 20, 201,
The NDPSC hired 4 consulting fivtr {o evaluate the ADP request:
Evidentiary hearings wereheldon November 29,201 There wasno
opposition-in this proceeding. OTP and NDPSC advo
intoa afent agr eenwm that was filedwith the NDPSC oi lanuan
2012 The NDPSE held g special mesting oneNay 9, 2012 st whichitime
the orderwasappr &vuj by alkCommissioners. The arder contains
conditions for reporting and maac: no: determma*aon mh@ pradénce ot
the technology for NOy contral.. =

CreMarch 30; 2012:07P requested approvalfrorm the SDPUC Toran
ECRR torecovercosts associated with the Big Stone Plart airguatity
control system. OTP is currently-awaiting SDPUC action: This rid
designed to recover the révenue fequirements plus carrying charg
the project whils under construction as-well as after completion ofthe
project until placed into base rates through the filing of @ rate ciase.

Big Stone Plant is currently operating withincall presently applicable
federal andistate air guality andemission standards.

The North Dakota Regional Haze SIP requires that ﬁ"wm@ Station
reduce its NOwemissions: On March 14, 2011 the North Daketa Departmerit
of Health (NDDOR) issued a construction-permit to Coyote Station:
requiringin <;taifa+'o i of contm{ equipmenttoimitits NOyg emissions to
05 p{wamm mr million Biu as calculated on a 30-day rolling averdge
basi g on miy’& 3{)18 Thecurrent estimate of the émm %
the project s 56 million (320 million for OTPs share). On March
EPAsigned a finaleule for partial approvalof-the North Dakota 5
included the NOy emission rate permit conditions forCoyote
proposed by the NDDOM The rule becanie effectiveon May 72612

in Juie 2012 the Sterra Club and National Parks Conservation
Association TNPCA) filed an appeal of EPA’s approval of-the Narth
Dakota Regional Haze S1Pto the U5, Eighth Cireuit Court of Appeals.
The petition for review was silent on the specific issues that the groups
intended to challenge, On'the same day Sierra Club/NPCA also separately
filed a petition for reconsideration with the EPAL in the petition for
reconsideration filed with EPA, Sterra Club/NPCA did not take fssue
with the Coyote Station NOy limit: However, in‘the Elghth Circult appeal,
Sierra:Club/NPCAiled o briet on October 5, 2012 that icluded: 4
chatlenge to EPAs determinations relative to Coyote Station. The groups
are requesting the Eighth Circuit to reverse and remand EPA's SIP
approval, A amicus brief was submitted to the Bighth Clrowdt on behalf
of the Coyote Station on December 18, 2012,

Adr Quality-Greenhouse Gas (GHE) Regulation-—Combustion of fossil
uelsfor the seneration of electricity is-a major stationary sowce of CO,
amissions inthe United Statesand globally, OTP is an cwner or parbsowner
of threehaseload; coal-fired electrivity generating plants andthree
fuel-oll or natural gas-fired combustion turbine pesking plants with a
corbingd net dependable capagity ot 652 MW in 2012 these plants
amitted approximately 35 milliontonsof CO4

OTP monitors aridevaluates the possible d{igptim of national
regional, or state climate change and GHG legislationor regulationsg that
would atfect electricutilities. Congress previously considersd but has
not-adopted GHG legislation which would reguire s redustion in GHG
emissions, and thereds no legiclation under dctive consideration at this
time. The likelihoad:of any federal mandatory COy emissions raduction
program being adapted by Congress in the near future, and the specific
requirementsiobany:such progyany, is tncertain.

I April 2007 owever, the UiS: Supreme Court issuedia:decision ima
determined that the EPAhas authority to regulate COy and other GF




fromautomobiles as "airpollutants™ under the CAA. The Supreme Court
sent-thecase back tothe EPA to conduct a rulemaking to determine
whether GHG emissions contribute toclimate change “which may
reasonably be anticipated to endanger public-health orwelfare” While
this case addressed a provision of the CAA related toemissions from
motor vehicles, a parallel provision of the CAA applies to stationary
sources such as electric generators. The first step in the EPA rulerriaking
process was the publication of an endangerment findingin the
December 15, 2009 Federal Register where the EPA found that CO; and
five other GHGs = methane, NOy, hydrofluorocarbons, perfliorocarbons
and sulfur hexafluoride - threaten public health and the environment.

The EPA's final findings respond to the 2007 U.S. Supreme Court
decisionthat GHGs fit within the CAA's definition of givpollutants, The
findings do not in and of themselves impose any emission reduction
requirements butrather allowed the EPA to finalize the GHG standards
for new light-duty vehicles as part of the joint rulemaking with the
Department of Transportation. These standards apply tomotor vehicles as
of January 2011, which makes GHGs “subject to regulation™ underthe CAA

Ondune 6;2010 the EPA published a final “tailoring rule that phases
inapplication of-its PSD programto GHG emission sources; including
power plants. This program applies-to existing sources if there isa
physical change or change in the method of operation:of the facility that
resultsin a significant net emissions increase:. Asaresult; PSD does not
apply on a set timeline asis the case with-other regulatory programs;
butis triggered depending on what activities take place at a major
source; If triggered, the owner or operator of an affected facility must
undergo a review which requires-the identification andimplementation of
best-available control technology (BACT) for the regulated air pollutants
for which there is a significant net emissions increase; and ananalysis of
the ambient air quality impacts of the facility.

As of July 201, sources emitting more than 100,000:tons peryear of
“COse” a measure that converts emissions of each GHG into its carbon
dioxide equivalent, are considered "major:sources” subject to PSD
requirements if they propose to make modifications resulting ins net GHG
emissions increase of 75,000 tons peryear or more of CO5e-OTP does
not anticipate making modifications at any of its facilities that would trigger
PSD requirements. The South Dakota DENR reviewed OTP's projected
ermissions, including GHG emissions, as a result of the Big Stone AQCS
Project and the DENR agreed that the emissions did not trigger the need
fora PSDr permit: Consequently, the DENR issued an Air Quality
Construction Permit for the Big Stone AQCS Project onJanuary 6, 2012:

The EPA is developing NSPS for GHGs from electric generating tinits.
The EPA proposed a rule on April 13, 2012 that would require certain
newfossil fuel generating plants to meet a CO, output basad standard.
Unlike traditional NSPS rules, the proposed GHG NSPS would riot apply
tomodifications at existing units. It is expected that EPA will issue 3 final
rulesin the first half of 2013:

After EPA develops the NSPS, it is-anticipated that the EPA will work
towards issuing emission guidelinesforexisting sources under CAA
Section M) (T(d) Standard). A 111{d) Standard, unlike the NSPS;
applies to anexisting source. States are giver a period of ima to develop
plans to implementa T11(d) Standard, and:if a state does net develop
such a plan; the EPA will prescribe a plan for that state, A "standard of
performance” is defined as:

astandard for emissions of air pollutants which reflects the degree of

ernission limitation achievable through the application of the best system

of emission reduction which (taking inte account the cost of achieving siich
reduction-and any non air quality healfth and environmental impact and
energy requirements) the [EPA] Administrator determines has been
adequately demonstrated.

Both NSPS and 111(d) Standards involve development of “standards of
performance,” but the 111(d) Standard also requires the EPA to consider,
“among other factors, remaining useful lives of the sources in the
category of sources to which such standard applies.” In general, the

standards ultimately developed are more stringent for new sources than

for existing sources because existing source standards needto consider

theissues involved in retrofitting plants-considering what can be achieved
under theirexisting design. The standards also need to be capable of
attainmmient across the category of sources regulated by the standard.

While the potential impact of a 111¢d) Standard on OTP's facilities is
notyet known; standards-of performance for GHGs, especially for existing
sourcas, are anticipated to focus on efficiency improvements rather than
add-on-controls, The cost of efficiency improvements that achieve
generation of the sameamount of power with less fuel used could be
offset in whole or in part:by reduced fuel costs.

Several states.and regional organizations are also developing, or
already have developed, state-specific or regional legislative initiatives to
reduce GHG emissions through mandatory programs. in 2007, the state
of-Minnesota passed legislation regarding renewable snergy portfolio
standards that will require retail electricity providers to obtain 25% of
the electricity sold to Minnasota customers - from renewable sources by
thetyear 2025 The Minnesota legislature set-a January 1, 2008 deadline
forthe MPUC to establish an estimate of the likely range of costs of future
COy, regulation-on electricity generation. The legislation alsoset state
targets for reducing fossil fuel use, included goals for reducing the state's
output ot GHGs, and restricted importing electricity that would contribute
tostatewide power sector CO5 emission: The MPUC, in'its order dated
December 21, 2007, established an estimate of future CO, regulation
costs at betveen $4/ton and $30/ton emitted in 2012 and after, However,
annual updates of the range are required, and for 2012 and 2013 the
range was revisedto $9<$34/ton, and the start date to begin-using CO,
costs inresource planning decisions was moved from: 2012 to 2077

The states of North Dakota and South Dakota currently have no proposed
or pending legislation related to the regulation of GHG emissions, but
North Dakota and South Dakota have 10% renewable energy objectives.

White the eventual outcome of proposed and pending climate change
legislation and GHG regulation’is unknown,; OTP is taking steps to reduce
its carbor footprint and mitigate levels of ,CG,{ emitted-in the process of
generating-electricity forits customers through the followinginitiatives:
@-Supply efficiency and reliability: Between 1990 and 2012, OTP

decreasedits CO, intensity Ubs. of COy/megawatt-hour generated)

by nearly 25%. :

@ Conservation: Since 1992 OTP has helped our customers conserve
over 500 MW ofidemand-and rearly 2.5 million cumulative megawatt-
hours of electricity. Thatis roughly equivalent to the amount of
electricity that 189,000 average homes would have used in a year.
OTP continues to educate customers about energy efficiency and
demand-side management-and to work with regulators to develop
new programs, OTP's 2011-2025 IRP calls for an additional 70 MW of
conservation impacts by 2025,

@ Renewableenergy:Since 2002, OTF's customers have beenable to
purchase T00% of their electricity fromwind generation through
OTP's TallWinds program. 40.5 MW of purchased power agreament
windprojects and 138 MW of owned wind resources have beerion
line since Decemnber 2009 for serving OTP's customers,

@ Other: OTP will continue to participate as a member of the EPAS 5F6
(sulfur hexafluoride) Emission Reduction Partnership for Electric Power
Systerms program. The partnership proactively is targeting areduction
i emissions of SF6;a potent GHG. SF6 has a-global-warming potential
23,900 times that of CO»-Methane has a global-warming potential
over 20 times that of CO,. OTP participates in carbon seguestration
research through the Plains CO4 Reduction Partnership (PCOR)
through the University of North Dakota's Energy and Environmental
Research Center. The PCOR Partnership is‘a collaborative effort of
approximately 100 public and private sector stakeholders working
toward @ better:understanding of the technical and economic feasibility
ot capturing and storing anthropogenic CO» emissions from stationary
sources in the central interior of North America.
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bject toregulation imder Subtitle Cof RORACSubtitle C
e FPAS havardous waste regulatory brograny which
handiing, transport and disposal obwastes:

i atea new category of special waste Under
Subiitie Craothat wauld not be classified ashazardous waste,
bt would basubisett ool the regulatory fequiirements applicable
to barardoiiswaste: This optionawould subject coal ash totechmical and
gwm‘iﬂ:' ihg reauivernents fram the pointof generation tafinal disposal.
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thyesction closure of units, and post-closure care. This
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f)pt‘m alsoincldes potentigl reguirements fordant safety and stability
for surface impoundrhents Jand disposal restrictions, reatment standards
for coalash, anda prohibition on the disposal of freated coal ashbelow
thie naturalwater table: Beneficial resuses of coal ash would not be subject
1o thiese reguirements:

Underithe second proposed reguwtery option, the EPA would regulate
this disposal of coal ash under Subtitle D of RCRA, the regulatory program:
for nan-hazardous solid wastes, o this option; the ERPA s considering
isstiing national minimum criteria to ensure the sate disposaliokcoal ash
whichwanld sublect-disposatunits to-location stardards, composite lingr
raquirsments, grourdwater monitoring and corrective action standirds
for releases, clostreand post-closure carerequiraments, and reguivements
o address the stability of surlace impaundmants, Within this option, the
EPA‘isalso considedng notrequiring sxisting surface impoundinents te
closeorinstall cornposite ame;s and aiiewmg them te continue o operate
for theirtsetul life

This option would not regulate the generation; atcmg@ or treatment
ot doal ashpriorto disposal; and no Tederal permits would be required.
EPAsproposal also states that the EPATS m:,ens%»:ierirzg whether tolist coal
ash-as ahazardous substance under ths Comprehensive Envirgnmantal
Response; Compensabion, and Liability Act-andincludes proposals tor
alternative methods fo-adjust the statutory reportableguantity for cosl
ash. The EPA Ras not-decided which regulatory approach it will take with
respect to the management and disposal of coal ash.

While additional requirements may bedmposed-as partof the EPAs
pending rule that could increase the capital and operating costs ot QTP
facilities; identification of specific costs would be contingent o the
requirements of the final rute, The most costly option in the EFA proposal

is the option that would regulate all coal ash destined for disposalas
special waste. Forexample, under thisoption; OTP estimates an annual
costofapproximately: $5.75 millionat s Big Stone PlantiFthe £PA
chooses the other option; it would Impose less cost thian this estimg
Is also passibledhat the new regulations would ot fec;m@ chang
sutrent operationand cost of OTP's coal ash disposal sites:

Atthe teguest of the Minnesota Pollution Contral Agency {MBCAD,
(VTP hasan m?g:f:o‘i*;f investigation atits former, closed Moot Lake F‘?;as" §
ash digposal sites. The MPCA continues to monitor site activities unde
their Voluntary investigation and Cleanup Program, QTP provided s
revised focus feasibility study forrermediation alternatives to the MPCAIn
October 2004:OTF and the MPCA have reached an-agresmentidentifying
the remediation technology and OTP completed the projects in 2006,
The effectiveness of the remediationisunder ongoing evaluation:

The EPA has promulgated various solid and hazardous waste regulations
and glidelines pursuant to, amang other laws, the Resource Congervation
and:Recovery Act of 1976, the Solid Waste Disposal Act Amendmients of
1980 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984, which
provide for, among other things, the comprehensive control of various
solidand hazardous wastes from generation todinal disposal, The stat
of Minrgsota: North Dakota and South Dakota have also adopted rul
and regllations pertainingto solid and hazardous waste: To date, |
has incurred no signiticant costs asa result of these laws: The future
totalimpact on OTR ol the various solid and hazardous waste statutes
andiregulations enacted by the federal government or the states of
Minneseta, North Dakota and South Dakota is not cerfaimat this time,

1980, the United States enacted the Comprehensive Environimeantal
Respons mpensation and Liabibty Act, commoniy known.as the
Federal Superfund faw, which-was reauthorized and amended in 1986
1983 Minvesota adopted the Minnesata Environmental Response
and Liabiity: Aoty commanly known as the: Minnesota Superfunddaw o
1988, South [akots enacted the Regulated Substance Discharges Act,
commonly known as the South Dakota Superfund law. n 1989, North
Dakotaenacted the Environmental Ermergency Cost Recovery Act: Arpony
ather requiremients, the federal and state acts establish environmental
responsetunds topay forremedial actions associatedhwith the raloss
threstetied reléaseof cettain regulated substarices into the envirariment:
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These federal and state Superfund laws also establish liability for cleanup
costs and damage to the environment resulting fromsuchrelease or
threaténedrelease of regulated substances: The Minnesota Superfund
law also creates liability for personal injury and economic loss under
certain circumstances. OTP hasnotincurred any significant costs to
date related to these laws. OTP is not présently named as a poteritially
responsible party under the federal or state Superfund laws.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

OTPis cortinually-expanding, replacing and improving its electric
facilities. During 2012, approximately $102 milliofyin cash was.invested
for additions-and replacements to its electric utility properties: During
the five years ended December 31,2012 gross electric property additions,
including construction wark in progress, were approx‘ mately $495 million
and grossretirements were appmx;mateiy .‘558 million: OTP estimates
that during the-five-year perxod 2013-2017 it will invest approximately
811 million for electric construction, which includes $247 millionfor OTP's
share of a new Big Stone Plant AQCS and $348 million for transmission
projects inchuding $253 million for MVPs and-$45 million for CapX2020
transmission projects, excluding $20 million for the Brockings to
Southeast Twin Cities CapX2020 MVP project, included in the $253 million
above. The remainder of the 2013-2017 anticipated-capital expenditures
is for.asset replacements, additions and improvements across OTP's.
generation; transmission, distribution and general plant:

FRANCHISES

At Dicember 31 2012:0TP had franchises to operate as an.electricutility
in all but eneincorporated municipality that it serves: Allfranchises are
nonexclusive and generally were obtained for 20-year terms; with varying
expiration dates. No franchises are required to serve unincorporated
communities in any of the three states that OTP serves: OTP believes
that its franchises will be renewed prior fo'expiration

EMPLOYEES

At Decembsr 31, 2012 OTP had 663 equivalent full-time employees:
Adotal 6F393 OTP emplovees are represented by local-unions of the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers under two separate
contracts expiring inthe fall of 2013 4nd 2014, OTP has not experienced
any strike, work stoppage orstrike vote, and considers its.present
relations with-employees to be good.
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GENERAL

Manufacturing consists of businesses engaged:in the following activities:
contractmachining, metal parts stamping and fabrication, and production
of material handling trays and horticultural containers.

The Company derived 24%; 23% and 20% of its consolidated operating
revenues from the Manufacturing segment for each of the three years
ended December 312012, 201 and 2010, respectively: Following is:a
brief description of each of these businesses:

BTD Manufacturing, Inc. (BTD), with headquarters locatedin Detroit
Lakes, Minnesota;is a metal stamping and tool and die:manufacturer
that provides its services mainly to customers inthe Midwest, BTD
stamps; fabricates, welds and laser cuts‘metal components:according to
manufacturers’ specifications primarily for the recreational vehicle,
agricultural fawrr and garden, industrial equipment, health and fitness
and enclosure industries in its facilities in Detroit Lakes, Otsego and
Lakeville, Minnesota. BTD's location in Washington, llinois manufactures
and fabricates parts for off-road equipment, mining machinery, oil fields
and-offshore oil rigs, wind industry components; broadcast antehnae
and farm equipment, and serves several major equipment manufacturers
in the Peoria, Hllinois area and nationwide, including Caterpillar, Kormatsu
and Gardner Denver.

T.0: Plastics, Ine {TO.: Plastics), located in Otsego and Clearwater,
Minnesota:manufactures and sells thermoformed products for the
horticulture industry throughout the United States: In addition, T.O: Plastics
produces products such as clamshell packing, blister packs, returnable
pallets and handling trays for shipping and storing odd-shaped or
difficult-to-handle parts for other industries.

COMPETITION

The various markets inwhich the Manufacturing segment entities compete
are characterized by interise competition from both foreign and domestic
manufacturars. These markets have many established manufacturers with
broader product lines, greater distribution capabilities, greater capital
resOUrces, excess capacity, labor advantages and larger marketing,
research and development staffs and facilities than the Company's
manufacturing entities:

The Comipany believes the principal competitive factors inits
Manufacturing segment are product performance, quality, price;
technical innovation, cost effectiveness; customesr service and breadth of
productdine. The Company's manufacturing entities intend to-continue
to compéte on the basis of high-performance products; innovative
production technologies, cost-effective manufacturing techniques,
close customer relations and support, and increasing product offerings.

RAW MATERIALS SUPPLY

The companies in the Manufacturing segment use raw matenals in the
products they manufacture, including steel, aluminum and Polystyrene
(PSYyand other plastics resing. Both pricing increases and availability of
these raw materials are concerns of companies.in the Manufacturing
segment. The compantesin the Manufacturing segment attempt 1o pass
increases in the costs of these raw materials on to theircustomers,
Increases inthe costs of raw materials that cannot be passedionto
custormers could have a negative effect on profit margins in the
Manufacturing segment,

BACKLOG
The Manufacturing segrment has backlog inplace to support 2013 ravenues
of approximately $124 miflion compared with $115 million one yearago.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital expenditures in the Manufacturing segment typically include
additional investments innew manufacturing equipment or expenditures

“to replace worn-out tmanufacturing equipment. Capital expenditures may

also be made for the purchase of land and buildings for plant expansion
and for Investments in management information systems, During 2012,
cash expenditures for capital additions in the Manufacturing segrment
were approximately $9 million. Total capital expenditures for the
Manufacturing segment during the five-year period 2013-2017 are
estimated to beapproximately $73 million.

EMPLOYEES

At Decembier 31, 2012 the Maﬂufacturmg segment had 980 fuli-lime
employees. There are 829 full-time emplcyees at BTD and 151 fulltime
employessat T.0; Plastics.

CONSTRUCTIO

P R R e s LR s B
W8 R N E DR ES AR e
IEREEE TSI R AR TR

wev

¥

FES S EEEER IR A LA O HEIRRL D25 9 FF LR E T SRR
HERE L EIAHNCEAFSEIERLDLRBLLLLASEHRNED FR A F AT § &
G A KA ETRRDERCHSSE SO ERVEARF LR ERA NAN B OO N DY

wes

GENERAL

Construction consists of businesses involved in commercial and industrial
slectric contracting and construction of fiber optic and electric distribution
systerns, water, wastewater and HVAC systems primarily inthe central
United States:

The Company derived 17%, 22% and 19% of its consolidated operating
revenues from the Construction segment for each of the years ended
December 31, 2012, 201 and 2010, respectively. Following is a brief
description of the businesses included in this segment:
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Folev Can ﬁ;‘kmz}l (Foleyy headavartered in Kangag City, Missouri; provides
Fprimeconteaching sevvices forwaterahdiwastewater
power generation plants; hospitaband pharmaceutical
swustral and tranufacturing projects acrosy
ﬁ\uiix state service area v the United States:

Aevehia, fhe (Aevenial-located in Moorhead, Minnesota; has divisions
thatprovide a tull spectram ofelectrical design and construction setvices
forthe indusirial commercial and municipal business
govérnmmntzmshiiotional utility communications and electr digtribition
i%‘iﬁ‘M?&TiT ON
oftheconstrichion Companies issubject to mm@eti%iaw aswellas
algeneraletonomic conditions i thelr respective disciplines
sphic-lozativns. The tonstruction csmmém,i&g st cormpete
constrachion companles primartly i the Upner Mitwest and
shregions of the Unlted States Aincluding companies with greater
s wwhen bidding oncnew projects: The Compiany believes
i gef clors m the Construction segment are price;

BACKEOE
The cotistriction comipanies have backlog in place of $151
compiared With $106 million ohe vear ago.

million for 2013

CAPITALEXPENDITURES

Capital expendifures inthis segment typically include investiments in
sdditional constructioneg
capita

ment. During 2012, cashexpenditures for
aladlditions in the Construction segmient were apbrokimatsly

oG a;w‘e)\peﬁmﬁ,sres during the five-yaar period 2013:-2017 ars
wgtedto be approvimately $12 million for the Corstruction segment.

time employees in the
Y has 2{}3 em,}k;yee:: represented by various
uding Carpenters and Millwrights, Sheet Metal Workers,
)q;%rmm’s, ft?;{;%éfg’tiﬁg Enginesrs, Pipe Fitlars; Steamfitters,
anisters: Foley has several labor contracts with various
%~~ =11l employees, and 200400 sinployess, amd
¥ overng two employess that expires on-May 31,2017
Foleyhas riot-experiencad any strike work stoppage or strike vote and
gonsiders s present relalions with employees to begnod.

eHT 1% ofits conss ,agted apefat:ng revenues §r< mthe §~ iaai ics
sach ot the three vears ended December 31, 2012, 207 and
Urrespectively Bollowing tsa brief description of Yhf}f@ buginesges:

Mﬁ??i’mf‘ﬂ ?*ég}ﬁz @r@sjaﬁ& ine (Northern Pipe), locatedin Farge; North

rid seils PVC pipe for municipal water, fural water,

dinage systemsand otheruses inthe northers,
arrepions of the United States as wellas central and

i facilities are focated in Fargo, North Daketa,

Minyitech Copporation {X«‘is‘:y}mvh) lncatadin-Phoenix; Arizona,
rianifacturesand selis PNE pipe for municipal watar wastewater water
ecianiation systems and other uses in the western, southwastern snd:
sonithecentralragions obthe United States:

Towether these companies havethe current capacity &0 produce
approgioately 300 mllion pounds of PYC pipe annnally;

markets, including -

CUSTOMERS

PV Cpipe productsare marketed through a combination of independant
salesrepresentatives; company salespersons and customer service

representatives: Custormers:for the PVQ pipe products consist primarily

af-wholesalers and distributors throughout the upper midwwsi

sotithwestand western Umt@d ‘}tatws E

COMPETW’!ON
Theplastic pipe industry s fragmented and competitive; due o the
nurmberof producers; the small numberof raw material supplicrs and
the fungible nature ofthe product; Due 1o shipping costs; compelition
usually regional instead of national in scope. The principal areas of
competitionare s combination ol price, service warranty and product
performance. Northers Pipe and Vinyltech compete not only against
other plastic pipe emm;a{:tur@rs i::ai also c&;sctsifs iron, steel concrele
andiclay pipe producers. P*mng pressure will continue to affect aperating
roarging inthe future.
Northerny Pipe and Vinyltech intend to continueto compete on the

vasisoftheic high guality products, cost-effective production tec
and close customerrelations and support

MANUFACTURING AND RESIN SUPPLY
PVCipipe is manufactured through a process known as extrusion. Durig
the production process, PVC compound (a dey powder-like substarice)
is introduced into an extrusion machine, where it is heated toa molten
state and then forced through a sizing apparatus to produce the pipe. 1
The newly extruded pipe s ther pulled through s series of water conling
tanks, marked toidentify the type of pipe and cutto finished lengths
Warehouse and outdoorstorage facilities aré used to stare the fings Jhm
productinventoryis shipped from storage to distributors and customers
mialndy by common carrier.

The PVC resing are acguired inbualk arxd shippedtopoint pluse by rail
car. There are a limited nuraber of third party vendors thal supsly the
BV resin used by Northern Pipe and Vinyltech, Twovendors provided
approdirnatelyR0% and 87% of total vesinpurchases in 2012 and 201
respactively The supply of PVCrresin may also be limited primarnily dug
to manufacturing capacity and the limited availability oFraw material
components. Almiajority of WS resin production plants are locatedin
the Guit Coastreglon which s subject to risk of damageto the plants
and potential shutdown of resin production because of expusure to
hurricanes that occur inthat part of the United ‘itate; Theloss of akey
vendor, or any interruption or delay inthe supply of PV& resin, could
disriipt the ability of the Plastics segment to manufacture products;
cause customers 1o cancel orders or require incurrence of additional
gxpenses to obtain PV Cresin frommaltétnative sources if such sources
were available: Both Northern Pipe and Vinyltech belleve they have good
relationships with thelr keviraw material vendors,

Duetothe commuodity nature of PVC resin and PV pipg and the
dynamic supply and demand factors worldwide, historically the markets
for both PVE resineand PVC-pipe have been very cychicabwith significant

fluctuations in prices and gross margins.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ;

Capitat expendituresinthe Plastics segment typically Include investiments
in extrusion:machines landand bulldings and management information
systems: During 2012, cash expenditures for capital additions in the
Plastics segment were approximately $3 million. Total capital
expandituresfor the fivesyear period 2013-2017 are estimated o be
appraximately $10:milliornto replace existing equipmient.

EMPLOYEES

At Decerber 312012 the Plastics segmient had W2 fulltime smployees:
Northiern Pipe had 91 full-time mplovees and Vinyitech had 51 fulldtime
amployessas ot December 31, 2012,



ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
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RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Our businesses aresubject to various risks and uncertainties. Any of the
risks described below or elsewhere in this Annual Report onForm 10-K
or in ourother SEC filings could materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

GENERAL
federal and state environmental regulation could require us to incur
substantial capital expenditures and increased operating costs.
We are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations relating to air quality, water quality, waste management,
natural resources and health safety. These laws and regulations regulate
the modification and operation of existing facilities, the construction and
operation of new facilities and the proper storage; handling, cleanup and
disposal of hazardous waste and toxic substances. Compliance with these
legal requirernents requires us to commit significant resources and funds
toward environmental monitoring, installation and operation of pollution
control equipment, payment of emission fees and securing environmental
pérmits: Obtaining environmental permits can-entailsignificant expense
and cause substantial construction delays. Failure to comply with
environmental laws and regulations, even if caused by factors beyond
out control, may result in civil or criminal liabilities, penalties and fines.
Existing environmental laws or regulations may be revised and new
laws or regulations may be adopted or-become applicable to us: Revised
or additional regulations, which result in increased compliance costs or
additional operating restrictions, particularly if those costs are-niot fully
recoverable from customers, could have a material effect on our results
of operations.

Volatile financial markets and changes in our debt ratings could restrict
our ability to access capital and increase borrowing costs and pension
plan and postretirement health care expenses,

We rely oh access to both short- andfong-term capital markets as a
source of liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by cash flows
from operations. {Fwe are unable to access capital at competitive rates,
our ability to implement our business plans may be adversely-affected.
Market disruptions or a downgrade of our credit ratings may increase
the cost of borrowing or adversely affect our ability to access one or
more financial rarkets.

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the financial markets can also
adversely impact our results of operations, the ability of customers to
finance purchases of goods and services, and our financial condition, as
well as exert downward pressure on stock prices-and/or limit-our abiity
to sustain our current common stock dividend level.

Changes in the U.S. capital markets could also have significant effects
on our pension plan, Our pension income or expense is-affected by factors
including the market performance of the assets in the master pension
trust maintained for the pension plan for some of our employees, the
weighted average asset allocation and long-termrate of return ofour
pension plan assets, the discount rate used to determine the service and
interest cost components of ournet periodic pension cost and assumed
rates of increase in our employees’ future compensation. If our pension
plan assets do hot achieve positive rates of return, or if our estimates and
assumed rates are not accurate, our earnings may decrease because net
periodic pension costs would rise and we could be required to provide
additional funds:to cover ourabligations to employees under the
pension plan.

We made a-$10.0 million discretionary contribution to-our defmed
benefit pension-plan in January 2013 We could be required to contribute
additional capital to the pension plan in the future if the market value of
pension plan assets significantly declines, plan assets do not earn intine
with our long-term rate of return assumptions or relief under the
Pension Protection Act is no longer granted.

Any significant impairment of our goodwill would cause a decreasein
our asset values and a reductionin-our net operating income,

We had approximately $39.0 million of goodwill recorded on our
consolidated balance sheetas of December 31, 2012: We have recorded
goodwill for businesses in each of our business segments except Electric,
If we.maké changes inour business strategy or if market or other conditions
adversely affect operations in any of these businesses, we may be forced
to record-an impairment charge, which would lead to decreased assets
and a reduction in net operating performance. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate impairment may have occurred. If the testing performed indicates
that impairment has occurred, we are required to record an impairment
charge for the difference between the carrying amount of the goodwill
and the implied-fair-value of the goodwill inthe period the determination
is.rade. The testing of poodwill for impairment requires us to make
significant estimates about our future performance and cash flows,as
well as other assumptions, These estimates can-be affected by numerous
factors, including changes in economic, industry or market conditions,
changes in‘business operations; future business aperating performance,
changes in-competitionor changes in-technologies. Any changes:in key
assumptions, of actual performance compared with key assumptions,
about our business and its futiire prospects or other assumptions could
affect the fair value of one or more business segments, which may result
inanimpairment charge.

A sustained decling inour common stock price below bc;ok value or
declines in projected operating cash flows at-any:of our-operating
corhpanies may result in goodwillimpairments that could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial position; as well as
financing agreement covenants,

We currently have $7.3 million of goodwill and a $1.1 million indefirite-
lived trade name recorded on our consolidated balance sheet related to
the acquisition of Foley in 2003, Foley generated a large operating loss
in 2012 due to significant cost overruns on certain construction projects.
it operating marging do hot mest our projections, the reductions in
anticipated cash flows from Foley may indicate that its fair value is less
than its book value, resulting in an impairment of some or afl of the
goodwill and indefinite-lived trade name associated with Foley along
with'a corresponding charge against earnings:

The inability of oir subsidiaries to provide sufficient earnings and cash
flows to allow us to meet our financial obligations and debt covenants
and pay dividends to our shareholders could have an adverse effect on
the Company.

Otter Tait Corporationis ah Oidmg company with no significant operations
of.its own. The primaty source.of funds for payment of our financial
abligations and dividendsto our shareholders is from cash provided by
our subsidiary.companies:Our-ability to meet-our financial obligations
and pay dividends on our common stock principally depends on the actual
and projected earhings, cash flows; capital requirements and general
financial position of oursubsidiary companies, as well as regulatory
factors, financial covenants, general business conditions and-other matters.

Under our $150:million revolving credit agreement we may nol permit
the ratio of ourinterest-bearing Debt to Total-Capitalization to be
greater than 0.60 to 100 OTP may not permit the ratio of its Interest-
bearing Debt to Total Capitalization to be greater than 0.60 to 1.00
under its $170 million revolving credit agreement, Both credit agreements
contain restrictionson the payment of cash dividends upon a default-or
event of default. As of December 31, 2012 we were in compliance with
the debt covenants:

Under the Federal Power Act, a publicutility may.not pay dividends
from any funds propetly inchided in-a capital account. What constitutes
“funds properly included in a capital account” is undefined in the Federal
Power Act or the related regulations; however, FERC has consistently
interpreted the provision to allow dividends to be paid as long as (1) the
source of the dividends is clearly disclosed, (2) the dividend is not
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ssnogelizdesling on the partiofe ategticials
% tnits the amount of dividends OTR can pavious
vetostotalcapitalizationratio between 46 3% and
Aotalecapitalizationrativwas 52.0% as o

are not expected-to alfectourabilitytopay
selinthe foreseeable future thsretis no
aphlirance that adverge Hnandial resulbs would nat reduce or sliiminate
ourabilitytopay dividends: Our dividend payoutratio has Bitseded sur
parnings teachot the last five years.

&»ws}msa cenditions could negatively impact our busihesses.
areatfectad by local nationaband worldwid
ﬁés‘as’sg of crarj%t in f;namsa! matkets could a

g;agéé fﬂf{iéf:, itancé Hed or deferred on
ss andircreased bad debtand customerbank
: nay atso be adversely affectad by decre
gengratlevel ot economic activity, suchias decreasesin business and
¢ penthng Adechne i thelevel o? econoiic activiby and

I we ave unable to achiave the organic growth we expact; o findncial

performance may be adversely affected:

We sxpect mich of sur growth inthe vext few years will core from major
capitatingg tmm ate Mmg GO nizm: To ac?“w& ﬂw m“gm e gmw%h

denptiesin
carid adversely atfect
and sustainconsistent

tiveand economic ?ar:tm‘s
f WE are mai:rle o schi@v &

with a*ﬂg rasuitsﬂg m;,acat onour m‘t o qmwth,
elyatfect ‘i’e tnarket price of our corarfion shares,

fayadve

Ourplanstogrow az’e;ﬁ realion our business mix through capital projects,
acquisitions aid dispesitions may not be stccesshul, which tould resutt
trpoor financial performance:
A partiol durbusiness srategy weintendtoincrease capitabexpenditures
v ohieexisting busing nd to continually assess ot mixof businesses
s patential samstm; quisitions or dispositions. There areitisks
\swmmm with capital expenditures including not being granted fimely
ovfull recovery of tate base additions inourt (‘,@L ilated utility business
andthe m:m:é Wy to racover the costofcapital-additions die o an eConomic
downtorn lack ot markets for sew products; mmpét ition fromuproducers
at lower cost op alternativeproducts, product defscts orloss of clistomers;
We sy notbe able to identity appropriate sequisition candidatesor
ﬂ; 'swgcg’t’iaie Hnanis o integrate acoulst i {ons, Futiire axq»z sitions
faumerous visks including difficultiesin in ating the
ices products and personnel of theeacquired business;
falloss ofkey emplovess, customers and suppliers ot 4 %
pass e are unableto successtullyan
wchionsinnetincomein tuttire parivds

yariagsthese risks,

Weomay, Trom time to e, sell assets to provide capital o fund
investinents in our electic ulility business or for other corporate
purposes, which could vesilt in the recognition of aloss onthegals of
any assels sold and other potential llabilities. The sale of any of out
husinesses alse exposes us to additional risks assaciated with
indemnification obligations under the applicable asaa!em agmemems
andd any m atmﬂ d:sputm

Sless stvategy we cortinually. agsess our busingss
to determine Hour operaling companies continge to mest oy
Hollo erlteria A1oss on the sale of o business would be recognized it

a company s soldtor tess than its book value:

tiycartain transactions we retain obligationgs that have arisen, or
subsequently arise, out ofolr candiict of the business prior o the sale:
Thase obligations are sometimes direct or, in other cases, Yakéthe foris
of aviinderanificetion obligation to'the buyer These obligationsinclide
suchthings as warranty; énvironmental; and in the Case of ShoreMaster
the collection ol certainracetvables: Unforeseen costs relatod to these
abligations could result in futire losses related to the business sold,

Qur plans to grow and operate our manufacturing amd nfrasteuciure
businesses could be lmited by state faw.

Cuir plansto groweand operate ourmanufactucing and infrastuctore
busingsses could beadversely atfected by legislabioninohs ormo
states that may attempt o limit the amount or level of diversification
permitted In & holding company structure that includes a regulatd
atility company or afflisted rionslectiic companies.

Significant warranty claims and remadiation costs in excess of
amounts normally reserved for such items could adversely atfect our
rasults of operations and financisl condition.
Depending onthe specific product or service, we provide certain warranty
terms against manufacturing defects and certain materials: We reserve
for warrahty claims based on industry experience and estimates imade by
managerment, For some of our products we have limited history on'which
to base-our warranty estimate. Our assumptions could be materially
different from’any actualclaimand could excesd teserve balantes
Expenses acscc‘ated with remediation activities ot DML our fam":w
wind tower manufacturer; could be substantial The potentialexis
il ;mﬁ claims based on one defect repeated throughout the mdv
process or for clalms where the cost to repair or replace the defestive
partis ?igif} y disproportionate to the original cost of the part I we are
required to cover remediation expenses in additionto ourtesular warkanty
coverage, wecould berequired to acorue additional expenses and
experience additional unplanned cash expenditures whichcould :sc;wrgéziy
affect our consolidated results of {}paratsf:ms and financial conditio

Weare subject to risks associated with energy markels.
Ourbusinesses are subject fothe risks associated with anergy markets,
inclading market supply and increasing energy priced 1 we ares facedwith
shortagesinmarket supply we may be tnable to fulfill our contractual
obligations to our retail, wholesale and other custamers at previousty
anticipated:-costs: This could force us to obtain alternative energy ot fusl
supplies-at-higher costs or sutferincreased Hability for usfulfilled
cofitractual obligations. Any:significantly higher than expected enerey or
uslhcosts would negatively-atfect our financial performance:

We are subject to visks and uncertainties related to the timing of
recovery of defetred ta assets which could Have a negative impact on
ourmel income in future pevieds,
if taxable income s not generatedin future periods incertaim tax
urisdictions the recovery of deferred taxes relateddo accumulated tax
beazef tsmay be delayed and we may be required 1o ?&C{’fflﬁ Sarve
relatad to the uncertginty of the timing of tecovery ol defarred tax
refated toaccumulated mxatzi losses inthose tax jurisdictions: Thiy
would have a mgarx\m ton the:Company’s net incoms inthe
periadthe rogerieis remmtj@d

We rely on ourinformation systems to condiict our business, and failure
to protect these systems against security breaches could adversely
affect our business and results of operations. Additionally, if these
systems fail or become unavailable for any significant per cw! of ime;
our business could be harmed.

Theefficient operation of our business is dependent on computer
hardware and software systems: Information systems arevidierablete
security breach by computer hackers and eyber terrorists We ralvion
industry actepted security measureés and technalogy to aly riaintain




confidential-and proprietary information maintained on our information
systems: However, these measures and technology may not-adequately
prevent security breaches: Inaddition, the unavailability of the information
systems or failure of these systems to perform as anticipated for any
reason could disrupt our business-and could resuttiin decreased
performiance and increased overhead costs; causing our business and
results of operations to suffer. Any significant interruption or failure of
our information systems or any significant breach of security could
adversely affect our business and results of operations,

ELECTRIC

We may experience fluctuations in revenues and expenses related to our
electric operations, which may cause our financial results to fluctuate
and could impair our ability to make distributions to shareholders or
seheduled payments onour debt obligations; or to meet covenants
undér our borrowing agreements:

Amnumber of factors, many of which are beyond our control, may
contributeto fluctuations in our-revenues and expenses from electric
operations, causing our net income to fluctuate from period to period.
These risks include fluctuations in the volume and price of sales of
electricity to customers or other utilities, which may be affected by factors
such as mergers and acquisitions of other utilities, geographic location
of other utilities, transmission costs (including increased costs related to
operations of regional transmission organizations), changes in the manner
in which wholesale power is sold and purchased, unplanned interruptions
at OTP's generating plants, the effects of regulation and legislation,
demographic changes in OTP's customer base and changes in OTP's
customer demand or load growth. Electric wholesale margins have bieen
significantly and adversely affected by increased efficiencies in the MISO
market. Electric wholesale trading margins could also be adversely
affected by losses due to trading activities. Other risks include weather
conditions or changes in weather patterns (including severe weather
that could result in damage to OTP's assets), fueland purchased pover
costs and the rate of economic growth or declinein OTP's service areas.
A decrease inrevenues or an increase in expenses related to our electric
operations may reduce the amount of funds available for our existing
andfuture businesses, which could result in increased financing
requirements, impair our ability to make expected distributions to
shareholders orimpair our ability to make scheduled payments.on our
debt obligations, or to meet covenants under our borrowing agreermerits,

Actions by the regulators of our electric operations could result in rate
reductions, lower revenues and earnings or delays in recovering capital
expenditures.

We are subject to federal and state legislation, government régulations
and regulatory actions that may have a negative impact on'our busiress
and results of operations. The electric rates that OTP ig allowed to
charge for its electric services are one of the most importantitems
influencing our financial position; results of operations and liguidity. The
rates that OTP charges its electric customers are subject fo review and
determination by state public utility commissions{n' Minnesota; North
Dakota and South Dakota: OTP s also regulated by the FERC. Anadverse
decision by one or more regulatory commissions concerning the level or
method of determining electric utility rates, the authorized returns.on
equity, implementation of enforceable federal reliability standards or other
regulatory matters, permitted business activities (such as ownership or
operation of nonelectric businesses) or any prolonged delay inrendering
a decision in a rate or other proceeding (including with respect tothe
recovery of capital expenditures in rates) could result in lower réevenues
and net incormie.

Depending onthe outcome of the challenges at the 7th Circuit LLS.
Court of Appeals, OTP could be required to absorb a disproportionate
share of costs for transmission investments if the MISO MVP cost
allocation changes. These costs may not be recoverable through a
transmission tariff and could result in reduced returns on invested
capital and/or increased rates to OTP's retail electric customers,

OTP's electric generating facilities ave subject to operational risks that
could result in unscheduled plant outages, unanticipated operation and
maintenance expenses and increased power purchase costs.

Operation of electric gengrating facilities involves risks which can adversely
affect'energy output and etficiency levels. Most of OTP's generating
capacity is coal-fired, OTP relies on a limited number of suppliers of coal,
making it vulnerable to increased prices for fuel as existing contracts
expire or in the event of unanticipated interruptions in fuel supply. OTP
is a captive rail shipper of the BNSF Railway for shipments of coal toits
Big Stone and Moot Lake plants; making it vulnerable to increased prices
for coal transportation froma sole supplier Higher fuel prices resultin
higher slectric fates for OTP's retail customers through fuel clause
adjustments and-could make it less competitive in wholesale electric
markets. Qperational risks also include facility shutdowns due to
breakdown or failure of equipment or.processes, labor disputes, aperator
error and catastrophic events such as fires, explosions; floods, intentionsl
acts of destruction or othersimilar occurrences affecting OTP's electric
generating facilities: The loss of amajor generating facility would require
OTP:to find other sources.of supply, ifavailable, and exposeit-to higher
purchased power costs.

Changes to regulation of generating plantemissions,including but not
limited to CO, emissions, could affect our operating costs and the
costs of supplying electricity to our customers.

Existirig or new laws or regulations passed or issued by federal or state
authorities addressing climate change orreductions of greenhouse gas
emissions, such as mandated levels of renewable generation, mandatory
reductions in COy emission levels; taxes on COy emissions or cap-and
trade regimes; could require ustoincur significant new costs; which could
negatively impact ournet.income, financial position and operating cash
tlows if such costs cannot bie recovered: through rates granted by
raternaking authorities in the states where OTP provides service orthrough
increased market prices for electricity. Debate continues i Congress on
the direction and scope of U.S. policy on climate change and regulation
of GHGs. Congresshas considered but-has notadopted GHG legistation
which would require a reduction in GHG emissions and thergis no
legistation under active consideration at this time: The likelihood of any
federal mandatory €05 emissions reduction prograrm being adopted by
Congress inthe nearfuture; andthe specific requirementsof any such
program; are uncertain: The EPA has begunto regulate GHG emissions
underits "endangerment” finding: The EPA has adopted its first GHG
ernission control rules for motor vehicles and new source review of
stationary sources of GHGs, which became applicable to. motor vehicles
and stationary sources, respectively, on January 2, 2011 The EPAis
developing standards for GHGs from electric generating units and
proposed a rule an April 13, 2012 that would require certain new fossil fuel
generating plants to meet a CO, output based standard. Unlike traditional
NSPS rules; the proposed GHG NSPSwould notapply to modifications
at existing units. bisexpected that EPA will issuea final rule irvthefirst
Falt-of 2013: Specific reguirements of regulation under the CAASvarious
programs; and this their impacton OTP; are-uncertain at thistime.

MANUFACTURING

Competition from foreign and domestic manufacturers, the price and
availability of raw materials and general economic conditions could af-
foct the revenues and earnings of our manufacturing businesses.

Our manufacturing businesses-are subject to intense risks associated
with competition from-foreign and domestic manufacturers, many of
whom have broader product lines; greater distribution capabilities,
greater capital resources, larger marketing; research and development
staffs and facilities and other capabilities that may place downward
pressure on marging and profitability. The companies in our Manufacturing
segment use a variety of raw materials in the products they manufacture,
including steel, aluminum and Polystyrene (PS) and other plastics resins.
Costs for these iterns have increased significantly and may continue to
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ot :"x"x&{miaﬁﬁir%ﬂg businesses argnpt dblétopassoncest
st thelr custoiners; ibcouldhave a negative effection profit
s naus Manufactuningsegments

Cachotiomrmanutasturing companies has significant cugtomergiand
concentrated seles to suchoctstorners: [Four relationships with-sighificant
s tornersshould ¢ pavaterially; it would be difficult to immediately
a.mfd preofitabily replace lost sales.

{5

CONSTRUCTION

Asignitficant failure oran inability to properly bid or perform onprojects or

contracts by our construction businesses could lead to adverse Hivandial

results and vould laad to the possibility of dalay or liguidated damages:

: rofitabiity ard success ot ourconstractioncompanies reguive us
ty, es?‘vvza& snd el bid oo profitable projects or vontracts:

zy atid-quality of projects up tor bid atany time s untertain.

\Ce  proct or contract s awarded, we mustbe able to

ithirrcost estimates that were setwhen the bidiwas subimitted

o Acsigniticantfallure or an Inability to properlvbid or

tear contracts could lead to adverse financial results

& pagsibility of delay or liquidated damages.

We enterdnto construction contracts which couldhexpose wgto
unféresean costs and costs not within our control, which may not be
recaverable and could adversely atfect ourresilts of operations and
finameial condition,

Outconsfrdction companies fregquently provide services pursuant to
fixadl-price contracts: Révenues recognized on'jobs ity progress under
fixedeprice contracts were $309 million at December 31 2012 and
R34% miltlice at December 31 2000 Underthose contracts, wesgree to
Grrpr the contract fora fixed price and, as a resoll, canimprove our
tedprolitby superor contract performance, productivity, worker
safety and other factors resulting in cost savings: However, we could
imcur costovermuns above the approved contract price; which maynot
ovarable:

aptractpricas areestablishied based largely on estimates
srelating to project scope andspecifications, personnel
neads, These estimates and assumptionsmay prove
eur conditions may change dueto factors out of gurcontral,
costioversing whichowe may be required toabsorb andthat
sclverse affect onour business, financial.condition
iong: I addition, our profits fromythese contracts
uldhexperience losses if we inclr difficulties in
parforming the contrac areunable to secure fixed-pricing
comsmitmenty fromisur supphers and subcontractors at the time we
anter intordigedsprice contiacts witheour customers,

mm restits m U 6]
could decrgase and we

BLASTICS
D plastics operations are nighly dépendent on a limited number of
vepdors for PYC resin and alimited supgly of PYC resin. The loss of a
kdyvendor or any intefniption or delay in the supply of PVC vesin, could
result in reduced sales grincreased costs for our plastics business.
Werely ort g dimited tumber of vendors to supply the PV fesin used in
B s Twovenders accounted for approximately B0% of
VO resimin 2012 and agpm}\ imately 97% ot our
Coreshin 2000 n addition, the supplyiot PV rasin
duetomanutacturing capatity andthe Hmi teﬁd
sty ot raw e sbeomponents A majority of U S resin praduction
: argdovatedi Gult Coastregion, whichmay incréase the risk
of ashortage of resine iy the event of o hurricane orather natural disaster
inthatregion: Theloss of akeyvendor-or any interription or delay inthe
availability o supphy ot PV resincould disruptour ability to deliver our
plasticprodusts) cansecistomers o cancelorders or reguire us Todnour
gdlditional expenses togotain PVC resin from alternative sourcas; 1f such
Saredvatlable
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We compete against a farge number of other manufacturers of PYC
pipeand manufacturers of alternative products: Customers may not
distingnish our products from those of cur competitors.
The'plastic pipeindusteyis fragmentedand cormpetitive due £o the number
of producersand the fungible hatureof the product: We compete not
onlyagainstother PVC pipe manufacturers; but also against ductile fron,
stesl concrete and clay:pipe manofacturers: Dug to shipping osts;
competitionds usually-regional instead of national i mp@, andthe
principal areas of comipetition area combination ot price; s
warranty, and product performance. Ourinability to compete effectively
in each of theseé areas and to distinguish our plastic pipe products from
competing products may adversely-affect the financial performance of
ourplastics business, :

Reductions i PYC resin prices can negatively affect our plastics business,
The PV pipe industry is highly sensitive to commodity ravwematerial
pricing volatility. Historically, whenresin prices are cisingor stable miarging
and sales volime have beerhigher and when resiriprices aredaling
sales volumes and marging have been lower. Reductions i PVE resin
prices could negatively affect PVC pipe prices, profit margingon PVC
pipesales and the value of ourfinished goods inventory.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
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None,

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES
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The Covote Station, which commenced operation in 1987, lsa-414,000
k\/\i (nameplate rating) minesmouth plantlecated o the lignite toal

jelds naar Beulah, North Daketa and is jointly owned by OTE Novtherm
Mmzcswi Power Agency, Montana-Dakota Utilities Coand Northw
Public Service Company. OTP igthe operating ag*aﬂt ;.Ief the Coyota Station
and owris 35% of the plant.

OTE jpintly with Northwesterr Public Service Company and Montana-
Dakota L ilities Co., owns the 414,000 kW {nameplate rating) Big Stane
Plant in northeastern-South Dakota which commaenced operation in 1975,
QTP is the operating agent of Big Stone Plant and owns 53.9% of the plant;

Located near Fergus Falls, Minnesota, the Moot Lake Plant s comprised
of three separate generating uhits: The oldest:Hoot Lake Plant generating
unit, constructed in 1948 (7,500 kW nameplate rating), was m:n,d on
Decembir 3l 2005, Asecond unit was added in 1959 (53,500 kW
natmeplate rating) and-athird unit was added in 1964 (75,000 kW
nameplate rating) and modified in 1988t provide cycling capability;
altowing this.unit to-be more efficiently: brought online fronva standby
mode. The two generating units in operation have a combined nameplate
rating of 128:500 kW,

OTPowns 27 wind turbines at the Langdon; North Dakata Wind Energy
Centerwith.a nameplate rating 0£40,500 kW, 32:wind tarbines 8t the
Ashtabula Wind Energy Centar located in'Barnes County, North Dakots
with arnameplate rating of 48,000 kW and 33 wind turbinesat the
Luverne Wind Farmrlocated inSteele County, North-Dakota with a
nameplaterating of 49,500 kW,

Asof December 31, 2012 OTP's transmission faciiities, which are

interconnected-with linesof other publicutilities, consisted of “a;« miles
of 345 kN lines; 487 miles of 230 lines; 862 miles ol 15 kY lines; and
3977 miles of lower voltage lines, principally 416 KV OTP owns the
uprated portion-of 48 miles of the 345 KV tines; with- Minnkota Power
Covperativeretaining tithe to'the original 230 KV construction: QTR
owng an undivided interast in the remaining 345 kV line miles.

In‘addition to the properties mentioned above, all of which are utilized
by the Eletiric segment; the: Company ownsand has investimentsin
officesignd service buildings utilized by -each of its manufacturing and
infrasteucture business sepreents: The Company's subsidiaries own
construction equipment; toolg and facilities andegaipment usedinithe

nanufactire 6f PVC pipe, thermolormad products, heavy mgtal fabricated




products, metal parts stamping, fabricating and contract machining.
Management of the Company believes the facilities and equipment
described above are adequate for the Company's present businesses:

lTEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is the subject of various pending or threatened legal
actions and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business: Such
matters are subject to many uncertainties and to outcomes that are not
predictable with assurance. The Company records a liability in‘its
consolidated financial statements for costs related to claims, including
future legal costs; settlements and judgments, where it has assessed
that a loss is probable and an amount can be reasonably estimated. The

Company believes the final resolution of currently pending or threatened

legal actions and proceedings, eitherindividually or inthe-aggregate, will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows:

ITEM 3A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

(AS OF FEBRUARY 27, 2013)
Set forth below is a summary of the principal occupations and business
experience during the past five years of the executive officers as defined
by rules of the SEC. Each of the executive officers has been employed by
the Cormpany for more than five years in.an executive or tnanagement
position either with the Compariy or its wholly.owned subsidiary, Otter
Tail Power Cormpany, or has served as a director on the Company's
Board of Directors.

Edward J. Mcikntyre (62) ' 9/8/1

George A, Koeck (60) 4/10/00
Kevin G. Moug (53) 4/9/01
Charles S. MacFarlane (48) 5/1/03
Shane N. Waslaski (37) 4/11/1

Present:

President and Chief Executive Officer

Senjor Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President

Senior Vice President; Electric Platform

Senior Vice President, Manufacturing-and Infrastructure Platform

Present:
Present:
Present:
Present:

...................................................................................................................................

On September 8, 2011, on the resignation of-John Erickson as President
and Chief Executive Officer, the Company's Board of Directors appointed
current director Edward J. (Jim) Mcintyre to serve as interim President
and Chief Executive Officer. On January 3, 2012, the Company's Board of
Directors appointed Mr. Meintyre to serve as permanent President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Mclntyre, 62, is retired Vice
President and former Chief Financial Officer of Xcel Energy, inc: He has
been a member of the Board of Diractors since 2006.

Mr. Waslaski has worked as a Vice President within the Company's
Manufacturing and Infrastructure platform since 2007 and became an
executive officer of the Company on April 11, 2011,

The term of office for each of the executive officers is one year and
any executive officer elected may be removed by the vote of the Board of
Directors at any time during the term. There'are no family relationships
between any of the executive officers or directors.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
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Not Applicable.

PART I

ITEM 5, MARKET FORTHE REGISTRANT’'S COMMON EQUITY,
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND I5SUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The Company’s comimon stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market under the NASDAQ symbol "OTTR”. The information required
by this Item can be found on Page 30 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

...............................................................................................

under the heading "Selected Financial Data/" on Page 71 under the
heading "Retained Earnings and Dividend Restriction” and on Page 83
under the heading “Supplementary Financial Information.” The Company
does not have a publicly announced stock repurchase program. In
addition; the Company did not repurchase any equity securities during
the thres months ended December 31,2012

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

This graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the
Company’s common shares for the last five fiscal years with the
curnulative return of The NASDAQ Stock - Market Index and the Edison
Electricinstitute Index (EED over the same period (assumirng the
investment of $100in each vehicle on December 31, 2007, and
reinvestment of all dividends):
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$ 10000 %7007 $ 7876 B 7573 - 782

NASDAQ " $7100.00 7% 6167 %8793 $ 10413 $ 10469 § 12385
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TEM 6. 5ELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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Bavenues
Elantric

i Raventes s intersegmint Eliminations
iR :
Natlncome fron Continaing Operations
Mot (Lose) come from i}zsf:mtmﬁetl Dperations
Netlhose) nstme
Flowe fram Continuing Operations
i Plov-~Continting and Discontinued Qpératio
‘ixﬁ&é&»ﬂ{@i’ﬁ{&u{ng i)peratu}r;s

Total
Long-Term *ﬁai‘ni
Bagic Eamings Per Share~Continuing Operations (O

&sz tted Barnings ?nr faézafﬂw{iﬂn%gmmg Operations (1)
Dituted Glossy BEarnings Per Shares=Total (1

Returnon MAverage Chmmon Equity

Dividends Declared Par Commmn Share

Dividerd Payout Ratio

Cornmon Shares Oulstandig—Year End

Wugither of Common Shareholders

B80,765
208,065
149,092
150,507 00 23,669
100y 3/&3)
59,239
A4 968
@441
(5275
168,986
233,547
115,762
1602337
421,680

“l84687

L1897
26750
T 628)
Ly
105934
105,017

587ea
1770558
430,807

1O0E 95 071
0D {0.40) €0.08)
1.08 0.95 0,71
{07 {0:40) (0.06)
{(10%: {23 0.33%
119 1.19

i : S s

1 68‘/0 309%

36,168 36,102 36,003 35,812 35,38%
14,584 . 14,687 v

14,848

TEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OFERATIONS
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turiities that will increass fahaféamidm value: Meeting
st preserve and enhance our financial

sired capitalization ratios arid 8 strong
sreserving investment grade cradit ratings
which; i the form of lower interest rates,
tomeryand shareholders
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: iprove ooy credit guality andpr
vidand, OvBriime we exizect the eiedr
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continge ta b o fundamental pdfi of ourstrategy.
: wzfﬁfmgrce atong wit ?ratez; base investmant

ageof
; iring-and
tibs %u §3¥{w§de {;n'gam::: growi’h aswell, Organie,
aewsproducts and services, markel expansio

Mo expect much of our growth in these
bitginesses i the nextfad swill comie from utilizing expanded plant
capacity frorh capital investments made in previous years, We will #lse
evaluate-apporhinitiestos capital to potential acquisitions in our
Marwata gagpment. We are a committed long-term owner and

i orewe do net acgiire companies in pursuit of shost-terny gains.

aticlicreaged ol

However, we will divest operating comipanies that no o
strategy and risk profile aver the long term:

We have worked 1o realign our portfolio of businesses and refocus o
capital investment in the electrdc utiity n 201 and 2012 wea sold several
busly 4 m execution of our announced stratepy. In 201 we sold ldakio
- ings Inc GPHD, our Food Ingredient Processing se

usinesy, and EW. Wlie Corporation {Wylie), aur imx.,k'ng Oy
w}nm was included in ourWind Energy segment. lo Januaey 2012 wesold
the assets of Aviva Sports, Inc (Aviva), a recreational eguipment
mgnutactirer and wholly owned:subsidiary ol ShoreMaster, e
(ShareMaster), our waterfront equipment manufacturer in Bebruary 2012
wi sold DMS Mealth Technologies, lne (DMS), our Health Services
segrient busingss, In Novermber 2012 we completed the sale of the as
at DMIndustries, tnc: (DM, our manutacturer of towers for witid turbing
and éxited the wind tower manufacturing business, In December »m;z
weentered into fegatiations to sell substantially all of the assets ¢
ShoreMaster and completed the sale on February 8, 2013 Ag a
these 2011, ‘7(} 2 and 2013 transactions; our busines s‘is Geture
includes Wind Energy, Health Services or Food Ingredient Pn} g
segmients, a Fd now includes the remaining four segments list

{vevaluating our-portiolio of operating companies, we look for tnu
f@%mwing characteri .

@ gthreshold levelof net eéxmingé and a rettirm on invested capital in

wicess of our weighted average cost of capital
% o sirategic differentiation from competitors and a sustainable cost

advardage,
2 gstable or growing Industry, /
# arability to-quickly adaptto Changing economic cycles, and
# i strong management team committed to operational excellence.

onger Hilinto our

Majorgrowth strategies and initiatives in our future include:
@ Plaringd capital budget expenditures of upto $906 million for the years
2013 through 2017, of which $811 million are for capital m‘;‘e‘%
Otter Tall Power Company (OTP), including $247 million foi




share of a new air quality control system at Big Stone Plant and
$348 million for anticipated expansion of transmission capacity
including $253 milliorr for MVPs and $45 million for CapX2020
transimission projects; excluding $20 million for the Brookings to
Southeast Twin Cities CapX2020 MVP project, included in the
$253 million above. The remainder of the 20132017 anticipated
capital expenditures is for asset replacements, additions and
improvements across OTP's generation, transmission, distribution
and general plant. See “Capital Requirernents” section for further
discussion.

Utilization of existing and potentially expanded plant capacity from
capital investments made in our manufacturing and infrastructure
businesses.

Continued investigation and evaluation of organic growth opportunities
and evaluation of opportunities 1o allocate capital to potential
acquisitions in our Manufacturing segment.

2002

Ournet cash from continuing and discontinued operations was
$233.5 miltion,

Our Plastics segment net income increased 142.9% to $14.7 million.
Our Manufacturing segment net income increased 29.7% to

$10.7 million.

Our Electric segment net income of $38.3 million decreased slightly
from $38.9 millionin 2011,

Our Construction segment recorded a net loss of $7.7 million
compared with a net loss of $2.2 million in 201 Net incomefrom
Aevenia, Inc. (Aevenia), our electrical design and construction services
company, increased $2.2 million while Foley Company (Foley), our
mechanical and prime contractor on industrial projects, recorded a
net loss increase of $7.7 million as a result cost overruns on several
large jobs.

The following table summarizes ourconsolidated results of operations
for the years ended December 31

Operating Revenues:

Electric $ 350,679 - B 342,633
Manufactiting and Infrastructure 508,560 497,536
Total Operating Revenues $ 859,239 | % 840,169
Net fncome (Loss) From Continuing Operations:
Flactric 3 38341 & 3B.BBS
Manufacturing and Infrastructure 17,100 11,836
Corporate (16,473) (15,8125
Total Metintome
Fram Continuing Operations: $ BBWER % 34,910

Revenue increases inour Plastics, Manufacturing and Electric segments
were partially offset by & decreasedin revenues from our Construction
segment, resulting in'a 2.3% increase in consolidated revenues in 2012
compared with 2011 Revenues from our Plastics segment ificreased
$26.8 milliorras a result of a combination of increased sales volume and
higher prices per pound of polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe sold. Revenues
from our Manufacturing segment increased $19.5 million as a result of
higher sales volume due to improved customer demand for the products
and services provided by our manufacturing companies: Revenues from
our Electric segment increased $8.0 million as a result of: (1) a $4.3 million
increase in retail revenue, reflecting increases in transmission cost
recovery revenues and revenues from Minnesota customers following
implementation of new rates in October 201, and (2) a $3.6 million
increase in Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator (MISO)
Schedule 26 transmission tariff revenues, driven in part by returns on,
and recovery of, CapX2020 investment costs and operating expenses:
Revenues from our Construction segment decraased $35.6 million as
Foley's job volume and revenues recognized on a percentage-of-completion
basis declined.

The following table sets forth actual 2012 consolidated diluted earnings
per share results against the last forecast we provided for 2012 ¢n a
GAAP basis, and also shows the effect on a non-GAAP basis of the early
retirement of our 350 million, 8:89% Senior Unsecured Note due 2017
(the Cascade Note).

 2012GAAP 2012 Non-
Earnings 2012 Non- - GAAP Earnings
Low High Per Share GAAP ltems Per Share
Electric $ 101 0 1.06 $ 1.06 o % 1.06
Manufactuting (without ShoreMaster) 5 026 $ 030 $ 029 - $ 029
Net Logs frorm ShoreMaster ¢ (0.08) $ (0.07) - =
Construction $ (023 5018 $ (020 - §02
Plastics % 0.32 $ 037 $00.39 : e $000.39
Corporate—Recurring Costs % (0.22) $0AnD $00,26) $ 004 $0RD
Subtotal 4 1.06 % 1.31 $ 1.27 $ 004 $ 131
Corporate~—Premium Paid on Debt Extinguishment % (0.2 & (022) $ (022 $ 022 o
Total-Continuing Operations § .84 $ 109 $ 105 $ 026 $ 131
Discontinued Operations:
Net Losses from Discontinued Operations $ (LoD $  (0.95) $ 22 — & (12D
Premium Paid on Debt Extinguishment in Connection with DMI Disposition (1) - - $ (022 o (0.22)
2012 interest Expense on Debt Extinguished in
Connection with DMI Disposition (1) m = s $  {0.04) %004
Total-Discontinued Operations $ (1.00) $ (0.95) & (122 $ . (0.26) $ {148
Total $ (i) . % 014 $ (047 = $ 04N

Notes: (1) We retired early
premiums and relat;
were hot legally obl
to provide a better ind

to be reported as
foremn
on of future samings.

om proceeds genérated in connection with the divestiture of DMI. Generally Accepted. Accounting Principles reguire that in order for deblretirement
iscontinued operations, a company must be required by the ferider to repay t >
sned rote Wwe beligve iF IS appropriote to associate the 2012 debt prepaymient premium and interest exp

disposition. Although we

e
1 our discontinued operations
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201 change 2010
$. 304,181

$308,520 . 1 9304181 - 3.305,146

12,951

14,518

1426
27,858
3 $350,765
Produg &5,284 ¢ i
Purchased Power-SystemUse . - 49,184 (3 44,788

Othigr Operation and
Waintarance Brpenies 2 115,863 3 12074
Aagetlipairment 432 ; 470 i e
Depreciation and Amortization 42,051 40,283 i 40,241
2 10,73 10,190 G 9,364

& 61,025 (2 % 64,710
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4,291,637 1

4,262,748

476,637 3 510978

88637 (28) 122430 . (64

; Srevenies
®op b2 Gmittioniners rtransmission (.th rECOVErY rEVeRUes a5 a
resilb ol increased investmentn transmission assets,
&8 §1 8 mitlion intedm rate retund redorded in 201 eelatpd to.amounts
z:"wllecwcf wirider mtw%? fates i Minnesotain 2010,
#.4 $15 million increase i revenue mainly related to rate desigh’
mmgew, smpiz«mtam i Mingesota in October 2017 on finalization of
OTHs 2000 generaliate caserand
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offset by

w3523 millondecrease inrevenues reiatec% toa 2% radustionin
retafl kwh sales betwesan the periods dug to an 1% reduction in
healing degree davs resulting from significantly milder weather in the
first halt of 2012 comparad to the first half ot 2011 partially offset by a
19.6% incraase i covling-degres days in the summer of 2012
cormpared with the same period in 2011 and

& a: 502 million reduction inaceried conservation program cost
recoveny revenues and incentives:

Wihnlesale elocttic revenues from company-owneth peneration
decreased $1.6:million duste a6 7% declineinwholesale kwh sa
combimation with a 4.4% decreasein the average price perwholesale
kb sold: This-wasy “afaatzn}d toan 8.7 % reduction in kwh seneration mainly
as aresutboltwo majorshutdewrnis of OTP s lowest-costbaseloay
resoures, Coyote St&:‘i o, in 2012, The first occurred in the second auarter
of 2012 tor seven weeks of schaediled maintenance, andthe second
otcurred on Novermber 27, 2012, when an electrical fault cavsed maigr

damage fo the station's generator which needed to be moved oifsite fov
repairs estimated to take 10 1o 12 weeks. Lower demand inwholesale
markets and low natural gas prices for alternative generation also
contributed to the reductioninwholesale electric sales,

Nat revenue from energy trading activities, including net mark-tor
miarket galns on forward gnergy contracts; decreased $0.9 millioh
malnly ag a result 'of a decrease inmark-to-market gains ori open énergy
contracts; along with-areductionin trading activity, :

Other electric operating revenues increased $6 bmillion as dresilt of:
# a4 336 millivh increase in MISOSchedule 26 transm‘«sn:m tarift

revinines driveninpart byretuenis on; and recaveny ol CapxXa2n

investment costs and operating expenses,

# a$L5 milloninerease lo revenues earned under agreementsfor sh
use of transmission facilities with other regional franamission provic

@ 0.9 million in MISD Schediile 264 revenas, new 12012, mainly
ralated ’(o investments in MISO designated MVPs,

@& 0.8 .million in revenue earmed under a contract to upgrade:a
distribution system for another regional electric service provider, and

® o $0.7 million increase in Ml €Q Schedule 1 transmisslon tariff
revenues due o207 and 2012 changes in the calculation methodology
used to determine Schedule T revenues,

ared

uifset by
@ u $1.3 million reduction in feveriue related to payments received in 201
from atransmission cooperative to Otter Tail Energy Services Company
{OTESCO) for accass rights to construct a high voltage transmission
linethrough a wind farm site where QTESCO owned development
rights, and for agsistance in obtaining easements from landowners,
Tha $2.7 million-decrease in production fuel costs resulted from a 2.0%
decrease in kwhs gmwﬁt@d from OTP's steam-powered and combustion
turbine generators, partially offset by a 5.5% increase inthe cost of fuel
par kbwh generated. The decrease inkwh generation was due to the two
major maintenance shutdowns of Coyote Stationin 2012, The costof
purchased power for retail sales incregsed $5.7 millionas aresultofa
282% increase inkwhs purchdked for systen use; partially offset b
1.7% dec I the cost per kwh purchased. The increase inkwh
purchases was driven by the need to buy réplacement power after
Coyote Statiorowent off<line In November 2012,

Electricoperating and maintenance expenses increased $5.2 million
due tothe following:
® g $3.4 rillion increase in MISO transmission service charges, mainly
MISO Schedule 26 charges related to increased investmentin
trar smission faciities by MISO member companies;
a fd 2 million increase inlabor and beneflt expenses mainly dueto
increases In pm’w jon-and retirea higalth-benefit costs resy tirzsg fronva
reciictic the discount rate-applied to projected benefit o




® a $1.1 million increase in maintenance expenses at Coyote Station
related to its second quarter 2012 seven-week scheduled major
maintenance shutdown,

@ a $0.4 million increase in wind farm maintenance service costs, and

@ a $0.3 million increase in maintenance costs at Big Stone Plant,

offset by:

@ a $1.7 million reduction in material and supply costs related to costs
incurred in conjunction with a major overhaul of Big Stone Plant in the
fourth quarter of 2011, and

® a $0.4 million reduction in incurred conservation program costs,
commensurate with a reduction in accrued revenues related to the
future recovery of those costs.

OTESCO recorded asset impairment charges of $0.4 million in the
first quarter of 2012 and $0.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2011 related
to-its wind farm development rights at its Sheridan Ridge and Stutsman
County sites in North Dakota, based on market indicators of the value of
those assets.

The $1.8 million increase in depreciation expense.is related to 2071
property additions, mainly transmission assets,

Property taxes increased $0.5 million due to higher taxes on electric
distribution property and increased investments in transmission property.

201 compared with 2010

Retail sales revenues decreased by $1.0 million as a result of;

# a $3.1 million reduction in fuel cost recovery revenues related to lower
fuel and purchased power costs,

® a $0.8 million decrease in-accrued and recovered conservation
improvement program revenues and incentives, and

& a $0.6 million reduction in Minnesota retail revenues related to an
increase in rates that was more than offset by a refund of excess
amounts collected under interim rates in effect from June 2010
through September 2011,

These decreases in retail revenue were mostly offset by

# a $2.0 million increase in revenue related to a 0.7% increase in kwh sales,

# a $0.8 million increase in revenues related to the recovery of the
North Dakota portion of Big Stone Il plant abandonment costs, and

# a $0.7 million increase inrenewable resource and transmission cost
recovery revenues related to an increase in transmission costs eligible
for recovery under Minnesota and North Dakota transmission cost
recovery riders.

Wholesale electric revenues from company-owned generation
decreased $5.5 million due to an 18.1% decline in wholesale kwh sales
combined with an 11.6% decrease in the average price per wholesale
kwh sold. This was the result-of an 8.2% reduction in kwh generation at
OTP's generating units related to-a scheduled major maintenance
shutdown at Big Stone Plant, lower demand-in wholesale markets and
low natural gas prices. Net gains from energy trading activities; including
net mark-to-market gains on forward energy contracts, decreased
$0.8 million mainly as a result of a decrease in mark-to-rarket gains on
open energy contracts, in part due to a reduction in trading activity.

Other electric operating revenues increased $5.7 million as a result of:
(1 a $3.5 million increase in transmission tariff revenues as a result of
increased use of company-owned transmission assets by others,

(2) $1.1 million payment received by OTESCO in the first quarter of 201
for the sale of access rights through an OTESCO wind farm. development
site, and (3).a $1.1 million refund in 2010 of revenues collected from
OTP’s Big Stone !l project partners in years prior to 2010,

The $4.1 million decrease in fuel costs reflects a 10.7% decrease in
kwhs generated from OTP's steam-powered and combustion turbine
generators, partially offset by a 5,7% increase in the cost of fuel per kwh

generated. The decrease inkwh generation was due fo a scheduled

major maintenance shutdown of Big Stone Plant infall 2011, The cost of

purchased power for retail sales decreased $1.3 million as a result of a

13.7% decrease inthe cost perkwh purchased, despite a 12.4% increase

in kwhs purchased for system-use.

Electric operating and maintenance expenses increased $3.7 million
due to the following:

@ a $1.7 million increase intransmission tariff charges related to the
increase in kwhs purchased from other generators to serve retail
customers,

® a $1.0 million increase in labor costs related to increased health
benefit costs,

& a $1.0 million increase in generation plant maintenance costs related
to the Blg Stone Plant overhaul it fall 2011 and increased maintenance
costs at the Langdoen wind farm and Coyote Station,

@ 3 $0.9 million increase inexpense related to the amortization of the
North Dakota portion of Big Stone ! plant abandonment costs, which
OTP began recovering in August 2010,

® 3 $0.8 million increase in Minnesota Conservation Improvement
Program (MNCIP) costs related to mandated increases in
conservation expenditures in-Minngsota, and

@ a $0.7 million increase in transportation costs related to increases in
gasoline and dieselfuel prices.

These increases in expenses were partially offset by an increase of
$2.4 willionin administrative and general expenses charged to capital
projects in 2011, which decreases expenses charged to operations.

OTESCO recorded a $0.5 million asset impairment charge in the
fourth guarter of 2071 related to its wind farm development rights at its
Sheridan Ridge and Stutsman County sites in North Dakota, based on
marketindicators of the value of those assets.

Property taxes increased $0.8 million dueto valuation increases and
increases in local property tax rates on' Minnesota property.

MANUFACTURING
The following table summarizes the results of opérations for our
Manufacturing segment for the years ended December 31:

g T
2011 change 2010

10§ 189,459 32 $143,072

Cperating Revenues $ 208,965

Cost of Goods Sold 157,437 9 144,987 . 370 106,114
Othier Operating Expenses 118,233 1000 16,524 15 14,343
Depreciation and Amortization . 12,208 1 12,116 6 11,430

Operating Income $..21,087 33 0% 15832 42 %1185

2012 compared with 201

The increase in revenues in our-Manufacturing segment in 2012

compared with 2011 relates to the following:

# Revenues at BTD Manufacturing, Inc. (BTD), our metal parts stamping
and fabrication company, increased $17.7 million (11.8%) as a result of
higher sales volume due to improved customer demand for products
and services,

& Revenues at T.O. Plastics, Inc. (1.0, Plastics) our manufacturer of
thermoformed plastic and horticultural products, increased by
$1.8 million (4:6%):-mainly as a result of increased sales of industrial
and medical products,

The increase.in cost of goods sold in our Manufacturing segment in

2012 compared with 2011 consists of the following:

® Costof goods sold at BTD increased $12.4 million mainly as a result of
increased sales volume,

& Cost of goods sold at T.O. Plastics increased $0.1 million. An increase
in costs related to the increase in sales of industrial and medical
products was mostly offset by productivity improvements from the
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thiinetessein sales ot horticultural products combined with Higher
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sedn-atheroperating expensesin our Manufacturing

0T compatad with 2010 relates to the following

‘ﬂg expenses st BID increased $2.0 million mainly cue to
salary and B@aﬁ costsrelated to workforee expansion to

increasein ravenues between the yvears,

ehses ot TO. Plasticsincreased $0.2 million d

i and basefit costs and insurance costs bifset by

P adveriising expenses.

CONSTRUCTION
7 ,f:the results of operativnsfor our
vears ended December 31

R N e T LA R I Y]

200 ichange . 2010
SAA9,007 U9 T $IB4BET 0 387 8134,222
TATAOT OIS 173,854 o Ade L 120470
123 4 2,27
1906 (B) 2,009 ¢
G ULR2VAY 4324 § (2890 (472

20 {"@mmgm with 201
Crour Construcon segrment in
following:
2 oley decreased $48.3 million (34.0%) dus te a decrease
etk y wariel the effect of cost overrang on estimated reventies
whized gnder pe age-olcompletion accoun '{mg, Wwhere
sedidiring the project based on the ratio of actual
timated costs to conm%stsa thie job Unider
sation gecounting, incréases in costs on certain
§mn 2012 and $7.0 million th 201 excess of
mhitial estiates restltedin declining levels ol ravenue réchghized
seilative o costs inturred and anerasiviaf margins or those projects.
W Revenuss at: Aeveniaincregsed $12.7 million (29:6%) mainly dis to
aiircreasedn eletbrical trangmission, distribution and substation
swionof western North Dakota:

sompared

parcen
projects of 14 9mi

work e aibpatehe

The de
22 compa
® CostofgsodsseldatFoley decreased $35 8 million The decraise

reflacts reductions v material and subcontrattor costs duetoa

derrease inwork volume Between periods. :

& ost 6Fgoods sold at Aevenia increased $9.2 miflior as a result of the
increass in electrical transtmission, distribution-and substation work,
which drove increases inlabor, matarial; subcontractors and rént costs!

rease i cost of goods sold in our Construction segment in
jared with 2011 refates to the Tollowing:

The Inéreasa i other operating expenses in olir Construction segment
in 2012 compared with 2071 relates to the following:
® ﬂp@ ‘ating expernses at Foley increased $0.3 millionas a result of
iicraased expendifures for autside services.
@ Operating expensés at Aeveniaincreased 01 million a5 @ result of
ad expenditures for outside services.

ereas

200 cormpared with 2010
ki h@ incregse in revenues nour Caﬁstmctxon segment 2o compared
2010 relates 1o the following:
@ R@ve nues at Foley-increased $48. 7 million {5 23%
in construction activity.
& Revenues at Asvenia increased $1.7 mitlion (43%) miginly dueto
increased revenue from elettrical and data wiring work.

yduetoanincrease

The increase in cost of goods sold in our Construction segment in
201 compared with 2010 relates to the following:
# Cost of goods sold at Foley increased $51.9 million, mainly in the
areas of material and subcontractar costs related to the incraase in

Foley's wark volurne between the perigds,

# Cost-oFgoods sold ot Asveria increased $1.3 million between the
periods, pri iarily th labor costs, as a result of Increased electrical and
data’wirling work and the reporting of indirect labor costs incostof

goods sold 2017 as cormpared to other operating expenses in 2010

The decre n other operating expenses inour Construction segment
in 201 compared wnﬁh 2010 relates 1o the following:

# Operating expensas al Foley increased $1.0 million between the
periods mainty for salaries and benefits in order to stipport the
ncrease inproject growth: :

® Operatifigekpenses at Aevenia decreased $14 millior as aresult of
Indirect labor costs being recorded in costs of goods soldin 2011
instead of operatingexpense, anincrease in gmm onsalesof assels
and'a decrease i outside legal services,

PLASTICS
The following table summarizes the results of aperations for-odr Plasti
segment for thevears ended Decernber 31

201

123669
1T

$150,517 2
12662 G
8,784
3,118

$ 25,953

i Expenises
donvand Armpriization

Operatingincome

2012 comipared with 201

The $26:8 million Increase in Plastics operating revendes in 2012
comipared with 20T1was due to 8 17.0% increase in pounds of PVCpipe
sold combined with -41% increase in the price per pound of PV pipe:
sold. Tha 595 million incréase in cost of goods sold wis related to the
increase in phundsiof PVCpipesold offset by 8 6.6% reduction i the
costperpound of pipé sold: THe decrease in the cost per pound of pipe
soldwasdue tolowar prices ofresin i’eiween the years and intredsed




productivity as fixed production costs were spread over'a larger volume
of pipe produced over longer-production runs with less downtime. The
$2.6 million increase in operating expenses is mainly due to increased
employee ingentives related to improved operating results, but also
reflects increases in commissions related to the iricrease in sales volurme:

2011 compared with 2010

The $26.7 million increase in Plastics operating revenueés in 2011 comparéd
with 2010 was dué to'a 10.7% increase in pounds of PVC pipe sold
combined with a 15.2% increase in the price per pound of PVC pipe sold
driven by an increase in resin prices. The $20.3 million increase in cost
of goods sold was related to the increase in pounds of PVC pipe sold
combined with a 12.4% increase in the cost per pound of pipe soid,
which was also driven by the increase in PVC resin prices. The increase
in operating expenses is due to increased labor costs and in commissions
paid to independent sales representatives.

CORPORATE

Corporate includes items such as corporate staff and overhead costs,
the results of our captive insurance company and other items excluded
from the measurement of operating segment performance, Corporate is
not an operating segment. Rather it is added to operating segment totals
to reconcile to totals on our consolidated statements of income,

201 change 2010
an - $ 14,897 (5) % 15,741

$ 13,283
Depreciation and Amortization 481 (1) 550 5 523

Operating Expenses

Corporate operating expenses were lower in 2012 than in 2071 as 4
result of termination benefits incurred in the third quarter of 201
associated with the resignation of the corporation’s former chief executive
expenses were lower in 2011 than in 2010 as a result of severance costs
related to personnel changes incurred in 2010

CONSOLIDATED OTHER INCOME
Other income increased $1.3 million in 2012 compared with 2011 due to
an increase ininvestment income and gains on investments of $1.0 million,
and a $0.3 million increase in Allowance for Funds Used during
Construction (AFUDC).

Other income increased $1.0 million in 2011 compared with 2010,
mainly due to a $0.9 million increase in AFUDC.

LOSS ON EARLY RETIREMENT OF DEBT

On July 13, 2012 we prepaid in full the Cascade Note. The price to prepay
the Cascade Note was $63,031,000, which included the principal amount
of the Cascade Note plus accrued interest of $531,000 and a negotiated
prepayment premium of $12,500,000. On repayment, $606,000 in
unamortized debt expense related to this note was immediately recognized
as expense along with the $12,500,000 negotiated prepayment premium.
The $13106,000 ($7.864,000 net=of-tax) loss on early retirement of
debt had @ negative impact on 2012 diluted earnings per share of $0.22.

CONSOLIDATED INTEREST CHARGES

Interest-charges decreased $3.7 million in 2012 compared:-with 201 due
to a $2.0 million reduiction in interest expense related tothe retirerrient
of the Cascade Note on July, 13, 2012, 4 $1.2 million reduction in short-term
debt interest related to'a $38.8 million reduction’in the daily average
balance of short-term debt outstanding between the vears, and a $0.6
reduction in the amortization of debt issuance expense and reacquisition
losses on OTP debt.

Interest charges-decreased $1:2 million in 2011 compared with 2010
duetoa $0.6 reduction inthe amortization of debt issuance expense
and reacquisition losses and a $0.6 million increase in capitalized interest
charges related to an.increase in construction work in progress between
the'years.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense==continuing operations was $2.1 million in 2012
compared with $4.1 million in 201 and $3.2 million in 2010. The following
table provides a reconciliation of income tax expense~continuing
operations calculated at the federal statutory rate on income from
continuing operations before income taxes reported on our consolidated
statements of incormne for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010:

2012010

$ 14,385

Tax Computed at Federal Statutory Rate $18.661 10329
Increases (Decreases)in Tax from:
Federal Production Tax Credit (6,695) (7,281) (6,441)
North Dakota Wind Tax Credit Amortization—
Net of Federal Taxes (891) (996) (1,163)
State Income Taxes Net 'of Federal Income
Tax Berefit (849) 798 (1,186)
Investment Tax Credit Amortization (720) (855) (926)
Dividend Received/Paid Deduction (656) (677) (692)
Corporate Owned Life Insurance (585) (388) (556)
lmpact of Medicare Part D Change (584) (599) 1,692
Allowance for Funds Used During
Construction-—~Equity (409) (301) (L
Tax Depreciation-Treasury Grant for
Wind Farms (304 5073 (845)
Differences Reversing inExcess of :
Federal Rates {143) &80 989
Permanent and Other Differences {4165 - 586 2031

Total Income Tax Expense—

Continuing Operations $ 2133 % 4121 ¢ 3,231

Effactive Incomie Tax Rate=

Continuing Operations 5.2% 10.6% 10.9%

Federal PTCs are recognized as wind energy is generated based on a
per kwh rate prescribed in applicable federal statutes. North Dakota
wind energy credits are based on dollars invested in qualifying facilities
and-arve being recognized-on a straight-line basis over 25 years.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On February 8, 2013 We closed on the sale of substantially all of the
assets of ShoreMaster for approximately $13.0 million in cash, plus a
future working capital true up to be finalized and paid no later than 180
days after closing. Wetecorded a $4.6 million net-of-tax impairment of
ShoreMaster's assets in December 2012 based on the market value of
ShoreMaster's assets. On November 30, 2012 we completed the saleof
the fixed assets ot DMiHor total proceeds, netof commissions and
selling costs, of $18 1 million: On February 29,2012 we tompleted the
sale of DMS; for $24.0 million net of commissions and selling cost On
January 18,2012, we sold the assets of Avivafor $0.3 million'in cash.
For discontinued operations reporting, Aviva's results are included in
ShoreMaster's consolidated results.

On December 29,201 we completed the sale of Wylie for
approximately $25.0 million inrcash. On May 6, 2011 we complated
the sale of IPH for approximately $86.0 million in cash.
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or services priving with any limitations on price increases determined by
the marketplace. Raw material costs, laborcosts, fueland snergycasts
and interest rates are important components of costs for companiss in
these segments. Any orall of these components could beinmacted by
inflation or-ather pricing pressures; with a possible adverse effect onour
prafitability, especially where increases in these costs excend price

nerates under rezilatory provisions that allow price changes infuel
ased power costs to be passed to most retall custorners
ieadiustments to its rate schedulesunderfuet clause
Cncreases indhe cost of electric service must be

5 revenues are not subject toregulationby
sed-oparating costs arereflected in product

increases onfinished products: Inrecent years, ouroperating companies
have faced strong inflationary and otherpricing pressures with respect
to steel fuel, resing:aluminum and health care costs which have been
partially. mitigated by pricing adjustments.



LIQUIDITY
The following table presents the status ofour lings of credit asof Dacember 31,2012 and Decembear 31, 201%

AP ET R AR DS

 Restilctad due

In Useon to Outs‘tandirr}g Available on Available on

(in thousands) Line Limit December 31, 2012 Letters of Credit December 31,2012 December 31,201
Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement $ 150,000 % - $ 733 $ 149,267 $ 198,776
OTP Credit Agreement 170,000 e 3,189 166,811 165,950
Total $ 320,000 % — $ 3,922 § 316,078 $ 364,726

We believe we have the necessary liquidity to effectively conduct
business operations for an extended period if needed. Our balance sheet
is strong:and we are:in compliance with cur debt covenants. Financial
flexibility is provided by operating cash flows, unused lines of credit,
strong financial coverages, investment grade credit ratings and
alternative financing arrangements such as leasing,

We believe our financial condition is strong and our cash, other liguid
assets, operating cash flows, existing lines of credit, access to capital
markets and borrowing ability because of investment-grade credit ratings,
when taken together, provide adequate resources to fund ongoing
operating requirements and future capital expenditures related to
expansion of existing businesses and developrment of new projects. On
May 11, 2012 we filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) under-which we may offer for sale, from
time to time, either separately or together in-any combination, equity,
debt or othersecurities described in the shelf registration statement. On
May 14, 2012, we entered into a Distribution Agreement (the Agreement)
with J.P. Morgan Securities (JPMS) under which we may offer and sell
our commonshares from time to time through JPMS,-as our distribution
agent, up to an aggregate sales price of $75 million: Equity.or debt
financing will be required in the period 2013 through 2017 given the
expansion plans related to our Electric segment to fund construction of
new rate base investments, in the event we decide to reduce borrowings
under our lines of credit or refund or retire early any of our presently
outstanding debt, to complete acquisitions or for other corporate
purposes: Also, our operating cash flow and access to capital markets
can be impacted by macroeconomic factors-outside our control:in
addition, our borrowing costs can be impacted by changing interest
rates on'short-term and long-term debt and ratings assigned to us by
independent rating agencies, which in part are based on certain credit
rreasures such as interest coverage and leverage ratios,

Our.common stock dividend payments have exceeded our net
(losses) income in each of the last five years. The determination of the
amount of future cash dividends to be declared and paid will depend on,
among other things, our financial condition; improvement in‘earnings
per share to levels in excess of the indicated-annual dividend per share
of $119; cash flows from operations, the level of our capital expenditures
and our-future business prospects. As a result of certain statutory
limitations or regulatory or financing agreements, restrictions could
occur on the amount of distributions-allowed to be made by the
Company's subsidiaries. See note 8 to consolidated financial statement
for more information. The decision to declare a quarterly dividendis
reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors.

Cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations was
$169.0 million in 2012 compared with $93.7 million in 2011, A major
contributor to the $75.3 million increase in cash from operationis was a
change from cash used for working capital of $26.3 million in 2011to
$24.7 million in cash provided from a reduction in working capital in .
continuing operations. Deferred debitsand other assets increased
$25.1 million in 2011 compared to an increase of $4.8 million in 2012,
mainly due to a smaller increase in regulatory assets in 2012 compared
with 2011 Net cash provided by discontinued operations of $64.6 million

in 2012 is mainly from the monetization of DMI's working capital in 2012
after DMI's operations were discontinued: The proceeds generated by
the monetization of DMI's working capital were used to-pay down our
line of creditafterthe ling was used fo repurchase the Cascade Note
and 1o pay-a $12.5 million repurchase premium to retire the Cascade
Note priotto its maturity date.

Netcash used ininvesting activities of continuing operations was
$IMLY millionin 2012 compared to $65.5 million in 2011, The $46.4 million
increasein cash used for investing activities reflects a $484 million
increase in-cash used for capital expendituras; mainly due to a $51.8 million
increase incapital expenditures at OTP. Theincrease in cash used for
capital expenditures at OTP is mainly related to expenditures for
CapX2020 transmission line projects and initial expenditures for Big Stone
Plant's new air quality control system scheduled for completion in 2015.
Net investing cash flows from discontinued operations were $28.3 million
in 2012 compared with $70.9 million in 2011, Net proceeds from the
sales of DMS,; DML and Aviva were $42.2 million in 2012, compared.to
net proceeds of: $107.3 million from the sales of IPH and Wylie in 2011

Net cash usedin financing activities of continuing operations of
$108.1 million in 2012 included $62.5 million used for the eatly retirament
of the Cascade Note, and $44.0 million for the payment of dividends on
our outstanding common and preferred shares, This compares to
$92.3 million in cash used in the financing activities of our continuing
operations in 2011 when we paid out- $43.9 million in dividends. Also'in
2011, OTP issued $140 million in fonig-term debt and used a portion of
the progeeds to retire its $90 million Senior Notes due December 1,201,
and toretire early its $10.4 million in pollution control refunding revenue
bonds due Decermber 1, 2012 A portion of the proceeds were also used
to.pay down OTPs line of credit borrowings which were at $10.0 million
when the debt wasiissued: We repaid $86:8 million in short-term
borrowings and checks issued.in excess of cash in 2011, In 2017, net
proceeds of $84.3 million fromthe sale of IPH were used to pay down
short-term debt.

CASH REALIZATION (millions) INTEREST-BEARING DEBT AS A
PERCENT OF TOTAL CAPITAL (millions)

SO0 e ,‘,»f«?éx $1,200 o
$150. $900 :
$100° $600

$50 $300

Otter Tail has maintained a 40-45
percent interest-bearing debt to total
capital ratio for the past three years.
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Obhigations include estimated
medical and ife insuiranice ben E
arbenafiteunder our unfunded Exdcutive Survivor

rement Plan, but do notincude amountsto fund

our noncontributory funded pensionplar as we dre ot curiently
requiréd tormake a contribution tothat plan:
fry January 2013 our Board of Directors authorized the redemption in

fullof a%i ol series of our comulative preferred shares which were
called oni January 24, 2013 for redemption on March 1, 2013, Also, on
January 24, 2013, OTP caused call notices to be issuegd forthe optional
redemption in fullon March 1, 2013 of all the outstanding 4.65% Grant
County, South Dakota Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds (of
which an aggmgeﬁte of 45, T million was @uistardmg\j on such date) and all
of the putstanding 4.85% Mercer County, North Dakota Pollution Cantrol
Refuiiding Revenue Bonds-(of which anaggregate of $20 b millitr was
oldstanding on such date); in each case forwhich @TR ;savw \i}“ BOLY
Additionally orMareh 1, 2012 OTP will pay o $15. 5 milliond
i orpany debt owed to us that represents our $15.5 mil Z fonin
curfiiltive bréferred sharedoatstanding. All of the Toregoing rademptions

vill befunded froma $40.9 million term foan OTP will be enter] g it
he lower, LIBOR based, tloating rate interest under the termloan 5
perted to contribute to'a rediiction in pre-tax interest expense in
2003 compared with 2012
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Financial flexibility is provided by operating cash flows, uhused lineg of
credit; strong finahcial coverages; investment grade creditratings and.
alterriative financing arrangements such asleasing: Equity or debt
financing will be required in the period 2014 through 2018 given the
expansion plansrelated to oty Electyic segiment to fund constraction ol
new rate base investments, inthe event we decide to reduce borrowings
Gnderaur lines of credit, to refund or retire early any of oar presently

outstanding debt, to-complete acquisitions or forother corporate plrposes
There can be no assurance that any additional required financing willbe
avallable throueh bank horwwmgs deblorequity Hoancing orothetwise
or that if suchfinancing is available b will be avaliable on terms
acceptable t Fadequate funds are not available ow acueptable
terms, our hss sinesses, resultsof eperationsand financialconditio
could be adversely affected:

On May 12012 we filed s shelf registration statement with the SEC
under which we may offer for sale, from time to time either separitely
or togetherinany.combination; equity, debt or other securities
describedin the shelf registration statement.

Onhay 14; 2012, wWe entered into the Agreement with JPMS. Pusisant
to the tevms of the Agreement, we may offer and sell our comman shargs
from time to time through JPMS, as our distribution agent for the uifer
and sale-of the shares; up toan aggregate sales price of $75 million:
Under the Agréerrient, we will designate the minimun priceand iraximum
rivmber o shares o be sold through IPMS on any given trading 'jﬁjy o
over g specified perod of trading days, and JPMS will use tommertially
reasonabileeffarts to sell such shares on such days; subject to certain
conditions; We are notobligated to sell and IPMSis ot obligatedio buy
all any pithe shares under the Agreement The shaves 1fissued, will
w;d pursuant to-our-shelf registration statement. as-amended No
wve been sold pursuant 1o the Agresment.
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SHORT-TERM DEBT
The following table presents the status-of our lines of creditas of
 December 31, 2011

December 3%, 2012 and
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Under the Otter Tail-Corporation Credit- Agreement (as defined
below), the maximum amount of debt outstanding in 2012 was
$66,236,000 on July 13, 2012 and the average daily balance of debt
outstanding during 2012 was $12,078,000. The weighted average
interest rate paid on-debt outstanding under the Otter Tall Corporation
Credit Agreement during 2012 was 3.8% compared with 3.7% in 2071,
Under the OTP Credit Agreement, the maximum amount:of debt
outstanding in 2012 was $16,582,000 on August 15,2012 and the
average daily balance of debt outstanding during 2012 was $5,867,000.
The weighted average interest rate paid-on debt outstanding under
the OTP Credit Agreement during 2012 was 1.7% compared with
1.5% in 2011

Cn October 29, 2012 we entered into a Third Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement (the Credit Agreement), which is an unsecured
%150 million revolving credit facility that we cart draw-on to refinance
certain indebtedness and support our operations and the operations
of our subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement amends and restates our
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated asof May 4,
2010, which was set to expire on May 4, 2013, and provided fora
$200 miflionline of credit; Borrowings underithe Credit Agreement
bearinterest at LIBOR plus 1.75%, subject to adjustment based on.our
senior unsecured credit ratings. The Credit Agreement expires.on
October 29, 2017, Under the Credit: Agreement, we are required to
pay commitment fees based on the average daily unused amount
available to be drawn under the revolving credit facility. The Credit
Agreement contains a number of restrictions on us and the businesses
of Varistar and its material subsidiaries; including restrictions onour
and their ability to merge, sell assets, make investments, create or
incur liens on assets, guarantee the obligations of certain other parties
and engage in transactions with related parties. The Credit Agreement
also contains affirmative covenants and events of default: The:Credit
Agreement does notinclude provisions for the termination'of the
agreement or the acceleration of repayment of amounts outstanding
due to changes in our credit ratings: Our obligations inder the Credit
Agreement are guaranteed by certain-of-our material subsidiaries:
Outstanding letters of credit issued by us under the Cradit-Agreement
can reduce the amount available for borrowing under the line by up to
$40 million. The Credit Agreement has an accordion feature whereby
the line can'be‘increased to $250 million on the terms and subject to
the conditions described in the Credit Agreement.

On October 29, 2012 OTP entered into a Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement (the OTP Credit Agreement) that provides
for a $170 million line of credit with an accordion feature whereby the
line can be increased to $250 million on the terms and subject to the
¢onditions described in the OTP Credit Agreement, The OTP Credit
Agreement amends and restates the $170 million OTP Credit Agreemerit
dated as of March 3, 2011, which was set to expire oni March 3, 2016,
The OTP Credit Agreement is an unsecured revolving credit facility
that OTP can draw on to support the working capital needs and other
capital requirements of its operations, including letters of credit in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $50 million outstanding at any time.
Borrowings under this line of credit bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%,
subject to adjustment based on-the ratings of OTP's senior unsetured
debt. The-OTP Credit Agreement is-set to expire-on October 29,2017,
OTP is required to pay the Banks' commitment fees based on the
average daily unused amount available to be drawn under the revolving
credit facility. The OTP Credit Agreement contains a number of
restrictions on the business of OTP, including restrictions on its ability
to merge, sell assets, make investments; create orincur liens on
assets, guarantee the obligations of any other party, and engage in
transactions with related parties. The OTP Credit Agreement-also
contains affirmative covenants and events of default: The OTP Credit
Agreement does not include provisions for the termination of the
agreement or the acceleration of repayment of amounts outstanding
due to changes in OTP's credit ratings. OTP’s obligations under the
OTP Credit Agreement are not guaranteed by any other party,

LONG-TERM DEBT

On December 4, 2009 we issued $100 million of our 9.000% notes due
2016 under the indenture (for unsecured debt securities) dated as of
Novernber1,1997, a5 amended by the First Supplemental Indenture
dated asofJuly 1, 2009, between:us and U.S. Bank National Association
(formerty First Trust National Association), as trustee; The notes are
senior unsecured indebtedness and bear interest at 9.000% peryear,
payable semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15 of each
year. The entire principal amount of the notes, unless previously
recdeemed or otherwise repaid, will mature and become due and payable
on Degarmber 15,2016, .

On Marech 18, 201 we borrowed $1.5 million under a Partnershipin
Assisting Community Expansion loan to finance capital investments at
Northern Pipe Products, Inc: {(Northern Pipe); the Company's PVC pipe
manufacturing subsidiary located-in Fargo; North Dakota, The ten<year
unsecured note bears interest at 2.54% with monthly principal and
interest payments through March 2021 On April 6, 2011 we borrowed
$0.5 million under a North Dakota Development Fund foan to finance
additional capital investments at Northern Pipe: The seven-year
unsecured note bears interest at 3.95% with monthly principal and
interest payments through April 1, 2018,

On December 1, 2001 0TPissued $140 million aggregate principal
amount of its 4.63% Senior Unsecured Notes due December1; 2021
(the 2021 Notes) pursuant toa Note Purchase Agreement dated July 29,
20110201 Note Purchase Agreement) between OTPR and the purchasers
narmed therein. OTP used a‘partion of the proceeds of the 2021 Notes to
retire $90 million aggregate principal amount of OTP's 6.63% Senior
Notes due Decermber 1,201 and $104-million aggregate principal
arnaunt of its pollution control refunding revenue bonds due Decernber 1,
2012 The remaining proceeds of the 2021 Notes were used torepay
short=termdebt of QTP which was issued to fund capital expenditures,
to pay fees and expenses related to the debtissuance and to fund-a
F10 million contribution to the Company’s pensionplanin January 2012,

Oncluly 13,2012, we prepaid in full the Cascade Note issued pursuant
to the Note Purchase Agreement dated as of February 23,2007 as
amended; between us and Cascadenvestment LLC: (Cascade).
Immediately before the prepayment; the: Cascade Note bore interast at
8:89% annually, The price paid by usto prepay the Cascade Note was
$63,031,000, whichincluded the principal-amount of the Cascade Note
plus actrued intergst of $531,000 and a negotiated prepayment premium
of $12,500,000, We used the funds available underthe Credit Agreement
for the prepayment. This early retirement reflects our desire to lower our
long=termydebt outstanding given our recent divestitures. This retirement
of debt strengthens our consolidated capital structure and will pasitively
affect futureyears: earnings by lowering interest costs. Cascade owned
approximately 9.6% of our outstanding common stock as-of
December 31,2012

The note purchase agreement relating to OTP's $155 million senior
unsecurad notes issbied-in four series consisting of $33 million aggregate
principal amount of 5.95% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series A, due 2017,
$30 million aggregate principal amount of 615% Senior Unsecured
Notes, Serias B, due 2022; $42 million aggregate principal amount of
6.37% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series C, due 2027 and $50 mitlion
aggregate principal amount of 6.47% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series D,
due 2037, as amendad (the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement) and the
2011 Note Purchase Agreement each states that OTP may prepay all or
any part of the notes issued thereunder (in an amount not less than 10%
of the aggregate principal amount of the notes then outstanding in the
case of a partial prepayment) at 100% of the principal amount prepaid,
together with accruéd interest and a make-whole amount. The 2011
Note Purchase Agreement states in the event of a transfer of utility
assets put event, the noteholders thereunder have the right to require
OTP to repurchase the notes held by them in full, together with accrued
interest and a make-whole amount, on the terms and conditions specified
in the 2011 Note Purchase Agreemerit.
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FINAMUIAL COVERANTS

“embier 31, 2012 the Cormpany was in compliaiice withthe
statément covensnts that edsteddinds debl agrements

v Note Burchase Agreemient containg ainy provisions that
Carcatcelerationof the related debt as aresilbol changes
inglevels assiened o the related obligor by rating agencies:
awing agresments are subject to-cartaindinancialcovenants,
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ingcDevt o Total Capitalization to be gréaterthan 060
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Aaveement As of December 312012 our
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Ourratio ofearpings fotixed charges-from continiing opérationg, which
neludes émg;ut@d Hnarce costs onoperating leases, was 2.6 for 2012
compared fo.2.0% for 2010 and our debt interest coverage ratio before
was i ior 2002 compared o 2 tor 201 During: 20713, we

5 Srake ratios todncrease assuming 203 netincome
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Otter Tail has miintained covedayge ratios i
exciss of its debt covenant regulfernents:

We and our substdiary companies hzavé outstanding letters of cradit
totaling $10:6 million, but ourding of credit borrowing limits are Only
restricted by $3.9 mitlion of the outstanding letters of credit We donot
have any otheroffsbalance-sheetarrangements or any relationshing
withiticonsolidated entities or Bnancisl partoerships: These entities aré
oftehreferred toas structured finance special purpese entities or variabls
interest entities; which are established forthe purpose of facilnating
off-balante-sheet arrangements of for othercontractually narow o
lirited purposes. We are not exposed to any financing iguidity mmarket
orioradit sk that could arise i we had suchrelationships,

2013 BUSINESS OUTLOOK
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Weanticipate 2013 diluted-earnings pershare to be inthe rangs of
$130%0 Eb 55 This guidance reflects the cureent mix of businesses
owned by usaswe start-out 2013 i considersthe cyclical nature of
some of our businesses and reflects challenges presented by current
aconomicconditions, as well-as oue plans and strategles forimproving
future operating results: Dur current consolidated capital expenditiives
expectation for 2013 s in the range of $200 million to $210 million. This
compares with $116 million of capital expendittresin 2012 The major
projectcontributing to the increase in planned expenditures js the new
alr-guality control systern (AQCS) for Big Stone Plant to meet reguirerments
ofthefederal-Clean Alr Act and regional haze regulations: We planto
investin genatationand transmission projects forthe Electric segment
that are expected o positively impact cur sarnings and retims on capital,
rraddition tothe AQTS project; current Electric segment projects include
investient in three MISO-determined MVP transmission projects that
will sgrvethe nine-state MISO region of whithione isa CapX2020
projectalresdy underway, and investment with other utilities in
other remaining CapX2020 transmission projectalso under way:

Segment components-of our 2013 arnings per share guldance range
areastollows
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. . 2013 EPS Guldante
2012 EPS by Segment Low Fligh
Electric £ 1:06 $ L6 $ Ll
Manufacturing $ 0:29 8 0.31 b .36
Construction S 02D 000 % 0:08 4 oL
Plastics b 0.39 $ $ 021
Corporate 9 026) % $ o0 A0.24)
Subtotal-Continuing Operations $ 127 3 &
Corporate-~Pramium Paid on
Debt Extinguishment 502D
TotalCortinuing Operations $ 105 & 1.30 & 1.55

Contributing to-our earoings guidance for 2013 are the foltowing lteros:

@ Weexpect niet insome to increase slightly inour Electric s mgfz nantin
2013 compared with 2012 This is based or rider recovery incrense
anhd Bn increase in ARUD Crelated 4o larger construction z-zxg}@rrd Lpes,

offset by lower conservation improvement progran Incentives and
increases inoperating and maintenance expenses dueto higher benefit

costar OTPs pension benefit costs for 2013 forourng nc'gmr'ibumry
funded pension planare expected to Increase by 527 millianin 2013
reflacting:a change inthe assumed rate ofraturs on pam iomplan
assetsdfrom 8.0% v 201210 775% in 2013 and a decreasiinithe
estirnated discount rate used to determine annual benehit tosts
atorvals fror 515%:in 2012 t0:4.50% in 2013

@ Weexpectearnings from our Mamifactiring segmenttoimprove in
2{’313 due tothe following factars:
s Icreased order volime and continuifgimprovement inceconomic




conditions inthe industries BTD serves,

» Aslight increase in earnings from T.O: Plastics; and

» Backlog for the manufacturing companies of approximately
$124-million for 2013 compared with $115 million one year:ago.

# We expect higher net income from our Construction segment in2013
as it has implemented improved cost control processes in-construction
management and selectively bid on projects with the potential for
higher margins, 2012 was negatively impacted by the results on
certain large projects at Foley. These projects-are now substantially
completed and Foley's internal bidding and estimating project review
procedures have been improved suchthat we donot expect 1o see
similar losses in 2013, Backlog in-place for the construction businesses
is $15T million for 2013 compared with $106 million one year ago.

® The Plastics segment experienced its second best earnings yearin its
history in:2012-due in part to certain marketand weather related
events that are not expected to recur in 2013 Accordingly, we expect
2013 net-earnings for Plastics o belowerbased on thermarket and
weather conditions currently being experienced:

# Corporate general and administrative costs are expectedto remain
relatively flat between the years.

The sales of DMl and ShoreMaster were strategic decisions by
management to monetize assets and divest of companies that do not fit
with our current operating plans. The divestitures free up liquidity going
forward for upcoming Electric segment capital investments. We will
continue to review our portfolio to see where additional opportunities
exist to improve our risk profile, improve credit metrics-and generate
additional sources of cash to support the future capital expenditire
plans of our Flectric segment: This will result ina larger percentage of
our earnings coming from OTP, our most stable and relatively
predictable business, and is consistent with the strategy to grow this
business given its current investment opportunities.

The following table shows our 2012 capital expenditures.and 2013
through 2017 anticipated capital expenditures-and electric utility
average rate base:

Capitat Expenditures:

Electric Segment:
Transmigsion $ 60 $ 45 % 56§69 5118
Environmental 89 99 e 1
Other 33 41 42 43 43

Total Electric Segment  $ 102 $182 $185 $ 170 % 113.% 161

Manufacturing and
Infrastructura Segments 14 22 19 15 15 20
Total Capital Expenditures - $ 116 $ 204 . $204 $ 189 $ 128 -$ 181

Total Electric Utility
Average Rate Base $ 694

$:789 . $919. $1,061 $1,434 $1,197

Execution on the currently anticipated electric utility capital expenditure
plan is expected to grow rate base and be-a key driver invincreasing utility
earnings over the 2013 through 2017 timeframe. We intend to maintain
our equityto total capitalization ratio near.its presentlevel of 52% inthe
Electric segment and will seek to earn our authorized overall return on
equity of approximately 10.5% in the utility’s regulatory jurisdictions:

Our outlook for 2013 is dependent on avariety of factors-and is subject
to the risks and uncertaintiesdiscussed in ltem1A: Risk Factors,and
elsewhere in this Annual Report onForm 10-K.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INVOLVING
SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES
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Our significant accounting policies are described in note 110 our
consolidated financial statements. The discussion and analysis of the
financial statements and results of operations are based on our

consolidated financial statements, which have beerprepared in
accordance with-accounting principles generally-accepted ir the United
States of America: The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and judgments
that afféct the réported amounts of assets; liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,

We uise estirmates based on the best information available in-recording
transactions and balances resulting from business operations: Estimates
are used for suchitems as depreciable lives, agset impairment evaluations,
tax provisions, collectability of trade accournts receivable, self-insurance
programs, unbilled electric tevenues; accrued renewable resource and
transmission rider revenues, valuations of forward energy contracts,
percentage-of-completion; warranty and actuarially determined benefits
costs and liabilities. As better information becomes available or actual
amounts are known; estimates are revised: Operating resultscan-be
affected by revised estimates: Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Management has
discussed the application of these critical- accounting policies and the
development of these estimates with the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors. The following critical accounting policies affect themore
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparationof our
consolidated financial statements.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
AND COSTS i

Pension and postretirerment benefitliabilities and expenses for our electric
utility and corporate employees are determined by actuaries using
assurmnptions about-the discountrate, expected return on plan assets,
rate of compensation increase and healthicare cost-trend rates. Further
discussion of our pension and postretirement benefit plans and related
assuynptions is-included in note 1210 our consolidated financial statements.

These benefits; for any-individual employee, can be eared and related
expenses.can be recognized anda liability accrued over-periodsof up to
AQ or mote years. These benefits canbe paid out forupto 40 or more
years after aneémplovee retires Estimates of liabilities and expenses
related to these benefits are among our-most critical accounting
estimates. Although déferral and armortization of fluctuations inactuarially
deterimined benefitobligations and expenses are provided for when
actual results ona year-to-year basis deviate from long=range
assurmiptions, compensation increases and healthcare cost increases or
areductionin the discount rate applied from one year to the next-can
significantly increase our benefit expenses in the year of the change:
Also;a reductionin the expected rate of return on pension plan assetsin
our funded pension plan or realized rates of returnon plan assets that are
wallbelow assumed rates of return could result in significantincreases
i recognized pension benefit expenses inthe year of the change or for
many years thereafter because actuarial losses can be amortized-over
the average retnaining service lives of active:employees;

The pension-bersfit cost for 2013 for our noncontributory funded
pension planis expected tobe $10.5 million compared to $8.6 million in
2012, reflecting @ change in-the assumied rate of return onpension plan
assets from 8.0% 113201210 7 75% in:2013, and a decrease in the
astimated discountrate usedto determine annual benefit cost accruals
from 515% in 2012 16:4:50% in 2013:in selecting the discount rate, we
consider the vields of fixed income debt securities, which have ratings of
“Aa" published by recognized rating agencies; along with bond-matching
models specific to ouf plans as a-basis to determine the rate:

Subsequent irncreases or-decreases in actual rates of return.on plan
assets overassumed rates orincreases or decreases inthe discount rate
or rate ofincrease i future compensation levels could significantly
change projected costs: For 2012, all other-factors being held constant:a
0.25 increase in the discount rate would have decreased our 2012 pension
benefit cost by $736,000; a 0.25 decrease in the discount rate would
have increased our 2012 pension benefit cost by $772,000; 8 0.25
increase in the assumed rate of increase in future compensation levels

GYTERTALL COAPORATION 2017 ANKNL
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s We must make assurmptiond regarding
laborproductivity s bility, the complexity of theworkto be
performed; the avallability Of materials, the lengthof tinie to complete
the cortract andopriormance by subcontractors, among other varishles:
Basedan s 'maiyﬂ*is éim’y aﬁjuétmet‘wt% toifet %a?w, costs.otsales snd
e i‘fﬂ"“t’@ti i saryinthe
ay: resultfrom positive
AT ;}m formance a?'sé amincreasein weuﬂx haprofit during the
Cindividual contvacts i management determipes it will be
tigating rigks surrounding thetechnical; sehedie and
ofthoaecontiacis orrealizing related vpporiuniti
s adfustirants ey resUlt i s decregseinoperating profit
rraing we will ot be successfulinmitigating these risks or
apportunities Changes inestirmates ;{ et sates costy
%h:’e fetated ipact to vperatingincome are recognized
ahve iy w%zch sewgnmﬂs iry t wecuent | ,réocéi the
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contractelita wmfm iiehi
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apointintime during g contract, a
ontract is estimated and recognized.

FORWARD ENERGY CONTRACTS CLASSIFIED AS DERIVATIVES
OTPs forward conteacts for the purchase and sale df electiicibyare

ectto mark-tosmarket accounting bndergengrally
¢ unting principles. Themarket prices used tovaliie OTPy
vaa{d contracts forthe purchases and sales of electricity and elenty
generating capacity-aredetenmined by survey of counterparties orbrokers
used by OTPs power services” pesonnel responsible for contract pricing
asiwell as prices gathered fromdaily settlement prices published by the
Intergontinental Exchangeand the CME Globex For certain contracts,
prices-at ilguid trading points are based onva bagis suread between that
tradivig point and moreiguid trading Kb prices: These biasis apreads ate
determiied hasad on available markel price nformation and the use ol
forwardpricecinvé models and, as such; are estimates: The "'lrwmd o Jg;v
salesccontracts that are miarked to-market asof December 31 200
00% offset by forward energy purchase contracts in termy afvoluimes
delivery periodsand pointsof delivery: The differentialin farward prives
at é:hrs itterentdeliveryioc at;ms currerntly fesu’sts inanat mark-tosmarket

derivatly

2012 are ex;}fmed o b;% el !zed teis) settiemem a8 sehedui@aa aver p%}eﬁ,
following periods in the amou

g listed:
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
Qur vperating companies encounter risks associated with sales and the
collection ofthe associated actounts recef\(ab&e AS such; ‘{h&*\/ f@f‘mc*

off as a percentage of mtal révenue This historical fate is
currentrevenueson ameanthly basis. Thehistorical f’%ite teu pdazze;»:t%

periodically based oi events thatmay change the raté stchas a

signiticant increase or decrease in collection parformanceand T
payments as well-as the calculated total exposure in relation to the
allowance, Periodically, operating comparies cormpare identified cradi

isks with allowances that have been established using historical

wxperience and adiust allowances accordingly In clrcumstances where
an operating company is-aware ofa specific customer's inability o wiest
financial obligations, the-operating company records a specific allowanice
for bad debts to reduce the account receivable to the amount it
feasanably believes will be collected:

We bellave the accounting estimates related 16 the alléwance for
doubtfut accounts is critical because theunderlving assurmptions tsed
for the allowance tan change frorm period 1o periad and could potentially
causearaterial impact o the incorme statement and working capits

During 2012, tor continging operations, $845,000 of bad debt evpense
(O0% ot total 2012 revenue of $859.2 million) was recorded and the
allowance fordoubtfal sccountewas $13 milion (14% ot gross trade
accounts receivable) asof December 31 2012 General economic
cobditiong and specific geceraphic Concerns aie major factors tm‘i fray
affect the adeguacy of the allowance and miay resultina change iInthe
annwal bad debt expense-Anvincrease or decreaseinour consolic iatm
allowance for doubtiul sccounts based on one percentage point of
outstanding trade recelvablesat December 31, 2012 Wwould resultina
F0.9 miliehircrense ordecrease in bad debt expense,

Although an est \maie d altowance fordoubtiul actounts onour
operating cor npar nies’ accounts receivable is ;:wwdm for the allowance.
for doUbtHl accour ws on the Electiic segment's whoismw !m tric g Alos
18 :ru.l&mftc;am i proportion to annual revenues from these sales. The
Electric sepmant has riot experienced a bad debt related fo wholesale
electric sales largely die to stringent risk manag@rm;m criteriavelated to
these gale*s Nanpayment orca single wholesale slectric sale cotld vesul
ina iflcant biad debt expense.

%




DEPRECIATION EXPENSE AND DEPRECIABLE LIVES

The provisions for depréeciation of electric.utility property-for financial
reporting burposes are made on the straight-line method based on'the
estimated service lives (5 to 70 years).of the properties. Such provisions
as a percent of the average balance of depreciable electric utility property
were 2.98% in 2012;:2.94% in' 2011 and 3.01% in 2010: Depreciation
rates on electric utility property are subject to-annual regulatory review
and approval, and depreciation expense is recovered through rates:set
by ratemaking authorities. Although the useful lives of electric utility
properties are estimated, the recovery of theircostis dependent on the
raternaking process: Deregulation of the electric industry could result in
changes to the estimated useful lives of electric utility property that
could impact depreciation expense;

Property and equipment of our nonelectric operations are carried at
historical cost or at the then-current replacement costif acquiredinig
husiness combination acceunted for under the purchase method of
accounting and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over useful lives
(3 1o 40 years) of the related assets. We believe the lives and methods
of determining depreciation are reasonable, however, changes in economic
conditions affecting the industries in which our manufacturing and
infrastructure companies operate or innovations in technology could
result ina reduction of the estimated-useful lives of our manufacturing
and infrastructure operating companies’ property, plant and'equipment
or inan impairment write-down of the carrying value of these properties.

TAXATION

We are required to make judgments regarding the potential tax effects
of various finaricial transactions and our ongoing operations to éstimate
our obligations to taxing authorities. These tax obligations include incorne,
real estate and use taxes. These judgments could result in the recognition
of a liability for potential adverse outcomes regarding uncertain tax
positions that we have taken. While we believe our liability-for uhcertain
tax positions as of Decemnber 31, 2012 reflects the:most-likely probable
expected cutcome of these tax matters in accordance with the
requirernents of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income
Taxes, the ultimate outcome of such matters could result in additional
adjustments to our consolidated financial statements, However, we do
not believe such adjustments would be material.

Deferred income taxes are provided for revenue and expenses which
are recognized in different periods for income tax-and financial reporting
purposes. We assess our deferred tax assets for recoverability taking
into-consideration both our historical and anticipated earnings levels; the
reversal of other existing temporary differences, available net operating
loss carryforwards and available tax planning strategies that could be
implemented to realize the deferred tax assets. Based-on this assessment,
management must evaluate the need for, and amount of, & valdation
allowance against our deferred tax assets. As facts and circumstances
¢hange, adjustments to the valuation allowance may be required.

ASSET IMPAIRMENT
We are required to test for asset impairment relating to property and
squipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of a long-lived asset may exceed its fairvalug and
not be recoverable, We apply the accounting guidance under ASC 360~
10-35, Property, Plant, and Equipment=-Subsequent Measurement, in.order
to determine whether or not an asset is impaired. This standard requires
an impairment analysis when indicators of impairment are present. It
such indicators are present, the standard requires that if the sum of the
future expected cash flows from a company's asset, undiscounted and
without interest charges, is less than the carrying amount, an'asset
impairmenit must be recognized in the financial statements. The amount
of the impairment is the difference between the fair value of the asset
and the carrying amount of the asset.

We believe the accounting estimates related to an asset impairment
are critical because they are highly susceptible to change from period to

petiod reflecting changing business cyclesand require managementto
rake assumptions about future cash flows over future years and the
impact of recognizing an impairmant could have a significant effect.on
operations: Management's-assumptions about future cash Hlows reguire
significantjudgment because actual operating levels have fluctuated in
the past.and are expected to continue to do soin the future.

in 2012, assetimpairmentswere recorded at DM, ShoreMaster and
OTESCO. The DMIand ShoreMaster irnpairments were recorded in
connection with their sales value and are reflected in the results of
discontinued operations. As of December 31, 2012.an assessment of the
carrying amounts of our remaining long-lived assets and other
intangibles indicated these assets were notimpaired:

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT

Gosodwillis required to-beevaluated-annually for impairment -according
to ASC 35020435, Govdwill—Subsequent Measurerment. The standard
requires & two-step process be performed to analyze whether or not
goodwillas beerimpaired: Step one is to-test for potential impairrment
and requires that the fair valug of the reporting unit be compared to its
book value including goodwill If the fairvalue is higher than the:book
value, noimpairment is recognized. If the fair value is lower than the book
valug; arseconid step must be performed. The second-step is 1o measure
the amount of impairment loss; if-any, and requires that a hypothetical
purchase price allocation be done to determine the implied fair value of
goodwill This fair value is then compared to the carrying amount of
goodwill If the implied fair value is lower than the carrying amount; an
impairment adjustrment must be recorded.

We believe accounting estimates related to goodwill impairment are
critical because the tnderlying assumptions used for the discounted
cash flow can change from period to period and could potentially cause
amaterial impact to the income statement. Managernent's asstimptions
ahotitintflation rates and otheririternal and external economic conditions,
such as earrings grawth rate, require significant judgment based on
fluctuating rates and expected revenues, Additionally, ASC 350-20-35
requires goodwill-be analyzed for impairment o an-annual basis using
the assumptions that apply at the time the analysis is updated.

We currently have $7.3: million of goodwill and a $1.1 million indefinite-
lived trade namerecorded on our balance sheet related tothe acquisition
of Foley in 2003, Foley generated a farge operating loss in 2012 dueto
significant cost-overruns on certain construction projects. Hoperating
miarging do hot:meet our prajections, the reductionsin anticipated cash
flows fromi Foley may indicate that its fair value is less than its book
value, resulting irt an impairment of some ot all of the goodwill-and
indefinite-lived intangible assets associated-with Foley along witha
corresponding chargeagainst earnings.

We evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and-as
conditions warrant, Anassessment of the carrying amounts of-our goodwill
as of December 31 2012 indicated the fair values of our reporting units are
substantially in excess of their respective book values and not impaired.

ACQUISITION METHOD OF ACCOUNTING
We aceount for acquisitions under-the requirements of ASC 805, Busifiess
Comibinations, Under ASC 805 the term“purchase method of accounting”
is replaced with “acquisition method of accounting” and requires-an
acquirer to recognize the assets acquired; the liabilities assumed and
any noncontroling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date,
measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions.
Acduired assets and liabilities assumed that are subject to critical
estimateés include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
The fair value of property, plant and equipment is based on valuations
performed by qualified internal personnel and/or with the assistance of
outside appraisers. Fair values assigned to plant and equipment-are
based on severalfactorsincluding the age and condition of the equipment,
maintenance records of the equipmenit and auction values for equipment
with similar characteristics at the time of purchase. Intangible assets are
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The $49,000 in recognized but unrealized net gains on the forward energy
and capacity purchases and sales marked to market on December 31;
2012 is expected to be realized on settlement in the first quarter of 2013,

The following realized and tnrealized riet (losses) and gains onforward
energy contracts are included in electric operating revenues on our
consolidated statements of income:

Year Ended December N,
oo 2010
Net (Losses) Gains on Forward Electric
Energy Contracts $ Bl % 926 % 2,135

OTP has credit risk associated with the nonperformance or nonpayment
by counterparties to its forward energy and capacity purchases and
sales agreements, We have established guidelines and limits to manage
credit risk associated with wholesale power and capacity purchases and

OTP's eredit risk with its largest counterparty on delivered and marked-
to-market forward contracts as of December 31,2012 was $285,000: As
of December 31, 2012 OTP had a net credit risk expasure of $580,000
from five counterparties with investment grade credit'ratings and one
counterparty that has not been rated by an external credit rating agency
but has been evaluated internally and assigned an internal credit rating
equivalent to investment grade. OTP had no exposure at December 3,
2012 to counterparties with credit ratings below investment grade.
Counterparties with investment grade credit ratings have minimum
credit ratings of BBB- (Standard & Poor's), Baa3 (Moody's) or BBB- (Fitch).
The $580,000 credit risk exposure included met amounts due to OTP on
receivables/payables from completed transactions billed and unbifled
plus marked-to-market gains/losses on forward contracts for the
purchase and sale of electricity scheduled for delivery after Decerber 31,
2012, Individual courterparty exposures are offset according to legally

sales. Specific limits are determined by a counterparty's financial strength. enforceable netting arrangements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders of Otter Tail Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Otter Tail Corporation and its s subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, common shareholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule
listed in the Index at ltern 15, We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Frarnework issued by the Comrmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement tschedule, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessrnent of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Report Regarding Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and financial staternent schedule and an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement
and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audits of the financial statements and
financial statement schedule included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managerment, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
Our audit of internal control aver financial reporting included obitaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based onthe assessed risk: Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary i the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal executive and
prindipal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and-other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide réasonable assurance that transactions aré recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
affectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Otter Tail Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 201, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in Intermal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission.

QW b Aoucke LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota | February 27, 2013
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $ 176 % 165
Accounts Payable 88,406 80,457
Accrued Salaries and Wages 20,571 15,862
Billings in Excess of Costs and Estimated Earnings 16,204 9,175
Accrued Taxes 12,047 11,696
Derivative Liabilities 18,234 18,770
Other Accrued Liabilities 6,334 : 5,540
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations 11,1586 : 50,691
Total Current Liabilities 173,128 : 192,356
Pensions Benefit Liability 116,541 106,818
Other Postretirement Benefits Liability 58,883 48,263
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 22,244 18,102

Commitments and Contingencies (note 9)

Deferred Credits
Deferred Income Taxes 171,787 173,312
Deferred Tax Credits 31,299 ‘ 33,182
Regulatory Liabilities 68,835 : 69,106
QOther 466 - 520
Total Deferred Credits 272,387 276,120

Capitalization {(page 52) ;
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities 421,680 ; 471,915

Cumulative Preferred Shares

Authorized 1,500,000 Shares Without Par Value; Qutstanding 2012 and 2011-155,000 Shares 15,500 15,500
Curmnulative Preference Shares—Authorized 1,000,000 Shares Without Par Value; Outstanding--None - e

Common Shares, Par Value $5 Per Share—Authorized, 50,000,000 Shares;

Quitstanding, 2012-~36,168,368 Shares; 2011--36,101,695 Shares 180,842 180,509
Premium on Common Shares 253,296 253123
Retained Earnings : 92,221 141,248
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss - (4,385) (3,432)

Total Common Equity 521,974 571,448

Total Capitalization ) 959,154 1,058,863
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,602,337 $ 1,700,522

See aecompanying netes to consolidated financial statements,
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Operatiog Revanues
Electric
Nomplectiic

satal Qperating Reveries

Operating Expenges
Prodoction Fasl=Eettie
~Elaeteic SystemUse
ration s Malmtenance Expenses
Soldedonelactric (axcludes depreciation; inciuded below)

Purchased Powey

Elacty

“bric Expefioes
yent Charge

aril Arntrtation
Property TaxesElactiie

Total Operating Expenses
Operating lhcome

Logs on Early Rettrement of Debt
Interest Charges
Dtherincome
Income Before Income Taves=Continuing Operations
lncome Tax Expenses<Uontinuing Operations
Netincome from Centinuing Dperations
Ulscontinued Operations
af tncome 1o Expensge (Benafit)

$1B10 2d B4 834 %oy the réspective pariods
GeseriE income Tax-(Bensfih)
A4 a6a (3414 for the respective periods
Geition=anet of Income Tax Expenge
E5Lin 201
Net Logs from Discontinued Operations
Total Net Loss
Preferred Dividend Requi rement and Other Adjustments

Loss Available for Commun Shares

Average Number of Comimon Shaves Dutstanding<-Basig
Average Nomberof Common Shares Outstanding~Diluted

Basic Earnin {ms%} Par i‘:afnmon Share:
Continuing i?:“;am%éaf‘ss /{ﬁiﬁ of preferred dividend requirement)
i A0 rations (het of other adiustments)

g

%

Dilutad ﬁ;smmg% simfsg} ?e? {.femmgn Sﬁar@e‘*

Dividends Declared Per Cormmion Share

BA4 264

$ 350,679 $
508,560 373,633
859,239 840,169 717,897
66,284 69,017 73,102
49,184 43451 44,788
121,069 115,863 112,174
417,138 421,650 309,507
52,621 49,296 46,715
432 470
59,764 58,335 57,647
10,720 10,190 9,364
777,212 768,272 653,297
82,027 71,897 64,600
13106 00 - -
31,905 35,629 36,848
4,085 2,763
41,101 39,031
2,133 4,121
38,968 34,910 26,780
(6,603) (14,294) (11,998)
(32,107) (42,533) (15,626)
(5,531) 8674
(44,241) (48,153) (27,624)
(5273 (13,243) (1,344)
, 736 1,058 833
5 (6,009 $ (14300 $ . eun
36,048 35,922 35,784
36,242 36,082 36,012
$ 1.06 $ 0.95 $
$ (1.23) $ (1:35) 5
$ ©.17) ©:40) $
$ 1.05 $ 0.95 $ 0.71
$ (1.22) $ (1.35) $ 0:77)
$ 017 $ (0.40% $ (0.08)
$ 1.19 $ 119 $ 1,19

ialstitements.

See deeompaning mokes fis
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20M 2010
Net Loss : $  (13,243) $ (1,344)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Wnrealized Gain (Loss) on Available-for-Sale Securities:
Net Gain (Loss) Arising During Period 154 (121 50
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit (53) 48 (20)
Net Gain (Loss) on Available-for-Sale Securities—net-of-tax 101 73 30
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment Gain (Loss):
Unrealized Net Change During Period - 303 1,335
Reversal of Previously Recognized Gains Realized on Sale of IPH in 201 — (6,068) -
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) - 1,787 (15
Foreign Currency Transiation Adjustment (Loss) Gain—net-of-tax e (3,978) 1,320
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans:
Actuarial (Losses) Gains Net of Regulatory Allocation Adjustment (2,133 (1,686) 1,738
Atnortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs 376 239 682
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) 703 579 (968)
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans—net-of-tax (1,054) (868) 1,452
Total Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income (953) (4,919) L2802
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income $ (6,226) $ ( 18,162) $ 1,458

See accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements
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! : Arcumulated st
Cotton Par Value, Premiumon Other Total

Shares Common Comman Retained Comprehensive Common
(i thiseands, wwm common Outstanding Shares Shares d S S ,Equi,ty,

(17,874) (89) (312)

wer Lomprabisnsive ncome

Compensation (1LA04)

rtive Plan Pedormance Award Accrual 1415

ium on Purchase ol Stock for Employes Purchase Plan (232

Purchase wi Subsidiary Class B Stock and Options (98)
Proforred Dividends {736)
(42,731)

77 3,44

(55,269) (276) (506) (1D
Net Loss (13,243
(her Comprehensive Loss : 4919) CEL4939)
Tax Benefit-Stock Compensation (875) v e B75)
Emplayes Stock Incentive Plan Expense 606 / 606
o Puirg of Stock for Employee Purchase Plan (292) {

ot Subsidiary Class B Stock and Options

71,

(5,072) (26) (85)
(5,273}
{953)
(143)
ive Plan Expernse 435
totk for Employee Purchase Plan (2223

e Equity Securit

% 177 $
62
sain on Marketable Equily Securiti 115
change Translation—Net-of-Tax:
ange Translation—Net-of- -
L sesand Transition Obligation Refated to Pension and Postretirement Benefits:
(7,500
3,000
Uinarmortized Act and Transition Obligation Relatéd to Pension arid Postretirement Benefits—Net-of-Tax (4,500)
Accumulatid Other Comgi ve (’Lcm) Income: :
Retors Tax {7,323) 5,740 1614
Tax Effen o 2938 v 17
Net Acours r Lomprehensive (Loss) Incorme § (4,385 % $ 1487




Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Lost to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Net Loss (Gain) from Sale of Discontinued Operations
Net Loss from Discontinued Operations
Depreciation and Amortization
Asset impairment Charge
Deferred Tax Valuation Adjustments and Tax Rate Reduction
Premium Paid for Early Retirement of Long-Term Debt
Deferred Tax Credits
Deferred Income Taxes
Change in Deferred Debits and Other Assets
Discretionary Contribution to Pension Fund
Change in Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits
Allowance for Equity (Other) Funds Used During Construction
Change in Derivatives Net of Regulatory Deferral
Stock Compensation Expense~Equity Awards
Other—Net

Cash Provided by (Used for) Current Assets and Current Liabilities:
Change in Receivables
Change in Inventories
Change in Other Current Assets
Change in Payables and Other Current Liabilities
Change in Interest and Income Taxes Receivable/Payable

Net Cash Provided by Continuing Operations
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital Expenditures
Proceeds from Disposal of Noncurrent Assets
Net Increase in Other Investments

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities—Continuing Operations
Net Proceeds from Sale of Discontinued Operations
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities—Discontinued Operations

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Change in Checks Written in Excess of Cash

Net Short-Term (Repayments) Borrowings

Proceeds from [ssuance of Common Stock

Proceeds from Issuance of Class B Stock of Subsidiary

Common Stock Issuance Expenses

Payments for Retirement of Common Stock

Payments for Retirament of Class B Stock and Options of Subsidiary

Proceeds from lssuance of Long-Term Debt

Short-Term and Long-Term Debt Issuance Expenses

Payments for Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Premium Paid for Early Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Dividends Paid and Other Distributions
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities—Continuing Operations
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities—Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents—Discontinued Operations
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash-Discontinued Operations

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

(5,273) (13,243) 8 (1,344
5,531 (8,674) -
38,710 56,827 27,624
59,764 58,335 57,647
432 470 -

- - 8,300
12,500 - -
(2,091 (2,386) (2,715)
11,459 - 10,661 10,990
(4,802) (25,053) 30
(10,000 - (20,000
32,718 35,178 2,786
(1,168) (861) @
718 72 208
1,311 2,177 2,923
4,500 6,496 5,847
2,430 (7,952) (31,094)
(687) (5,286) (8,167)
7,019 (1,072) (6,559)
30,056 (4,775 16,256
(14,141) (7,236) 43,206
168,986 93,678 105,934
64,561 10,705 917)
233,547 104,383 105,017
(115,762) (67,360) (58,264)
4,889 1,923 827
(1,037) (40) (2,855)
(111,910) (65,477) (60,292)
42,229 107,310
(13,896) (36,410) (24,875)
(83,577) 5,423 (85,167)
= (7,268) 7,268

- (79,490 71,905

- - 549

- - 153
(370) - (142)
(111 (1,182 (401
= - (1,012)

- 142,006 -
(897) (1,666) (1,699
(50,224) (100,796) (58,451)
(12,500 =
(43,976) (43,923) (43,698)
(108,078) (92,319) (25,528)
(4,278) (3,184) 1,812
(112,356) O5303) o BBT1O)
(1,246) 2,015 (2,495)
- (324) (566)
36,368 15,994 (6,927)
15,994 - 6,927
52,362 15,994 $ -

See accompanyi aterments

sies to consofidated financiol
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Long-Term Debt
Obligations of Otter Tail Corporation o
S000% Neotes, dus Décember 15, 2016 ’ \ % 100,000 $ 100,000
Senior Unsecored Naote B.85%, due November 30, 2017, retired early on July 13, 2012 / s ; 50, Oiﬁ(“}
North Dakota uew&m'sm‘éan* Note, 2.95%, due April 1, 2018 ) 393
Partriershipin Assisting Community Expansion (PACE) Note, 2.54%, due March 18, 2021 1,382

Total=Otter Tall Cosporation 103,725

Obligations of Otter Tall Power Company

Serior Unsecured Notes 5:.95%, Series A, due August 20, 2017 33,000 : 33,000

unty, South Dekota Pollution Control Refi venue Bonds 4.65%, due September 1, 2007 5,065 080
Uinsecuted Notes 4.63%, due December 1202 140,000 140,000
rec] Nites 615%, Serles B, due August 20, 2027 “30,000 :){},(zi}u

Morth Dakota Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds 4.85%, due September 1, 2022 21‘};{3?9 20,105

Mercer o

Motes 6.37%, Series C, due Aligust 20, 2027 42,000 42,000

ures

- Unsecured Notes 6.47%, Series D, due August 20, 2037 50,000 : 50:000
TotalOtter Tail Power Company 320135 320195
Total 421,860 472,084
Less:
Current Maturities—Otter Tall Corporation ! 176 : 165
Linamortized Debt Discount—0Otter Tall Corporation o o 4
TotalbLong-Term Debt 421,680 4719 i%

Curmalative Praferred Shares—Without Par Value (Stated and Liquidating Value $100 a Share)—
LE00.000 Shares; nonvoling and redsemable at the option of m» Company

Call Price December 31, 2012

$ 102.2500 6,000 6,000
$ 102.0000 2,500 2500
$ 101.5000 3,000 3,000
$.6.75, 40,000 Shares $ 100.3375 4000 4000

Totat Preferved 15,500 : 15,500

Cumulative Preference Shares~—Without Par Value, Authorized 1,000,000 Shares; Outstanding: None

Total Common Shareholders! Equity 521,974 571448

Total Caplialization $..859.154 $ 1,058,863

staternents




1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of Otter Tail Corporation and its
wholly owned subsidiaries (the Company) include the accounts of the
following segments: Electric, Manufacturing, Construction and Plastics,
See note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for further descriptions
of the Company's business segments. All significant intercompany
balances and franisactions have been eliminatedin consolidation except
profits o sales to the regulated electric utility company from nonregulated
affiliates, whichis inaccordance with the rémsir'emenis of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 980, Regulated Operations, (ASC 980).

Regulation and ASC 980

The Company’s regulated electric utility company, Otter Tail Power
Company (QTP), accounts for the financial effects of regulation in
accordance with ASC 980. This standard allows for the recording of &
regulatory asset or liability for costs and revenues that will be collected
or refunded through the ratemaking process in the future. In accordance
with regulatory treatment, OTP defers utility debt redemption premiums
and amortizes such costs over the original life of the reacquired bonds.
See note 4 for further discussion,

OTP-is subject to various state and federal agency regulations. The
accounting policies followed by this business are subject to'the Uniform
System of Accounts of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
{FERC). These actounting policies differin some respects from those
used by the Company’s nonelectric businesses.

Plant, Retirements and Depreciation

Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions includes
contracted work, direct labor and materials, allocable overhesds and
allowance for funds used during construction. The amount of interest
capitalized on electric utility plant was $656,000 in 2012, $628,000 in
2011 and $76,000 in 2010, The cost of depreciable units of property
retired less salvage is charged to accumulated depreciation. Removal
costs, when incurred, are charged against the accumulated reserve for
estimated removal costs, a regulatory liability. Maintenance, repairs and
replacement of minor items of property are charged to operating expenises.
The provisions for utility depreciation for financial reporting putposes
are made on the straight-line method based on the estimated service lives
of the properties. Such provisions as a percent of the average balance of
depreciable electric utility property were 2.98% in 2012, 2.94% in 201
and 3.01% in 2070. Gains or losses on group asset dispositions are taken
to the accumulated provision for depreciation reserve and impact current
and future depreciation rates.

Property and equipment of nonelectric operations are carried at
historical cost or at'the then-current repiacément cost if acquired ina
business combination accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, and are depreciated on a straight-line basis aver the assets’
estimated useful lives (3to 40 years). The cost of additions includes
contracted work, direct labor and materials, allocable overheads and
capitalized interest, No interest was capitalized on nonelectric plant’in
2012, 201 or 2010. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
Gains or losses on asset dispositions are included in the determination
of operating income,

Jointly Owned Plants
The consolidated balance sheets include OTP's ownership interests in
the assets and liabilities of Big Stone Plant (53.9%) and Coyote Station
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(35.0%). The following ameounts are included in the December 31, 2012
and 201 consolidated balance sheets:

RGN BRI 0N

201
Big Stone Plant:
Elactric Plant in Service
Caopstruction Work in Progréss

1412214 143,693
22,335 2,674

Accuttivlated Depreciation (80,588) (87,669
Net Flant CB2968 % 58,998
Coyote Station:
Slectric Plantin Service 160,617 % 156,213
Construction Work in Progress e _ 578 1,533
Accumiulated Depreciation (93,5643 (97,0907
Nat Plant % 60,656

67,631 %

The Company's share of direct revenue and expenses of the jointly
owned plants is included in operating revenue and expenses in the
consalidated statements ofincome.

Coyote Station Lignite Supply Agreement—Variable Interest Entity

Ih October2012, the: Coyote Station owners, including OTP, entered into
alignite sales agreement (LSA) with Coyote Creek Mining Company,
LLECACEME), a subsidiary of The North American Coal Corporation,
for the purchase of coal to meet the coal supply requirements of Coyote
Station for the period beginning in May 2016 and ending in December
2040. The price per ton 16 be paid by the Coyote Station owners under
the LSA will reflect the cost of production; along with an agreed profit
and capital charge. CCMC was formed for the purpose of mining lignite
coal to mest the coal fuel supply requirements of Coyote Station from
May 2016 through December 2040 and, based on the terms of the LSA,
is considered avarizble interest entity (VIE). Under current accounting
standards, the primary beneficiary of a VIE is required to include the
assets, liabilities, results of operations and cash flows of the VIE in its
consolidated financial statements. Although Coyote Station isthe
primary beneficiary of the VIE nosingle cwner of Coyote Station owns
a majority interest in Covote Station and none, individually, have the
power to direct the activities that most significantly impact CCMC,
Therefore, none of the owners individually, including OTP, is considered
a primary beneficiary of the VIE,

Unider the LSA, all development period costs of the Coyote Creek coal
mine incurred during the developiment period will be recovered from the
Cayote Station owners over the full term of the production period, which
commences with the first delivery of coal to Coyote Station, scheduled for
May 2016, by being included in the cost of production. The development
fee and the capital charge incurred during the development period will be
recovered from the Covote Station owners over the first 52 months of
the production period by being included in the cost of production during
those months, OTP's 35% share of development period costs,
development fees and capital charges incurred by CCMC through
Decermnber 31,2012 totaled $8.3 million.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. The Company determines potential impairment by comparing
the carrying amount of the assets with net cash flows expectedté be
provided by operating activities of the business or related assets. If the
sum of the expected future net cash flows is less than the carrying amount
of the assets, the Conipany would recognize an impairment loss. Such an
impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds the fair value of the asset, where fair value is based on
the discounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.

OTYERTAIL TORPORATION 2013 ANNUAL REFDY



frothe fourth guarter ot 201, DMEIndustries, Inc (DMD recorded &

it fvant charge ofits plant i Fort Erie, Ontario,
s foirth guarter of 2011, as the plant had
froiant towerorders:
ny-enteradintoa nonbinding letter of interest
(Trinity) to sell the fixed assets of i")MI for
iy retaining DM et working o '
1 June 30, 2012 On September 6, 2012 the
%l’i%{?‘v‘é’i ag;’e&mm s wwd I’? niy tc w’i the fixed

At valie of the -:ﬁw(‘[s w,d 1
chiy and arindication of & decrease in the m af%@‘ value
o sald, which were significantly impacted by a decline
onditiongin thewind energy industry: DMI had o tower
% due Wthe expected expiration, at the end of 2012, of the
wetion Tt Credit IPTC for sﬁfoSZ’fﬁ%}%’ﬂb inretiewable anergy
: faciors resulted in DM recording 2 alue adjustment
seehdta e indicated market price of 520 million and
toharge of $45.6 million (3275 million net-of-tax
iershare, inlune 2012 broken down as foliows:

BB 8 b

5 urnulated depreciation) G 45,285
Gioodwil ; 288
Totul Asset Impairment T

The sale f‘i the %m% Erle fsxeci assets ciosw} ol 'm ?nm%w &, 2{1’32 thé

Ws Tulsa
i uwﬁn.,g? /
‘iawmr paguiis ol f*;sera’gzeﬁs 3nd any i et and
ttedunder-discontinued (1;3{%;@1::3@& as a} and for all
i({xri_{} if)?cermer 3% 2012
5 t@ﬁ"pany o7 ‘;;E%C D)ie
s ol $0 4 mihonin 2012 and $0.5:m i
éev&igrame; strights at its Sheridan Ri figa ang
o Borth Dakota based on the falrvalie of these
;. {ﬁf March 31, 2012,
s Company closed on the s stantially
"‘\"XEES?&S‘ e, (ShoreMaster), subject to certain
closing.conditions: The Company recorded a $7.7 mi illion (44.6 million
netof-fa baretits) or d shiare; asset i ;::furmem charge in
Decamber 2017 based ofthe indicated market vatue of ShoraMaster's
asgetybroken q:mw; s tottows:

Y

all ofthes

Fper

PE RN A v

7,047

it otthepending sale, S,wi’nf\{\dstf’*z 5 assels are considersd

ot Decamber 31, 2012:and, along with its liabilities,
of poerations, are reported under diseontinued

all periods ending prior to, December 31, 2012,

ricorrie tax-allocation is used for substantially
w differences. Deferred dncome taxesarise for
ehween the hoolkand tax basis of assets and
recorded using thetax rates scheduled by

nn »rrmmmy nim‘ fen
fiabitities. Deferred té)

g law: to binaltectd ini the periods wher the temporary {*!1 ferances
revirse. The Company

Vamiartizes investment tax credits over the

estiated ives o related proparty. The Company records intome
inaccordance with ASC740, ncome Taxes and has: recegmzecs ity
consolidated finantial statements the tax effects of all tax positions that
are “ragrestikelysthansnot! to be sustained on sudit based solely onithe
technicalmernits of those positions as of the balance sheet date. The
tarm “maoresikely-than-not” means a likelihoad of more than 50%. The.
Company classifies interest and penalties on tax u ncwmmum as.
companents of the provision for ing ome taxes. See note 1! 510 the
consolidated financial statermnents regarding the Company's ac counting
for uncertain tax positions,

The Company: dlsoiz requl ired {oiassess thés realizability of its deterred
tax assets, taking into consideration the Company’s forecast of future
taxahle ncome. the reversal of nther existing temporary differen
avallable net Qggemi ngloss ca{ryfﬁmafﬁs and avaiable tax planni
strategies-that could be implemiented to realize the deferred tax a
Hasedon this assessmetil, managem@n; raust evaluate the need for,
amourit of Valliation allowances against the Company's det b1
assats, Hwe detertnine we would be able torealizevur deferred incoms
tax assets in the future inexcess of their net recorded amount we would
make an adiustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance,
which would reduce the provision for income taxes. To the extent facts
and tircumstances change in the future, adjustrrents to the valuation
altowance may be required.

i

Revenue Recognition

Dige to the diverse business operations of the Company, revenue
recognition depends on the product produced and sold ot service
performed, The Company recognizes reventewhern the earings pr
is complete, evidenced by anagreement with the customer, there hag b
delivery and acceptance, and the priceds fixed or determinable In
where significant obligations remain after delivery, revenue recogni thion
is deferred until such obligations are fulfilted, Provisions for sales returms
and warranly costsare recorded at the time of thesale based ondistorical
r*f@mzaf ion and current trends. Inthe case of derlvativeinstrumients,
such a5 QTP forward energy contracts, mirked-lo-market andrealizadl
gains emd losses recognized ona net basis in revenue inaccordance
with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Galns and {osses on forward
tracts subject fo regulatory treatment; it any; are deferted and
recoghized onanet basis in revenue in *he period realized.

Forihe Company's operating {Qmpames recognizing revenue on certain
products whien shipped, those operating companies have no. further
abligation to provide services related to such product: Theshipping
terms used i these instances are FOR shipping point.

Customer electricity use is metered and bills are rendered monthly.
Revenueis accried for electricity consumed but not yet billed, Rate
schedules applicable to substantially all customers include a fuel ¢
adiustment, under which the rates are adiusted to reflect changes in
averawe tostof fuels.and purchased power and.a surcharge forrecovery
of conservation-related expenses. Revenue is recognized for fueland
purchased power costs incurred inexcess of amounts recovered in base
rates bt not vet billed through the fuel clause adustoent for g
program incentives and bonuses sarned but nat yet billed ang
ewableresource and transimission=related Incorred cos
investiment returns approved for recovery through riders.

Revenues or wholesale electricity sales front Company-ownad
generating units are recognized when energy is delivered.

OTP's unrealized gains and losses on fmw:—m:i energy contracts thatdo
viot meet the definition of capacity contracts are marked tomarket and
reflected on a net basis in electric revenue on the Company's consolidated
statement of income. Under ASC 815, OTP's forward energy contracts
that do not meet the definition of a capacity confract and are subjectto
unplanned netting do not qualiy for the normal purchase and sales
exception from marksfo-market accounting See note 5 for further
discussion. /
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Manufacturing operating revenues are recorded when products-are
shipped:

The companies in the Construction segment enter into fixed-price
construction contracts: Revenues under these contracts are recognized
onapercentage-of-completion:basis: The method used to-determine the
progress-of completion is based on the ratio of costs incurred tototal
estimated costs on construction projects. Following are the percentages
of the Company's consolidated revenues recorded under the percentage-
of-completion method:

17.3% 22.0% 18.6%

Percentagesof-Completion Revenues

The following table summarizes costs incurred and billings and
estimated earnings recognized on uncompleted contracts:

Costs Incurred on Uncompleted Contracts $°307,085 %

321,346
Less Biilings to Date (321,388) (340,418)
Plus Estimated Earnings Recognized 1,762 22,108
$ . (12,541) $ 3,036

The following costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings and
billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings are inchided in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets.

W AR 0 KRS kb

December 31, 201

Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess

of Billings on Uncompleted Contracts $ 3,663 $ 12,211

Billings in Excess of Costs and Estimated
Farnings on Uncompleted Contracts {186,204} (9,178)
$ (12,540 $ 3,036

The Company has a standard quarterly Estimate at Completion
protess in which managerent reviews the progress and performance of
the Company's contracts accounted for under percentage-of-completion
accounting. As part of this process, management reviews include; but
are not limited to;, any outstanding key contract matters, progress towards
completion and the related program schedule; identified risks and
opportunities, and the related changes in-estimates of revenues and
costs. The risks and opportunities include management’s judgment
abouit the ability and cost to achieve the schedule, technicalrequirements
and other contract requirements. Management must make assumptions
regarding labor productivity and availability, the complexity of the work to
be performed, the availability of materials, the length of time to complete
the contract, and performance by subcontractors, among other variables.
Rased on this analysis; any adjustmentsto net sales, costs.of sales, and
the related impact to operating income are recorded as necessary inthe
period they becorne known: These adjustments may result-from positive
program performance and an increase in operating profit during the
performance of individual contracts if management determines it will be
successful in mitigating risks surrounding the technical, schedule; and
cost aspects of those contracts or realizing related opportunities:
Likewise, these adjustments may result in a decrease in operating profit
if management determines it will not be successful in mitigating these
risks or realizing related opportunities. Changes in estimates of net sales,
costs of sales, and the related impact to operating income are recognized
using a cumulative catch-up, which recognizes, in the current period, the
curnulative effect of the changes on current and prior periods based on a
contract’s percent complete. A significant change in one or more of these
estimates could affect the profitability of one or more of the Company's
contracts. If a loss is indicated at a point in time during a contract, a
projected loss for the entire contract is estimated and recognized.

I 2012 Foley Company: (Foley) experieniced cost overruns inexcess
of estimated costs on several large projects. Estimated costson certain
projetts inexcess of previous period estimates resulted in pretax
charges of $14.9 million in 2012 compared with $7.0'million in 201 Al
of these projects were substantially completed as of December 31, 2012,

Plastics operating revenues are recorded when the product is shipped:

Warranty Reserves

The Company establishes reserves for estimated product warranty costs
at the time revenue is recoghized hased on histarical warranty-experiehce
and additionallyforany known productwarranty issues. Certain Company
products carry oneé to fifteen year warranties. Although the Company
engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, the
Company's warranty obligations have been and may in‘the future be
affected by product failure rates, repair or field replacement costs.and
additional development costs incurred in correcting product failures.

Warranty Reserve Balance, December 31, 2011 % 3170

Provision for Warranties Used During the Year 3,240
Less Settlements Made During the Year (1,342>
Decreaseé in Warranty Estimates for Prior Years (41)
Wartanty Reserve Balance, December 31, 2012 % 5,027

The warranty resetve balance as of December 31, 2012 relates entirely
to products produced by DM and ShoreMaster and is included in liabilities
of discontinued operations. Expenses associated with remediation
activities of DMl could be substantial, Although the assets of DM and
ShoreMaster have been sold and DMI's and ShoreMaster's operating
results are veported under discontinued operations inthe Company's
consolidated statements-of income, the Company retains responsibility
for warranty claims related to the products produced by DMl and
ShoreMaster prior to the sales of these entities. For DMI's wind towers,
the potential exists for multiple claims based on one-defect vepeated
throughout the production process or for claims where the costtovepair
or replace the defective part is highly disproportionate to the original
costofthe part, f the Company is required to cover remediation
expenses in addition to regular warranty coverage; the Company could
be' required to acerueadditional expenses and experience additional
unplanned cash expenditures which could adversely affect the
Company’s consolidated results of operations and financiat-condition:

Retainage ;

Accounts Receivable include the following amounts, billed utider
contracts’by the Company's subsidiaries, that have beenretained by
customers pending project:completion:

uuuuu Sesae bk e A

Detember 31, 2011
12,227 kS 13,075

Adcounts Receivable Retained by Customers. $

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company ncludes revenues received for shipping and handling in
operating revenues: Expenses paid for shipping and handling are
recorded as part of cost of goods sold.

Use of Estimates

The Company uses estimates based on the best information available in
recording transactions and balances resulting from business operations.
Estimates are used for such items as depreciable lives, asset impairment
evaluations, tax provisions, collectability of trade accounts receivable,
self-insurance programs, unbilled electric revenues, valuations of forward
energy contracts, percentage-of-completion, warranty reserves and




actuarisliy determined bedetitscosts and-liabilities. As better nformiation
aval éx blelor actuatamounts are khown): theréeorded sstimates
| lyooperating results cancbeaffectad by revisions
i riéwg eatimates

Cash Eauivalents
This Corpany considers s
with aturity of 90 days orless tobe ca

Wl Bighly liquid debt instruments purchased
a6ty equivalents;

Investmeants
Thedollowing table provides a breskidown of the Company’s
at-December 31 2002 and 201%

nvestisents

AR TR R

Diecerber 2 201

kS 3,001

320

206

276
wolag ;

8925 8,790

Totalinves $ 10971 $ 42593
Lissn IPH: Esor Reporked under

Otner Current Assets (U (14,5000 (1,500)

fivestinieity $ 9,471 $ o0 11,093

and risported Gnder otharciiver

SWHEGRE YEGrIS Clo

sgale

& arketable securities classified as svailablesfe
insirance purposes and are reflocted ot their falrvaluesion
2012 See further discussion below and under note 15

FairValue Messurements
iy %Lui%a»ﬂéa BEC BEQ For vafue Mm»we&mewi\ anetd stat!fssssms,

‘iiiy ofthe iragmts utilized inrheasuring assets
the three levels detined by the hierarchyand
axamples m‘ aachtevelare asfollows:

Lavel = Cuoted price ; : ive markets for identical agsets
pr liabilitiss asof the reported date: The types ol assetsant abilities
includad i Level Lars highly Hauidand actively traded ims' trumants with

Guetsd Guities listed by the New York Stock Exchange
stk eonme ve contracts listed on the New \m Mercantile

Exeh

g nputs are alher than quoted rw s active markets,
hrectly orindirectly observabie as of the reported date.

s and abiiiesincluded inbevel 2 aretypically either
elytraded securities or contracts, s 5f“h ag *\fmswy

T pricing interpblated from recent trades ofsin iities,
using nighly observablainputs; sua% By (,i)r'ﬂm(}ﬁ%fy
baeivabis forward prices and volatilities

Level 3==Signtficant inputs taoricing have little ormo observability as of
the reporting:date: The types of assets and liabilities included in Laveld
are those with inputsrequiring significant management judement or
estimationandmay inchude complex-and subjective madels and forecasts,
Falpvelues for OTPs forward energy contracts with delivery polrts
that.are notat-an active trading hub included i Level 3 of the fair value
higrarchy inthe table below as of Decernber 31, 2012, are:based o
prices indexed to observable prices at an active trading hub: The rangé
for Level 3-forward electric inputs was $16 1o $48 permegawatt-hiur
The weighted average price:was $35 per megawati-hour. The levelof
deviation ift the indexed prices of these contracts at their point of physical
delivery fromithe observable prices for similar contracts at anactive
trading hub resulted in the contracts that were outstanding at both
December 3% 201 and December 31, 2012 being moved from Lewe
Level 3 of the falr value Werarchy in 2012, :
The following table presents changes it Level 3 forwar

denergycontract

derivative asset and lability. fa ir \%siﬂattaz‘s forthe year snded December 3
2002, the firstyear the Company's forward energy contracts were
inthe fair value hierarchy

classified as Level 3

§ e
(45,884)

dir Vaiues Beginning of Year

Trangfars into Lv\mi 3o Lavel 2

Less: Amounts Reéversed on-Settlement of Contracts :
Entered intoin Pror Periods 5185

Changes: In Fair Value of Contracts Entered into in Prior Peritids 4000

Curiiulative Fair Value Adjustments of Contracts Erteréd into
ift Prior Yeuars at Erdof Period
; Recognized as Regulatory Assets on contract
redlintoin 2012 E
Forward Energy Contracts=Net Dérivative Liability
Fair Valdes End of Year : ) %

14,750

[ 2

AltLavel 3forward energy contracts frithe table below are related 15
power purchase contiacts where OTF intenids to take physical delivery
ol the energy-under the contract Whan OF P takes phygic"ai defiveryof
the enargy purchasedunderthese contracts the costsincurred will be
recoverad-in base rates and through fual 1ause*acy§ustments, Ay
derivative assets or liabllities and related gains or losses recorded as a
resolt of the fair valuation of these power purchase contracts will ot be
realized-and are:100% offset by regulatory liabilities and assets relatsd
o fuelclause adjustiment treatment of fuelcosts Therefare, the net
impact ofany recorded fairvaluation gains or losses related £o thege
contracts on the Company's consolidated netincomeis $O andthe et
income mpact of any future faiv valuation adjustments of these contracts

i b B0 When energy is delivered under these contracts, they will be
settled ot the original contract price and any-fair valuation paing ovlosses
and related derivative assets or labilities récorded over the lifa ot the
; rsed along with any offsetting regulatory habilities
or asaets. Because of regiilatory accounting treatment, any price volatility
related tothe fair valuation of these contracts had noimpact on the
Company's reported consolidated netincome for 2012, 201 or 2070




The following table presents, for each of these hierarchy levels, the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on-a recurring

basis as of December 31:

Level 1

Assets:
Current Assets—Other:
Forward Energy Contracts %
Forward Gasoline Purchase Contracts
Money Market Fund—Escrow Account IPH Sale
Money Market and Mutual Funds—
Mongualifiad Retirement Savings Plan
fvestments:
Corporate Debt Securities—
Held by Captive Insurance Company
U5, Government Debt Securities—
Held by Captive Insurance Company
Other Assels:
Money Market and Mutual Funds—
Nonqualified Retirement Savings Plan 357
Equity Securities—Nonqualified Retirement
Savings Plan

1,500

110

125

BaEaEkPEsAN YAV AYEIANSNIAB AN LROESY

Level 2 Level 3

$ 292
136

$ 210

7,620

1,305

Total Assets $..2,092

$ 9353 % Zld

Liabilities:
Derivative Liabilities-Forward Energy Contracts - $ -

$ 242 - $17,992

Total Liabilities $ -

$ 242 $17,992

102012, the Company’s investments in forward gasoline contracts and U.S. government debt

securities ware moved to Jevel 2 of the fairvaluge hierarchy.

Inventories

’ Level1
Agsets: :
Current Assets-~Other:
Forward Energy.Contracts
Farward Gasoline Purchase Contracts 9
Money Market Fund—Escrow Account IPH Sale 1,500
Money Market and Mutual Funds—
Nongualified Retirement Savings Plan
Investments:
Corporate Debt Securities—
Held by Captive Insurance Company
LS, Government Debt Securities—
Held by Captive Insurance Company
Money Market Fund—Escrow Account IPH Sale
Other Assets:
Money Market and Mutual Funds—
Nongualified Retirernent Savings Plan

110

707
1,501

§shvvebeens Vs ER SRS e uy

Level 2 szvei 3

$ 3,803

8,083

Total Asséts $

$ 11,886

Liabilities:
Derivative Liabilities—Forward Energy Contracts - $ -

$18,770

Total Liabilities $

$ 18,770

The Electric segrhent inventories are reported at average cost. All other segments’ inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or
market, Inventories consist of the following:

_ December 31, 2011

Finished Goods $ 21,893 $ 18,478
Work in Process 8,800 16,470
Raw Material, Fuel and Supplies 38,643 36,795
Total Inventories 369336 % 68,743

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in-accordance with the requirements of ASC 350, Intangibles=Goodwill and Other,

measuring its goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairmient annually in the fourth guarter, and more often when events indicate the

assets may be impaired. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairmentin accordance

with requirements under ASC 360-10-35, Property, Plant, and Equipment=-Overall=Subsequent Medsurement.
In the fourth quarter of 2012 the Company sold Moorhead Electric, Inc, (MED, a subsidiary company that provided electrical contracting services,

In connection with this sale, the Company disposed of $147,000 in goodwill associated with the purchase of ME!in 1992.
The following tables summarize changes to goodwill by business segment during 2012 and 2011

Balance Balance

(aross Balance (net of impairments) Adjustments (net of impairments)

December 31, Accumulated December 31, to Goodwill in December 31,

201 Impairments 2011 2012 2012

Electric $ 240 $ (240) $ - $ - $ —
Manufacturing 24,445 (12,259) 12,186 s 12,186
Construction 7.630 s 7,630 {147) 7,483
Plastics 19,302 . 19,302 e 19,302
Total % 51,617 % (12,499 $ 39,118 % (147 4 38,971
Balance : Balance

Gross Balance {net of impairments) Adjustments. (net of impairments)

December 31, Accumulated December 31, to Goodwillin December 31,

2010 Impairments 2010 20mM 20m

Electric $ 240 $ (240 $ = $ - $ -
Manufacturing 24,445 (12,259 12,186 - 12,186
Construction 7,630 o 7,630 - 7,630
Plastics 19,302 e 19,302 — 19,302
Total % 51,617 $ (12,499 % 39,118 $ - % 39,118
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ﬂ%}e? at

parizes the components

fihe Company's

e e Y]

(v Net
Coying Accumulated — Carrylng Amwumtmn
Amount. - - Amortization: " Ambunt Parmds.
$i6811 $A085 AT ABA25 years

1002 £13 479

17903 4 4,698 $13205

Total $iB6le

frigtefinivesLivad
atangible Assets!
Tracie Name % 1,100

¢ FIRETS
709 4 Sivears
485 HO7 5-30veurs
$ 4,430 $14,186
----- $ 110

Fhe amartization exeense for these if.wiﬁgihé

% 895

nated annualambrtization expense for thes

e next five ysarsis:

intangible

b 849

Sugplemental Disclosuves of Cash Flow Information

A of Decetbier, 31

$.. 8967

o ok 44 Y

201

$

{353

Fighi

ttw *amw of xma g ﬁ'cxm
£ %mmrv 82013 Asof

“%{ti&w&%;{‘atai}m m}{i Chanpesto Presentation
it olidated balanes gheet as of Decembier 31

afriber 31,2
el forkale urnder ASC 36
wctiomandappropriately classitied the assets as held forsa

OA0=45 101 1

201 and

;)mm? and consolidated statement of cash
cormber 31, 2011 and 2010 reflect the

nd llabilities, Q{aeramg resultsand cash
ontinued operations agaresultof
1 the sale of ShareMaster on
2012 the Company met the criteria
ShoraMaster

feon

December 31 20120 Accordingly, ShoreMaster's activities wera reguired
o bereported in discontinued operations as required under ASC
20-45. The reclassifications had no impact enthe Company’s total
consolidated assets, consolidated net income or cash flows as of avid for
the years ended Decernber31, 2011 and 2010,

In 201 mianagement reported Minnesota Conservation imr»mvmwm
Pemgran (MNCIPY Incentives in Operating RevenuessEléctyic vather
thar Othetincame astheyhad been classified in 2010 The Camipany
has corrécted this classification restlting inthe following intréase’in
Dperating Revenues and Operating Income and decrease in Otherdncome

010
k066

MNCIP ncentives reclas 9/6:@ from D’rher income tﬁ Qf‘erat

The correction Rad no impact onthe C@mpa?}ys netincome; toly
assets, or operating cash flows for the year ended Decermber 31 2

B

New Accolating Standards

ASU 2013-02

Iy February ?O‘R the FASE issued ASU 2013-02, "Comprehensive incame
(Topic 2200: Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive lncorme,™ which requires entities to provide
information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
cormprehensive income by component; Inaddition; entities are reguired 1o
present, either onthe face of the staterment where net income is prasentid
or in the tiotes, significant amounts reclassified out of accurulated tther
comprebensive income by the respective line items of netincome but only
if the amou m reclassified is required under U5 GAAP to berec!
to net income inits entirety in the same reporting period. Forother
Smounts %m% are 1ot required under US GAARTobe rec lassified in
their eptirély to netincome, entities are reqwred Ty cross-reference o
other disclosures required under U5, GAAPthat provide additional
delail on these amounts. This ASU is effective prospectively for reporting
perlods beginning after December 15, 2012 The Company is curr
evaliating the impactiof adopting this guidance,

ety

2 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS, DISPOSITIONS
AND SEGMENTINFORMATION

B e R g 3 ¥ ARy

The' Company scquired no new businesses in 2012, 201 or 2000 and
disposed of ney businesses in 2010, '

I 2012 and 200, inexecution of the Company's annotnced stratagy
ofrealigning its business portfolio to reduce its risk profile drd ’Mmatr‘
a'greater portion of its resources toward electric Utility operations
Company sold or was in the process of selling several of its holdi

Jecember 31, 2012 the Company was In riegotiations to sell the
of ShoreMaster, its waterfront equipment manufacturer, which we
included Inits Manufacturing segmeant. ShoreMaster's a 2
Hassified as held for sale and reportad in discontinuess
December 31,2012 The sale'of substantially allt
5 assets closed on February 8, 2013, On Novembay
ompleted the sale of the fixed assets ot DM, its wir
ompany, eliminating its Wind Energy segiment. On
the Company completed the sale of DMS Health
(DMS); its health services company, eliminating ity
rrent: On January 18, 2012 the Company sold the
Avivabports, Inc. (Aviva), a-wholly owned subsidiary.of
‘3 wreﬁMabmr that sold various recreational products. In 201, the € ampany
sold 1PH, its food ingredient processing business, elimingting its Fobd
Ingredient Processing segrnent, and EW, Wylie (Wylie), its trucking

commﬁmy, which wag included inits Wind Eneray segmerit,
The results of operations of ShoreMaster including Aviva, DM
Wylieand 1PH are reported as discontinued operations in th



consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010, and are summarized.in note 1710
consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information

The accounting policies of the segments are described under note 1
Suramary of Significant Accounting Policies. As a result of the 201,
2012 and 2013 dispositions, the Company’s business structure now
includes the following four segments: Electric, Manufacturing,
Construction and Plastics. The chart below indicates the companies
included in each segment.

{

MANUFACTURING AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLATFORM

Northern Pipe
Products, Int.

Otter Tail Power BID Foley
Company Manufacturing, inc. Company

T.O. Plastics, Inc. Vinyltech

Corporation

Otter Tall Energy Aevenia, Inc.

Services Company

Flectric includes the production, transmission, distribution and sale of
electric energy in Minnesota, North Dakota and South Dakota by OTP.

In addition, OTP is an active wholesale participant in the Midwest
Independent Transmission System Operator (MISO) markets. OTP's
operations have been the Company's primary business since 1907,
Additionally, the electric segment includes OTESCO, which provides
technical and engineering services,

Manufacturing consists of businesses in the following manufacturing
activities: contract machining, metal parts stamping and fabrication, and
production of material and handling trays and horticultural containers,
These businesses have manufacturing facilities in Hlinols and Minnesola
and sell products primarily in the United States.

Construction consists of businesses involved in commercial and
industrial electric contracting and construction of fiber optic and electric
distribution systems, water, wastewater and HVAC systems primarily.in
the central United States.

Plastics consists of businesses producing polyvinyl chloride (PYC)
pipe in the upper Midwest and Southwest regions of the United States.

OTP and OTESCO are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. All
of the Company’s other businesses are owned by its wholly.owned
subsidiary, Varistar Corporation (Varistar):

The Company's corporate operating costs include items such as
corporate staff and overhead costs, the results of the Company's captive
insurance cormpany and other items excluded from the rmeasurernent of
operating segment performance. Corporate assets consist primarily of
cash, prepaid expenses, investments and fixed assets, Corporate is not
an operating segment. Rather, it is added to operating segment totals to
reconcile to totals on the Company's consolidated financiat statements.

No single customer accounted for over 10% of the Company’s
consolidated revenuesin 2012, 2011 or 2010 All of the Company’s
tong-lived assets are within the United States.

Percent of Sales Revenue by Country for the Year Ended December 3%

T TR TR E T

2010
United States of America 97 7% 98.1% 99.0%
Canada 1.1% 1.4% 0.8%
All Other Countries 1.2% 0.5% 0.2%

The Company evaluates the performance of its business segments
and allocates resources to them based on earnings cortribution and
return on total invested capital. Substantially all the revenues reported
below by segment are from sales to external customers, except for
immatérial amounts reported in intersegment eliminations, which are
insignificant in total and by segment. Information on continuing
operations for the business segments for 2012, 2011 and 2010, which

Operating Revenue

now excludes Wind Energy:due to thesale ot DPMi-and itsinclusionin
discontinued operations, and includes restated amounts for the
Marnufacturing segmenit due to the sale of ShoreMaster and its inclusion
in discontinued operations, is presented in the following table:

RINASY A A NS KRN O HRER RS R

201 2010

Electric $ 350,765 % 342,727 % 344,379
Manufacturing 208,965 189,459 143,072
Construction 149,092 184,657
Plastics 150,517 123,669
intersegment Eliminations (100) (343)
Total $ BRO,239 ' F 840,169 $ 717,897
Depreciation and Amortization
Electric 4 42,051 % 40,283 % 40,241
Manufatturing 12,208 12,118 11,430
Constriction 1,906 2,009 2023
Plastics 3,118 3,377 3,430
Corporate 483 550 3
Total $ 59,764 4 58335 § 57,647
Interest Charges
Electric $ 19,049 % 19643 $ 20,949
Marfacturing 3,657 3,727 3,625
Construction 1,039 947 671
Plastics 2,519 1,525 1,560
Corporateand Intersegment Eliminations 5,741 9,787 10,043
Total $ 0 3L,905 % 35629 § 36,848
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes
Flactric $ 44203 % 45569 $ 44,505
Manufacturing 17,630 12,191 7,548
Construction {13,145) (3,688 (1,11%)
Plastics 23,506 9,464 4,007
Corporate (31,093 (24.505) (25,454
Total $ 41,101 % 39030 % 2951l
Earnings (Loss) Availablefor
Comrnon Shares
Elactric $ 38341 ¢ 38886 § 34,557
Manufacturing 10,676 8,229 5,115
Construction (7,689 (2,204 (646)
Plastics 14,113 5,811 2515
Corparate (17,209 (16,548) (15,996)
Discontinued Operations (44,241) (48,475) (27,722)
Total . $ 8,000y § (14301 $ (21D
Capital Expenditures
Electric $ 101,919 % 49,707 $ 43121
Manufacturing 9,311 10,546 6,159
Construdtion 1576 2,645 5,490
Plastics 2,819 2,414 2,671
Corporate 137 2,048 83
Total $ 115,762 % 67,360 % 58,264
ldentifiable Assets
Elactrio $1,226,145 $1,170,449 $1,106,261
Manutacturing 134,933 124872 112,295
Construction 50,696 69,453 80,978
Plastics 78,855 72,200 73508
Corporate 112,616 53,619 43,102
Assets of Discontinued Operations 19,092 209,929 374411
Total $1,,§GZ,33? $1,700,522° 1,770,555
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Revised Sepmonts Information by Quarter {not audited)
fallowing table provides revised segmentinformation basedontha €
tabiilavinformation provided i note 2o financial statements inthe ©

Thiow M@ xm Ended March n

Company'scortinuing operations as of December 31, 2012, Similartothe
Company's quarterly reparts on Form 10+,
June 30 September 30 Decemberdl .

Dpavating Revente :
Electiie $ 80,003  § L5960 TBHE3 P B854 Y UBRITE T OR35S R 028
58,434 % ‘:3‘ BI089 46,618 47323 49874 50,005
35,617 5 F7,934 PR #1931 53247 37610 LT
34,875 41,480 14,373 42,247 36,231 41935
fpoiate antdditersegment Blimminations (39 {25) (38) 14y (273 {22y
§ 219890 $ 10428100 % 211401 $.. 216677 ... % 215316 $ 221,946 % 212832 %
$ 4,851 % $ 4762 % $.04,880 B 4796 & 45565
918 517 ©o8sl TUesg : 834
253 310 305 251 1
346 246 347 411 1,485
2,229 2,087 1,488 268 {1y
5 8594 % 9345 % 8,472 b s % 7904 § 86784 6,935 %
$ 1622 % 2,600 % (800) % g % 2995 % % 20450 % 734
§ 2,324 1579 1,674 1,215 1,288 1,668 230
Corigtrustio (2,776} (210 (1,164) 130 (879) (637) (k289)
Plastics 2,475 (241 2,722 2,104 2,216 2,280 455
Cairpotate Q877 502 (1,915) (2,617 {6,405) (3,423) (oL
Total $ 468 B L8260 ¢ 517 .8 880 % (7853 % $ 1933 % fo84)
Earnings (Loss) Available for Common Shares
: $ 13018 8 % 5491 % 7386 % 010206. - % 10,900 % 11928 %
! 2,501 2,179 1,914 1.571 2,796
(325) {1,756) 184 (1,325 (1793 48
(3743 4,067 3 3,309 1870 FAEG
{2,964) (3,286 (9,486} (5,355) 865y
(4,323) (24,2573 2028y L IR T Ay
b % 5512 % (A7.540) % § L6 % 5184 % 2782 %
$ 1,167,688 , 3 $1,168,902 $1,179,472 S 300046 S 226,445 0§, 070 440
133,988 1200181 LET 085 125,747 124;414 114933 12
67,288 54,500 68,407 67,342 74639 50,696 G453
87,066 16993 87,747 86,445 84:463 78,855 72200
42,292 A o7 39,222 38,612 57,262 112,616 3609
i Eygrations 180,796 393,831 143,067 72,308 270,060 18,002 209529
Tostal $LE79118 1,796,981 0 § 1,634,400 $:1.708, lM $1,569,926. - F L TIE084 IS 1,602,837 B T00, 50

% RATE AND BEGULATORY MATTERS
Minnesota
2000 General Rate Case Filing=OTP filed a general ¢ S6.0n A{) il 2,
PON reuesting an B D19 base ratéincresse as well as 5389 intér]
i May 272010, the Minnesota Public Utiiitles € z;#mf?‘“biii{m
1 an order azcepting the filing, suspending rates, and
inferim rate increase; as requested, to be effective with
or :ffie? June “L 2010, The MP{A melu heating to

é{m “at 3 ?6 % in base ram EVEILBS, EXC ludin ing
moving recovery of wind investments to base rates The
uded: (D recovery of Big Stone H costs over
sery of wind farm assets from rider recovery
er of a portion of MNCIP costs from rider
{4 tf‘amsfm’ of ‘the inv%tr%m intwo

fiveydars, w\ Mo
Vo base rate retovery;
recovery to baseate e

creditto base ratesto a credit to the Minnesota Fuel Clause Adjustment.

Firal rates went into effect October 1 201, The overallincrease to

customers was approximately 1:6% compared 1o the adthorizedint
rate increase ot 3:8%; which resulled inan interimrate refundio
Mizme@@‘m retail electric customers of approximately 53 9 million inthe
fourth quarter of .203? Pursuant o theorder, OTP's allowed rate of
retusn on rate wreasedfrorn 8.33% 1o 8.61% and its al uwwd rate
of return on equityinereased from 1043% 1010.74%  OTPs authorized
rates of return are based on a /ﬁaprtai structure of 48.28% long t&?ff‘?‘s
debtand 5172% common eguity.

¥

Renewable Energy Standards, Conservation, Renewable Resource
Riders~Minnesota has a renewable energy standard which requires QTP
to generate orprocure sulficientrenewable generation such that the
following percentages of total retail electric sales to Minnesata customers
come from qualifying renewable sources; 12% by 2012:17% by 2016
20% by 2020 and 25% by 2025 Under certaln cireuimstances and gfter
considerativn of costs and reliabilityissues, the MPUC may modify or
delay implementation ot the standards: OTP has acquired renswable
resources and expectsito acyuire additional renewable resourcesin
order to maintain compliance with the Minnesota reriewable erergy



standard. OTP's cormpliance with the Minnesota renewable energy standard
will be measured through the Midwest Renewable Energy Tracking System

Under the Next Generation Energy Act of 2007, an-automatic
adjustment mechanism was established to allow Minnesota electric
utilities to recover investments and costs incurred to satisfy the
requirements of the renewable energy standard, The MPUC is authorized
to approve a rate schedule rider to enable utilities to recover the costs of
qualifying renewable energy projects that supply renewable energy to
Minnesota customers. Cost recovery for qualifying renewable energy
projects can'be authorized outside of a rate case proceeding, provided
that such renewable projects have received previous MPUC approval:
Renewable resource costs eligible for recovery may include returmon
investment, depreciation, operation and maintenance costs, taxes,
renewable energy deliverycosts and other related expenses:

The MPUC issued anorder on January 12, 2010 finding OTP's Luverne
Wind Farm project eligible for cost recovary through the Minnesota
Renewable Resource Adjustment (MNRRA). The 2010 annual MNRRA
cust recovery filing was madeon December 31, 2009. The MPUC
approved OTP's petition for a 2010 MNRRA in the third guarter of 2010
with implementation effective September 1, 2070, The 2010:MNRRA
was in-place from September1,2010 through September 30, 2011 with
a recovery of $12.0 million.

The recovery of MNRRA costs was moved to base rates as of October 1,
2011 unider the MPUC's April 25, 2011 general rate case order with the
exception of the remaining balance of the MNRRA regulatory asset: OTP
hasa regulatory asset of $0.9 million for amounts eligible for recovery
throughthe MNRRA rider that have not been billed to Minnesota
customers as of December 31, 2012; A request for arupdated rate 1o be
effective October1, 2012 was initially filed on-June 28, 2012, followed by
a revised filing on July 25, 2012, The filing, which is still under-review,
included arequest to extend the period of the new rate for 18 months,
which would reduce the current balance of urirecovered costs to zerd.
However, OTP now estimates the remaining unrecovered costs will
collected by the end of May 2013, so OTP is planning to make a
supplementalfiling to request that the current rate be retained until the
remaining balance is recovered and that the MNRRA ther be suspended.

Transmission Cost Recovery (TCR) Rider=In addition ta the MNRRA
rider, the Minnesota Public Utilities Act provides a similar mechanism
for automatic adjustment outside of a general rate proceeding torecover
the costs of new transmission facilities that-have been previously approved
by the MPUC in a Certificate of Need (CON) proceeding, certified by the
MPUC as-a Minnesota priority transmission project, made totransmit
the electricity generated from renewable generation sources ultimately
used to provide service to'the utility’s retail customers, or éxemptfrom
the requirement to obtain a Minnesota CON:Such TCR riders allow a
return on‘investment-at- the level approved in.a Utility's last general rate
case. Additionally, following approval of the rate schedule, the MPUC
may approve annual rate adjustments filed pursuant tosthe rate schedule:
OTPs initial request for approval of a TCR rider was granted by the
MPUC on January 7, 2010, and became effective February 1,2010:

OTP requested recovery of its transmission investrnents being recovered
through its Minnesota TCR rider rate as part of its general rate case filed
onApril 2, 2010, In its April 25, 2011 general rate case order, the MBUC
approved the transfer of transmission costs currently being recovered
through OTP's Minnesota TCR rider to recoveryinbase rates. Final rates
wentinto.effect on October 1, 2017, The Companywill continue to utilize
the rider cost recovery mechanism until the remaining balance of the
current transmission-projects has been collected as well as to recover
costs associated with approved regional projects. OTP filed a request for
an update to its Minnesota TCR rider on October 5; 2010: The update to
OTP's:Minnesota TCR rider, approved by the MPUC on March 26, 2012,
wentinto effect Aprit1, 2012,

in-this TCR rider update, the MPUC addressed how to handle utility
investments in transmission facilities that qualify for regional cost
allocation under the MISO tariff. MISO regional cost allocation allows

OTP torecoversome.of the costs of its transmission investrent from
the other MISO: utilities: On-March-26, 2012 the MPUC approved.an
all-in rmiethod for MISO regional cost allocationsin which OTP's retail
customers would be responsible for the entire investment: OTP made
with anoffsetting creditfor revenues received from other MISO utilities
under the MISO tariff,

On May 24, 2012.0TP filed a petition with the MPUC to seek a
determination of eligibility for the inclusion of twelve additional
transmission refated projects in subsequent-Minnesata TCRrider filings.
On August 22, 2012 the Minnesota Department of Commierce (MNDOC)
filed comments-and on August 24, 2012 the Minnesota Office of the
Attottiey General (MNOAG) filed comments. OTP filed reply comments
on September 25, 2012:and supplemental comments onJanuary 8, 2013
describing an agréement reached between OTP, the MNDOC and the
MNOAG, to find eligible- 3 of the 12 prajects. MPUC approval-of that
agreement is pending. I approvalis obtained to include additional projects
inthe rider; investment in the approved projects will beincluded inthe
nextannual Minnesota TCR riderrate update filings and recovery ol the
investment will begin through the TCRrider rates if subsequently approved
by the MPUC Updated costs assaciated with existing projects within
the Minnesota TCR rider-will also be included in the next annual rider
rate update filing. OTP has a regulatory liability of $0.5 million as of
Decersber 31, 2012 foramounts billed to Minnesota customers that
are subject to refund through the Minnesota TCR rider.

Conservation Improvement Programs~Under Minnesota law, every
regulated public utility that furnishes electric service must make annual
investrnents and expenditures in energy conservationimprovements, or
make a contribution to the state's engrgy-and corservation account; in
an amount equal to at least 1.5% of its gross operating revenues from
service provided in Minnesota. The Next Generation Energy-Act of
2007 passed by the Minnesota legislature in May 2007, transitions
from a‘conservation spending goalto a conservation energy savings goal.

The MINDOC may require a utility to make investments and
expenditures in energy conservation improvements whenever it finds
that the improvement will result in energy savings at atotal cost tothe
utility less thanthe costto the utility to produce or purchase anequivalent
amount of a new supply of énergy. Such MNDOC orders can be appealed
tothe MPUC Investments made pursuant to such orders generally-are
recoverable costs in rate cases, even though ownership of the
improvement may belong to the property ownerratherthan the utility.
OTP recovers conservation related costs notincluded in base rates
underthe MNCIP through the use of an-annual recovery mechanism
approved by the MPUC, \

In 2010, OTP recognized $3.7 million in financial incentives relating to
2010, but reduced that: amount by $0.2 millionin the fourth quarter of
2071, Awritten order was issied by the: MPUC on January 11,2012
approving the recovery of $3.5 million for the 2010 MNCIP financial
ingentives: Beginning inJanuary 2012, 0TPs MNCIP Conservation Cost
Recovery Adiustrent (CCRAY increased from 3.0% to 3.8% for all
Minnesota retail electric customers:

QTP recognized $2.2 million in MNCIP financial incentives in 201
relating to 2011 prograrm results; On March 30, 2012 OTP submittediits
annual 201 financialincentive filing request for $2.6 million-and
recognized an additional $0:4 million of incentive related to- 2011 in 2012,
in December 2012, the MPUC approved the recovery-of $2.6 millionin
financial incentives for 2011 and also ordered a change in the MNCIP cast
recovery methodology used by OTPfroma percentage of a customer's
bill to an amount per kwh consumed. The written order was issued on
Decémber 10,2012 O January 1, 2013 OTP's MNCIP surcharge decreased
from .89 of the custormer's bill to $0:00142 per kwh., which equatesto
approximately 1:9% of a customer's bill. The per-kwh cost allocation
method is the principle method approved by the MPUC for other eléctric
utilities in Minnesota. OTP recognized $2.6 million of MNCIP financial
incentives in 2012 relating to 2012 program results.
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Novth Dakota

Genaral Rate CasesUn November 3, 2008 OTP filed s general rate case
et Dakots requesting Snioversllrevenueincrease of approximately
SErmillion orbAY% antl anintedivate incréase of approxd rmta&iy 41 ‘%,
or bd B milioh annualized b wehtinto sffectondanuar
ped by the Noith Dakota Poblic Service Commission {ND?SC}
C2008 U was granted ari heréase in Notth Dakots
Srates ol S million orapproximately 30%, which went
nbecember 20092 The NDPST order authorizing aninterim
squired TR to vefund Nosth Dakota custo b
stween finalantinterimrates, with inte
v for revainies collected under interirrates that elcesded
s Therehod reserve balance cy{' SO millionag of
custormers inJanuary
,;r-;fmn bf a5 mhi orin mtv Caserralated filing
s that aresubject tp amortization and recovery bver
ingin January 2010 Ag regiived by the NDRSC
se, OTP submitted afillng for aveqguest to
s associated with economic developrment

.

¥
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inbase ratesin North wamw OTP proposed and the NDPSC approved

asairce Cost
VT t%:@

S qu) a%f:f:% fora North Dakota Qm
f%ei,w:&m a‘*i {RDQR&} ta enabla QTP

aciated

N : fli"% 4 ?v‘? rider at?sws 63“‘"3 to recover QQS’(
SWETSIE Mi‘ﬁr eneprgy-picjectsas they-are completed: OTP included
: tsiand-expenses related to e 32 wind Hibines At the
oy Centerthat became ctm‘:memiai%y operational

the amoantofthe N )Ma»ﬁ A Ni}R&A of $0. (;O‘)a per kwﬁ Wi m,mg;mvm
by thie NOPSCon January 14, 2009 and went Into effect baginnidg with
billingstatamentssention bmary‘ ;?GU@ %rmg of the:approved
settivinant provide forthe yobaceruad costs and returng on
iavestmgity inenswahleshergy fa ilities u rwiw Hie NDRR N overa
peripd of A8 widnthe begimning i January 2010,

ditw that was combined with OTP's gengral rate case, the
nwmé whather iy miove H}s« costs ol the pm jects belng

dtobe Appl 2010 Berause the 5{308 annual NDRRA
o with the general vate caseprocesdings fooncluded
ihe 2009 anpuatfiling toestabll .&3 t%w&: OO NDRRA
Goovery for OTP S investiment i ity Luverng Wmd
ayeduntil December 31 2009w t%‘a areguest
010 Approvat forimplementationof anupdated
B sk inthe thirdiguarter o 2010 with implementation
wifective September 1 2010
Tha 2010 MDRRA was i place for the period of September 12010
el March 3, 2002 with & recovery of $15.6million: On December 29,
SOVLOTR submitted 8 aonual update tothe renewable tideriwithan
Apdl L2012 effective date, whichwas approved by the NDPSC ot
March 220 ZOINDRRA bas anexpected rdcovery of
SO willionover the penad Apnl 12012 through March 31 2013,

DT has gregulatoryasset ol $Lémillion foramounts eligiblefor recovery
through the NDRRAvider that have not been billed to North Dakots
customersias of Decerbear 31,2012

Transmission Cost Recovery Rider=North Dakotalaw providesa
msthanism for sutomatic adjuskment autside of a general rateproceading
to racover jurisdictional capital and operating costs incurred by.a plibilic
utitity: fornew orimoditted electric transmigsion faclities OTP ke i
reguestioraninital North Dakota TCR rider with the NDPSConApril
29200 which wag approved By the NDPSCon April 25, 2012

e podnte
effect May 1, 2012 On August 31, 2012 OTP filed its anpualupdateto the
MortreDakota TCR rider vate fo reflect updated cost information
associated with projecty cuvrentlyin thesider aswall as proposing o
wlude costs assotiated with ten additional projects for recovery within
th e rider which the NDPSCapprovedon Decsmber 12 201250 2o into
tlanuary 1 2003, 0P has s regulatory assetof $0 0 million for
arnounts eligible for recovery through the North Daketa TCR rider that
have not beey bitted to North Dakota customers as of December 312010

South Dakota i
2010 General Rate Case Filing=0On August: 20, 2010 OTP filed & general
rate case with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission (SRPLIE)
requesting anoverall revenue increase of approximately $2.8 million or
justuntdier 10.0%, which-includes; among other things, recovery of
ihvestiments ant expenses related to renewable resources O
September 28,2010 the SDPUC suspended OTR'S proposed ratesfora
period pf180: days to allow timeto review OTP'S proposal Ondanary 19,
20T submitted a proposal to usecurrent rate design to implement
aninterimrate in SouthDakota to be effective on'and after February 17
20T Ordanyary 26, 200 OTP submitted an amended proposalte use s
lower interim ratedncrease than originally proposed At it Febraary 1,208
reeting, the SDPUCapproved OTPsrequest to implement inferiny rates
sing current rate designand the lowst interimiincrease 1o b i
on and after Februsry 172071 On Apsl 21201 the SDPUC
wiittan ordec approving anoverall final revenue incréase of approxir ww
$643,000 by andanoverasibrateof retirnon rate base ot e Yo
for the Interim rates and final rates. Final rates were effective with bills
rendéred-onmand atter June 1, 2002

e

Transimission Cost Recovery Rider==South Dakotataw provides a
mecharism forautomatic sdjustment outside of & general rate procaeding
torrecover jurisdictionalcapital and operating costsincurred by a public
utitity for newor modified lectric transivission facilities QTR subimitted
arequest-for aninitial South Dakota TCR rider to the SDPUC on
Movermber 52070 The South Dakota TCR was approved by the SDPLIC
and implerented on December 1, 2010 OTP billed $570,000 toSouth
Dakota custormersuhder the TCRvider fromy Decarmber 120 through
December3l; 2012 andhadia regulatory assetof $2,000 for ampunts
eligible forvecovery through the South Dekota TCR rider thathad v
%:mww billed 4‘{3 %m’h {?akm:a ::utmmefs a5 c}f E‘e’iﬁmbﬁéf 3L 2o120n

f(}x ?idﬁﬂ’ rate i h@. et @&i is f;u{fent ¥ uﬂﬁer review by the ST n‘ Ux
Engrgy Eif iciency Plane=The SDRPUL has encouraged sl lnvestor-owned
utiliti rDakotato bepart of an Energy Efficiency Pactoership
significantly reduceenergy use: The plamis being implemented with
program costs; cartying costs-and a financial incentive being recoverad
throughan approved tider

Orihiine 16; 2000 OTP filed w reqiiesbwith the SDPUC forapprovat of
updates to its 2010 South Dakota Energy Efficiency Plan and approval
forthe:continuation of the program in 2011, OTRrequested incréages in
energy.and demand savinigs goals and increases in related financial
incantivas for both 2010 and the requested 201 program ta anorder
issued ondily 27 2010 the SDRUC approved OTR greatiest for updated
anergy; demand and participation goals for continuation of the program
into 207 s :




O April 29,2011 OTP filed a request with the SDRUCtor approval of
2. 2010 financial incentive of $73,415 and asurcharge adjustment of
$0.00064 on South Dakota customers’ bilis: On-May. 25, 2011 OTP filed
a request with the SDPUC forapproval of Updates to its 2012+2013
South Dakota Energy Efficiency Plan: The SDPUC approved the 2012-
2013 plan with a maximum available incentive payment limited to 30%
of the budget amount provided in the plan, or $84,000.

Federal

Wholesale power sales and transmission rates are subject tothe jurisdiction
of the FERC under the Federal Power Act of 1935, as amended. The FERC
is anindependent agéncy, which has jurisdiction over rates for wholesale
electricity sales, transmission and sale of electric energy.in interstate
commerce; interconnection of facilities, and accounting policies and
practices. Filed rates are effective after a-one day suspension period;
subject to ultimate approval by the FERC.

Effective January 1, 2010, the FERC authorized OTP's implementation
of-a forward looking formula transmission rate under the MISO Open
Access Transmission, Energy and Operating Reserve Markets Tariff
(MISO Tariff), OTP was also authorized by the FERC to recover in its
formula rate: (1) 100% of prudently incurred Construction Work in
Progress (CWIP) in rate base and (2) 100% of prudently incurred costs
of transmission facilities that are cancelled or abandoned forreasons
beyond OTP's control {Abandoned Plant Recovery), as determined by
the FERC subsequent to abandenment, specifically for three regional
transmission CapX2020 projects that OTP isinvesting in;including the
Fargo Project, Bemidji Project and Brookings Project.

On Decamber 16, 2010 FERC approved the cost allocation fora néw
classification of projects in MISO called Multi-Value Projects (MVP).
MVPs are designedto enable the region to comply with energy policy
mandates and to address reliability and economiic issues affecting multiple
transmission zones within the MISO region: The cost allocation is
designed to ensure that the costs of transmission projects with regional
benefits are properly assigned to those who benefit. On October 20,
2011 the FERC reaffirmed the MVP cost allocation on rehearing The
MVP cost allocation is currently being challenged at the United States
Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit.

Effective January 1, 2012, the FERC authorized OTP to recover 100%
CWIP and Abandoned Plant Recovery on two projects approved by
MISO as MVPs in MISO's 2011 Transmission Expansion Plan: the Big
Stone South-=Brookings MVP and the Ellendale=Big Stone South MVP.

The Big Stone South—Brookings Project—~OTP is jointly developing this
project with Xcel Energy. MISO approved this project as an MVP under
the MISO Tariff in December 2011 A Noticé ofIntent to Constrict
Facilities (INICF) was filed with the SDPUC on February 29,2012 A
portion of this line is-anticipated-to use previously obtained:Big Stone Il
transmission route permits and easements and is expected to bein service
in 2017. O July 31,2012 the SDPUC approved the transferof the Big
Stone H-transmission route permits to OTP In December 2012, arreqlest
was filed with the SDPUC for recertification of a portionof the dine route
that was approved as part of the Big Stone Il transmission development.
OTP and:Xcel Energy expect-to make a jeintroute permit filing inthe
second quarter of 2013 for the remaining portion of the project.

The Ellendale—Big Stone South Project-0TP isjointly developing this
project with Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., a Division of MDU Resources
Group, Inc. (MDUY. MISO approved this project as-an MVP under the
MISO Tariff in December 2011 OTP-and MDU jointly filed an NICE with
the SDPUC in March of 2012, This project will require regulatory approval
from both the'SDPUC and the NDPSC. Route permits are expected to be
filad with the respective commissions in the third quarter of 2013,

Capacity Expansion 2020 (CapX2020)
CapX2020 is a joint initiative of eleven investor-owned, cooperative, and

municipal utilities in Minnesota and the surrounding region to upgrade
and expand the electric transrmission grid to ensure continued reliable
and affordable service: The CapX2020 companies identified four major
transmission projects for the region: (1) the Fargo-Monticello 345 kiloVolt
(V) Projéct (the Fargo Project); (2)the Brookings=Southeast Twir Cities
345kV Project (the Brookings Project), (3) the Bemidji-Grand Rapids
230 KV Project (the Bemidji Project), and (4) the Twin Cities=LaCrosse
345 kV Project. OTP is an investor in the Fargo Project, the Brookings
Project and the Bemidji Project. Recovery of OTP's CapX2020 transmission
investments will be through the MISO Tariff (the Brookings Project asian
MVPY and Minnesota, North Dakota and South Dakota TCR Riders.

The Fargo Project=All major permits have beenreceived fronvstate
rezulatory bodies and project agreements have been'signed for the
construction of the Fargo Project: The:Monticello to St-Cloud portion of
the Fargo Project-was placed into service on December 21,2011
Complation of all phases of the Fargo Project is scheduled for the first
quarter of 2015,

The Broskings Project—All major permits have been received from state
regulatory bodies and project agreements have been signed for the
construction of the Brookings Project; The MISO granted uncanditional
approvalofihe Brookings Project asan MVP under the MISO Tariff ir
December 2011 Thisproject will be placed in service in segments with
the earliest segment being placed in service inthe summer of 2013-and
thelast segment placed in service during the first.quarter of 2015

The Bemidiji Project=The Bemidji-Grand Rapids transmission line was
fully eriergized and putinto serviceon September17, 2012

Big Stone Air Quality Control System
The South Dakota Departrment of Environment and Natural Resources
(DENR) determined that the Big-Stone Plantis subject to Best - Available
Retrofit Technology (BART) requirements of the Clean Air Act{CAA),
based on air dispersion modeling indicating that Big Stone's emissions
reasonably-contribute to visibility impairmentirnational parks and
wilderness areas in:Minnesota; North Dakota, South Dakota and
Michigan: Under the LS Eavironmental Protection Agency's (EPA)
regional haze regulations; South Dakota developed and submitted its
implermentation planand associated fmplementation rules to the EPA on
Jahuary 21,2011 The DENR and EPA have agreed on non-substantive
rule revisions, which were adopted by the Board of Minerals and
Enviranrment and became effective on September 19, 2011

South Dakota developed and submitted itg revised implementation
platiand associated implementation rules to EPA on September 19,2071
Under the South Dakotaimplementation plan, and its'implementing
rules, the Big Stone Plant mustinstall and operate a new BART compliant
atrquality controbsystermrto reduce emissions as expeditiously as
practicable, but no later than five vears after the EPA's approval of South
Dakota's implementation plan. On Mareh 29,2012 the EPA toek final
actionto approve South Dakota's Regional-Haze State Implementation
Plan (SIP) finding that South Dakota's SIP submitttal met all applicable
regional haze regulations: The EPA's final approvalof the SIPwas
effective onMay 29,2012

Ondanary 14, 2011°07TP filed apetition asking the MPUC tor ADPfor
the design; construction and operation of the BART compliant-air quality
control system at:Big Stone Plant attributable to serving OTP's Minnesota
custormers. On'December 20,201 the MPUC granted OTP’s petition for
ADP for the Big Stone Plant Air Quality Control System (AQCS). The
MPUC written order was issued onJanuary 23,2012,

An application for an ADP filed by OTP-with the NDPSC on May 20,
201 was approved on May 9, 2012

OnMarch 30,2012 OTP requested approval from the SDPUC for an
ECRR to recover costs associated with the Big Stone Plant AQCS, with a
proposed effective date of October 1, 2012, Information requests for this
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costs overthe 3omonth recovery period the recoverable armount of

4349000 was discounted todts presentvalue ol 53 213000 using
OTPs ncremental borrowing rate, in accordance with AST 980

5 yse rates throughthe filing of accounting requirements: The North Dakota portiorof Big Stons i
Fperind ol Oetober1:2¢

& Dthrough September 30, ganeration costs s being récovered overad6-mionth periodwhic
OO el Hie reguirementrecovery onexpenditires ‘baganon August 12010,
ingurred fov the Big 8 it AQCS. The request is corrently tinder The North Dakota jurisdictional share of Big Smn@ Heosts
Feviewsby the SDPUG 2 ' incurred by OTP related to transmigsion is $1053,000: OTP trfasw'*fem.c)
: G the North Dakota share of Big Stone I transmission costs to CWIE,
Big Stone ll Project : withy such costs subject to AFUDC continuing from Septermber 2009,
Unliane 30, 200507P shd s-conlition obsboother slectiicproviders Heonstructionot all of aportion ot the transmission facilities

e-vimwd into several g; Qe%eﬁfs f(}r the fjezvdu,mmem of & a}m electric comumences withinthres years ot the NDPSC order approving the
gr Stiine settlement agresment, the Naorth Dakota pertioniol Big Stanell
transmission costs and actumulated AFUDC shaltbeintluded i the
L;Qt%z a5 a;;aariztigaimg ;;t i by smd asthe proj {ef:i 51 e&ad rate base investiment for these tuture transmission faciities, |

Vg Stone B-0n November 2, 2009 the r@mmwg Big construction is not commenced 6r any ofthe transmission Bicilities

%a:«mﬁ Hparticipants anncunced the cancellation of the Bi Hpraject. withinthreayears of the NDPSC order approving the settlement
agreement; QTP may petition the NDPSC to either eontinug accounting
finneseia equestad recovery of the Minnesota portion of its Big for these costs as CWAP orto commence recovery of suchcosts
Stonedl development tosts over g divesyear period as part ofitg gensral :
rate case Bledin Minnesola on April 22010, dn s wrilten ofder issuadon South Dakota~OTPrequested recovery-of the South Dakota portion
APk 2B 200 the M uthorized recavery of the Minnesota portion ofits Big Stone H development costs overa fivesyear period a5 pattof
of Big Stone 1| generation development costs frotn Minnesota ratepayers its:ganeral rate cise filed in South Dakota on August 20, 2010; nithe
over g 60umonth recovery pm 1ad which began-on October L 2011 The fiest quarter of 2011 the SDPUC approved recovery of the South Dakota
arountol Big Stoned) generationtostyincured by OTPhat wers dearmed portion of Big Stone Il generation developmient costs totaling
recoveralile fromi Minnesola ,«f.ﬁgpayem was$3199.000 twhich excluded approximately $1O million from South Daketa ratepayers overa
3,246,000 bt projett ansmissionsrelated costs), Because: QTP Will not ten-year periot béginning in February 2011 with thaimplementation
earrea retiron these deferred costs over the 6Usmonth recovery petiod, atinterim rates OTPwillbe allowed to earm areturn onthe amiount
kit mnmg t x:zé %E’s 199, f‘:}f) WS d {sCoL *ted i”(\ its : x;aia; l: subject to recovery over the ten-year recovery period. Therefore, the

South Dakotasettlement amount is not discounted: OTP hransteried
) ; the South Dakota portion-of the remaining Big Stone B transmission
3’&?9 filed 2 feé;uxﬁg foran ?‘}(’{6‘4 ionofthe costs to CWIR with such costs subject to AFUDC and recovery in
vihe Big Stone [ transmission facilities The futur Crapproved MISO rates or reiaufatés On .Zu*y L2012 the
o extend the deadiine for Hling a COM forthise transmission SPUC spproved the transter of the Sig Stone i bransmission route
Iilarch 172005 The April 25, 2010 MPUL srder instructed permitsto OTR
fthe §3 246 D00 Minnesota share of Big Stone ||
st i’;sﬁs{i? ‘and to create a tracker account through 4, REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

; S could b actumulated fof refurdior o T O N e B ST AT LV
viuture rate cases as aregulatory labilityor Az aregulated entity, OTP accounts for the financial effects of regulation
foprecovery Under the FERC-approved itatcordance with ASC 980, Regulated Operations. This accounting
pactarith the Minnesota portion of Big Stong standard: allows Tor the recording of a vegulatory asset or liabilityfor

@
g
ﬁ

asget it detemiinad e
MISC regional transm

transmission Costs and avcumulated Allowanice for Funds Used During - costs that will be collected or refunded in the future as required nder
Construction CAFUIC will receive rate bage treatnent and recovery reguiation: The following regulatory assets reflect intured costs eligible
thicugh the FERCanproved MISO regional tfanssm%won rates: Any _ for vactvery in future periods on which the Company will noteéarn a
aounts over or under collétted through MISO rates will b teflectid in rateof return: Prior Service Costs and Actuaial bosses on Pensions and
thetraiker agcount: s : Qther Postretirement Benefits, the Accumulated ARD Accretions
e Depreciation Adiustment, Debt Reacquisition Premiumis Big Stone |

North Dakota=n an order issued dJune 25, 7010, the NDPST authorized Jtirecovered Projéet Costs=Minngsota, Deferreddncome Taxes, hs
E:leon o :*cia»ﬁczm%aﬁt conts FriomNorth Dakotaratepayers; MISO Schadule 26 Transmission Cost Recovery Rider Truesup; Big

preant agresment filed fune 23 2010 bebween Stona ll Unrecovered Project Costs==North Dakots, General Rate Cas
1 OTR and the North Dakota Large Industrial Recoverable Expenses and Deferred Holding Company Formation Costs,

“ Thet terms of the settlement agrsement Additionally, ASC 98060525 provides for the recognition of reveriugs
3 iw T Q‘t Q}S"éﬁ‘iﬁ’i tation of participation in the pr authotized for recovery outside of a geneval rate case underalierative
b 0T R shouid be authorized torecover the nortion 6l costsit ravenue provrams which provide for recovery of costs and incentives

sted tothe B Stone H generation project. The totatamount rreturns oniovestmentin such itemsas transmission infragtructiure,
st incurred by UTR (which excluded rmpwab lerenergy resources or conservationinitiatives. The followirig
Sf transimission-related costs) was determined to be regilatory gssets represent amounts eligible forrecovery undet
ichigd 064 000 wprewntq ’\iorth Dakotas alteraative révenue programs or onwhich the Company earns an
g ' tncentive.or rate of retiirn; Conservation Improvement Program Costs

P s imx:;iudmg i

el recovery amotint a cartying c:h‘m’waif _ arid ncentives, North Dakota Renswable Resource Rider Accried
spprbxinately $285 000 on the North Dakata share of Big Stone il Revenues; Minnesata Renewable Resource Rider Accrned
genaration costs for the period from Septemberd; 2009 through the: Revenves; Big Stone 1 Unrécovered Project Costs=South Dakots,
datethe Mcovery of coste beping based on OTP'S averaie 2009 ARIDC North Dakota Transmission Rider Accrued Reverues and

vt of 765%  Betaus

O e will notdarn g etunm onithess deferisy South Daketa Transiission Rider Accried Revenue,




The following table indicates the amount of regulatory assets.and
liabilities recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet:

B R T TR T

Remaining Recovery

1ousanids)

(in th /Refund Period

Regulatory Assets: : ;
Prior Service Costs and Actuarial Losses on Pensions and Other Postretirernent Benefits $o08411 $-109,538 $ 117,949 seenote
Deferred Marked-to-Market Losses 7,949 10,050 17,999 72 months
Conservation Improvement Program Costs and Incentives 3,707 2,560, 6,267 18 months
Accurnulated ARD Accretion/Depreciation Adjustment e 4,137 4,137 asset lives
Debt Reacquisition Premiums 268 1,978 2,246 237 months
Big Stone 1l Unrecovered Project Costs—Minnasota 526 1,618 2,144 45 months
Recoverable Fuel and Purchased Power Costs 1,737 e 1,737 12 months
Daferred Income Taxes e 1,691 1,691 asset lives
North Dakota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Revenues 532 1,087 1,619 15 months
MISO Schedule 26 Transmission Cost Recovery Rider Trie-up B 1,352 1,352 68 note
Minnesota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Revenues 915 - 915 5 moriths
Big Stone Il Unrecovered Project Costs—North Dakota 908 e 908 7 months
Big Stone Il Unrecovered Project Costs—South Dakota 100 71L 811 97 months
Genersl Rate Case Recoverabla Expenses 279 é 285 13 months
North Dakota Transmission Rider Accrued Revenues 110 = 110 12 months
Deferred Holding Company Formation Costs 55 27 82 18 months
South Dakota Trargssmission Rider Accrued Revenue 2 s 2 12 months

Total Regulatory Assets $ 25,499 $ 134,755 $ 160,254

Regulatory Liabilities: i
Accumulated Reserve for Estimated Remaval Costs—Net of Salvage % - $ 65,960 $ 65,960 asset lives
Deferred Income Taxes e 2,553 2,553 asset lives
Minnesota Transmission Rider Accrued Refund 489 - 489 12 months
Deferred Marked-to-Market Gains 8 210 218 68 maonths
Deferred Gain on Sale of Utility Property—Minnesota Portion 6 112 118 252 morniths
South Dakota—Nonasset-Based Margin Sharing Excess 56 - 56 12 months

Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 559 $ 68,835 $ 769,394
Net Regulatory Asset Position $ 24,940 $ 65920 90,860

Remaining Recovery

Current Long-Term “Total /Refund Period

Regulatory Assets:
Urirecognized Transition Obligation, Prior Service Costs and Actuarial Losses on Pensions

and Other Postretirement Benefits $ 6,304 $ 96,074 $ 102,378 see notes
Deferred Marked-to-Market Losses 5,208 10,749 15,957 . A4 rmonths
Conservation Improvement Program Costs and Incentives 5,234 2,208 TALL 18 months
Recoverable Fuel-and Purchased Power Costs 4,043 s 4,043 ~A12.months
Accumulated ARO Accretion/Depreciation Adjustment e 3,662 3,662 asget lives
Minnesota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Revenues 1,461 1,306 2,767 ! 33 months
Big Stone Il Unrecovered Project Costs—Minnesota 495 2,144 2,639 57 months
Debt Reacquisition Premiums 280 2,246 2,526 249 months
Deferred Incorme Taxes e 2,382 2,382 asget lives
Big Stone Il Unrecavered Project Costs—North Dakota 1,340 862 2,202 19 months
North Dakota Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Revenues 785 1,325 2,110 24 motiths
General-Rate Case Recoverable Expenses 721 285 1,006 25 months
Big Stone Il Unrecovered Project Costs—South Dakota 100 811 911 109 months
North Dakota Transmission Rider Accrued Revenues 518 e 518 12 months
MISO Schedule 16 and 17 Deferred Administrative Costs—ND 343 e 343 11 months
MISO Schedule 26 Transmission Cost Recovery Rider Trus-up 252 — 252 12 months
Deferred Holding Company Formation Costs 55 83 138 30 months
South Dakota—Asset-Based Margin Sharing Shortfall 138 - 138 2 months
South Dakota Transmission Rider Accrued Revenues 114 Bt 114 12 months
Total Regulatory Assets % 27,391 $ 124,137 $ 151,528
Regulatory Liabilities: ;
Accumulated Reserve for Estimated Removal Costs-—~Net of Salvage $ - $ 65,610 $ 65610 asset lives
Deferred Income Taxes - 3,379 3379 asset lives
Deferred Gain on Sale of Utility Property—Minnesota Portion 6 117 123 264 months
Deferred Marked-to-Market Gains 96 = 96 12 months
South Dakota—Nonasset-Based Margin Sharing Excess 54 - 54 12 months
Minnesota Transmission Rider Accrued Refund 28 — 28 see notes
Total Regulatory Liabilities % 184 $ 69,106 $ 69,290
Net Regulatory Asset Position § 27,207 $ 55,031 $ 82,238
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i tmvm oh rates as *wy are expens <~d over im ramal nmg
j tive eriployess included in'the plans, These inrecognized
it costs and actuarial 5 are reguired to. be recognized as

tad Other Cornpiehensivé Income:ih equity
qsRetirerment Benefits, bt are eligible for
caets based on their probable récovery in
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gtpGnents of Mot
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fitiire vedail ¢
Al Deterred Marked-to-Market Galnsand Lossesrecorded as of

Diecember 21, 2012 9re related to forward purd] ‘heduled
for delivery through Desembier 2018

Comservation fﬂ‘{)ii}’u‘e?ﬁé’it ?fg}gram Costs and Intentives represent

@J&f i ?ateg

o Agget Betirement Obligation (ARO) Actretion/
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lopgestof which i
Big Store t Wntecovered Project Costs—Minnesota are the Minhesota
share of costs incurced by OTP related to its participation inthe abandoned
Big Stone 1 generation project.
The repifatory assets and labilities related to Def&err&ad ncome Taxes
result frofy changes dn statutory tax rates accounted for in accordance
With ASE 70, Income Toaxes.
i Dakota Renswabile Resource Rider Accrued Revenu
o gualitving renewsble résoures sincurred to
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Decermber 31,2012,
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aisrrission Rider Accrued Revenues rglate to
Hyving frafsmission system facilities and operating
Shuth Dakota customers net-of tradsmission
foto South Dakota custorers as of

wvmxmw fig %m e
costidncured o sery

roveuas that are réfundab
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The Avcumulated Reseive for Estimated Removat CostsNetot Salvage

is reducedas ¢

actialremoval costs net of salvage revenues; sre incumedd

The Minnesota Transmission Rider Acerued Refund relates to raveniies
billed forgualitying transmission ﬁyst@m Hfacilities and operating costs
incurred to serve Minnesota customers net m‘ transmission reveries
that are refundable to Minnesota customers as of December 31, 2000

South DakotasNonasset-Based Margin bhmmg Excessrepiesenty
259% of OTPs South Dakota share of actual profit margiison nohasset-

asw;ﬁ whol '**;;3%9 siles ol electricity: ThHe excessimatging dccomalated
armually will be subjett to refund through future fﬁa{! rateadiustiments
in South Dakota inthe following year.

If for any reason, OTP ceases tomeet the criteria for appli
guidisrice under AST 98D far all ar part of its operations, the
assets and liabilities that nolonger meet such criteria would b
from ed-balance sheet andinclided inthe consoli
1 of incomeas an extraordinary expense orincome femin the
lication ot guidance under ASC 980 ceases.

fon ol
atory
noved
dated

statemer
period in which the appl

k 5. FORWARD CONTRACTS CLASSIFIED AS DERIVATIVES
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Elactricity Contracts

All of OTP's wholesale purchases and sales of energyunder forward
contracts that do not meet the definition of capacity confracts are
considered derivatives subject to mark-to-market accounting. QTP
objective inentering into forward contracts for the purchiase and sale of
energy Is o optimize the use of its generating and tiahsrmission facilities
and leverage its knowledge of wholesale energy markets in-the region to
maximize financial retusns for the benefit-of both its customers anl
shareholdars, OTP's intentin.entering into certainof these contre
to settle them through the physical delivery of énergy when physi
possible and economically feasible-OTF alsoenters info certain contr
for trading purposes with the intent to profitfrom fluctuations in ma
hrodgh the timin '>f purchases and sales.

Asof Decernber 31, 2012 OTP had recognized, on a pratax basis
$45,000 innet uniealized gains on open forward contracts for the
purchase and sale of eled uty The market-prices usedto value OTP's
forward contracts for t't 1@ purchases and sales of electricity-and electeizity
ganergting Li}{f)”% ity are determined by survey of cw;wtmpartim arbrokers
used by OTF's power services' personnel responsiblefor contre
as well as prices gathered from daily séttlement prices publishe
Intercontinental Exchange and CME Globex, For certain contracts, prives
at illiquid trading points are based on‘a basis spread béatwaem that trading
point and more liguid trading hub prices. These basis spreads are
determined based on available market price information and the use of

forward price curve models. The fair value measurements of thes
o fair value

forware energy contracts fall into tevel 2 and level 3.ufth

hierarchy set forth in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement,
Flecttic operating révenues include whalesale sleetric s
sirealizad derivative gains on forward energy contracts; the acquisi
and %etﬂﬁzm@:at of finanicial transmission rights and congestion revenue
r*ight,a options in the MISO and Electric Reliability Council 61T
ERCOT) m mkets and daily settlerments of vsr’ruai transactions in the




MISO, ERCOT and California independent Transmission System Operator
markets, broken downas-follows for the years ended Decermber 3t

Wholesale Sales

Company-Owned Generation 12,951 3 14,5187 § 20,053
Revenue from Settled Contracts
at Market Pricas 160,987 168,313 147,003
Market Cost of Settled Contracts (159,500) . (166,920)  (145,994)
Net Margins on Settled
Contracts at Market 1,487 1,393 1,009
Marked-to-Market Gains
on Settled Contracts 7,864 10,208 18,901
Marked-to-Market Losses
on Settled Contracts {7,974 (10,1767 (17:529)
Net Marked-to-Market (Losses) :
Gains onSettled Contracts (110) 32 1,372
Unrealized Marked-to-Market Gains :
on Open Contracts 284 3,707 6,700
Unrealized Marked-to-Market Losses
on Open Contracts (235) (2,813) (5,937
Net Unrealized Marked-to-Market
Giains on:Open Contracts 49 894, 763
Wholesale Electric Revenuie $ 14,3775 $ 16,837 0 $.23,197

The following tables show the effect of marking to market forward
contracts for thepurchase and sale of electricity and the location and
fair value amounts of the related derivatives reported on the Company's
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and December31,
2071, and the change inthe-Company's consolidated balance sheet
position from Decemnber 31,2011 to December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2010 to December 31, 2011

SerEviesYay

Defsembar 3‘3 2cm

Other Curient Assét—Marked-to-Market Gain % 502 4 3,803
Regulatory Asset—Current Deferred
marked-to-Market Loss 7,945 5208
Repulatory Agset—Long-Term
Deferred Marked-to-Market Loss 10,050 10,749
Total Assets 18,501 19,760
Current Liability=-Marked-to-Market Loss (18,234)' (18,770)

Regulatary Liability—Current Deferred
Marked-to-Market Gain (8): (96)
Regulatory Liabitity—Long-Term

Deferred Marked-to-Market Gain (2100 o
Total Liabilities (18,452) (18,866)
Net Falr Value of Marked-to-Market
Energy Contracts $ 49 $ 894
Year Ended Year Eﬂded

Survl = Fair Value Adjustments
Included in Earnings—Beginning of Period  $ 894 $ 763
Less: Amounts Realized on Settfement of

(861)

The $49,000 inrecognized -but unrealized net gains on the forward
erargy and capacity purchases and sales marked to market on
December 31, 2012 is expected to be realized on settlement in the first
quarter of 2013

OTP has credit risk associated with the nonperformanc& or nonpayment
by countérparties toits forward energy and capacity purchases and
sales agreements: We have established guidelines and fimits to manage
credit risk associated with wholesale power and capacity purchases and
sales. Specific limits are determined by a-counterparty’s financial strength.

The following table provides information on: OTP's credit risk exposure
on delivered.and marked-to-market forward contracts as of Decemnber 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011

" December 31, 2011
Exposure - Counterparties

Net Credit Risk on Forward

Energy Contracts % 580 [ $ 1,677 10
Net Credit Risk to Single
Largest Counterparty $ 285 $ 737

OTP hada net credit risk exposure to five counterparties with
investment gradée credit ratings and one counterparty that has not been
rated by anexternal credit rating agency but has been-evaluated internally
and-assigned an'internal credit rating equivaleat toinvestiment grade.
OTP had no exposure at: December 31,2012 or December 31, 201110
counterparties with credit ratings belowinvestment grade: Cotinterparties
with investment grade credit ratings have minimum credit ratings of
BBB= (Standard & Poor's); Baa3 (Moody's) or BBB={(Fitch). The credit
risk exposuresinclude net amounts dueto OTP onreceivables/payables
from completed-transactions billed and unbilled plus marked-to-market
gains/losses on forward contracts for the purchase and sale of electricity

cheduled for delivery subsequent to the reporting date. Individual
counterparty exposures are offset according to legally enforceable
netting arrangements. e

The following table provides a breakdown of OTP's credit risk standing
on forward energy contracts in marked-to-market foss positions as of
December 31, 2012 and Deacember 31, 2011

Current Liability——Marked-to-Market Loss

2580 96 8 A Ea A R HL BN Y

December 31, 2011

Loss Contracts Coverad by Deposited Funds

or Letters of Credit $ 2,176 $ 3,423
Contracts Requiring Cash Deposits if OTP's

Cradit Falls Below Investiment Grade (1) 16,058 15,347
Loss Contracts with No-Ratings Triggers

or Deposit Requirements -
Total Gurrent Liability—Marked-to-Market Loss $ 18,234 $oo 18770

acks contoln provisicns Hhal require’c
FORinG GQ-‘WSS on 01
these forward eng G
te i et fability pasitions

16,058 ) i
{418) (3.471)
15,642 % 11,878

Contracts Entered into in Prior Periods
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts

Entered into in Prior Periods (33) (86)
Cumutative Fair Value Adjustments in

Earnings of Contracts Entered into in

Prior Years at End of Period e 321
Changes in Fair Value of Contracts Entered :

into in Current Period 49 573
Cumulative Fair Value Adjustments

Included in Earnings—End of Period $ 49 $ 894

DYTER TAIL CORPORS



G COMMON SHARES AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

T B S T R L R R T TS e R PR 2 2

Oiiay 12010 Company filed ashelfregistration statement with
the bhs 5 i d Exchange Commission (SEC) underwhich trnay
offerfosale fromitimetodime either separately or fogetherinany
combination; ehuity: debtorother securities described Intheshelf

veglatration statemant nchiding commicn sharés of the Comipany.

Cowimon Shave Distribution Agreement
OriMay 142012 the Companyeatered into-a Distribution Agrevment
x%;he% Bgreement) with 1P Morgan Securities UPMSyurider whichithe

- n;mw ﬁmy offerand sell- s cormmon shares hom Hirne todime

Soas the Company'sdistribution-agent for the offer and sale
U o arageregate sales price of $75000,000,

LB % §¥”1\1'%‘a Wi tse

arzachions on tiﬁe NASL/AQ uéaha *M act M s{ka
thierwise agreed with JPMS. The Campany may
APME, as principal forits owniaccount, on
impany-and JPMS in a separate sgreemeant atithe
timg et aala 1 PMSwill recelve romithe Company-a coramissior.of 29
of thesgross sales price hare forany. shares sold throughit as the
Cormipany's distribution agent underthe Agreement.

The Cormpanyisnat obhigated tosell and JPMS s notobligatedto buy
or sell any ol the sheres under the Agréament. Thesharves, i issuesd, wil
vt pursuant to the Company's existing shelf registration gtat@mgnt,
asamended - N shares weresoldipursyant to the Agr@@ms‘mt 2032,

tabms mr\‘:‘c‘&i by he{

35,101,695

26,120

! ﬂnem;} foyes Directors 24,000

Convi cheUnits Viesied 43,450
Retirerments:

Shiares With B072)

held forindividiabincome Tax Requirathents
Forfeitufe of Unvested Regtrict

(1,828)

Stock

Cottirhon Staves Qutstanding, Dacember

Stock ncentive Plan
The 1999 Stockincantive Plan, as amended (Ine
forthe grant ¢ tack
e stock units, periormance awards, and other stock and

awards Atotal of 3600000 common shares are authorized
ook awards, G‘ wm::%‘; 957 3553 ware stillavaiiableas of
which terminates on

%s&miw&& Stock %schazﬂ Plan

3 vStack Purchase Plan (Purchase Plan) allows eligible
H38 i*t e Company's common sharesat 85% ot'the
sheachshermonth purchase period. On April 16,
stiolders approved an amendment 1o the

sthie fumber.of shares available under the

nm{mt &)

2082 the

thi Purchase

Dacernber 37, 20024

e zizsz"fetfon of t*w &mnmnv Qim res nurf? rased

underthe Purchiase Plan can be sither new issue shares or sharés
purchased i the open market: To provide shares for the Purchase Plan
60435 common shares were purchased in the open market in 2012,
78537 comimon shares were plirchased in the open market| naOltand
82,857 commion shares were purchased in the open market in 2010, The
shares to be purchased by employees participating inthe Purchase Plan
werd not riatenal to the calctlation of diluted earnings per share during
the Investment period.

Dividend Reinvestment and Sharve Purchase Plan

OrMay 11, 2012 the Company filed:a shelf registration statement-with
the SEC for the issuance of up 101,500,000 common shares pursuant to
the Company's Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase
Plan (the Plar), which permits shares purchased by sharehalders or
custorners who participateinthe Plan 1o be either neve is5ue comrmon
shares or common shares purchased in the open market. In 2012 commoen
shares were purchased inthe open market to provide shares for the Blan,
In 2010 sind 201 commen shares were purchased intheopen market to
srovide sharestor the Planunder & prior shelf regss?fa" ristatement
that expired on December 1, 2011

Earnings Per Share
The numerator used inthe calculation of both basicand difuted earmings
per share is éarrings available for common shares-with no adjustmernts
in 2012, 201 or 2010, The denorninator used in the calculation o basic
earnings pey common shareis the weighted average numberof common
shates outstanding during the perfod excluding nonvested restricted
sharesgranted tothe Company's directars-and employess ‘which are
considerad contingently returnable and ot outstanding Tor the purpose
of caleutating basicearnings per share. The denominator used inithe
calcukation of d’ ited earhings per commuon shareis derived by-adiusting
outstanding shares for the following: (1) all potentially difutivestock
aptions, \J) U medw w shares related to nonvested restricted stock units
grantedtoemployees, (3}/ Honvested ;fesi;;cted shares (1) shares
expected fo be awarded for stock performance awards granted to
executive officers, and (5) shares expected 10 be issued under the
deferred compensation program for directors, The gégu&tmeéms tothe
denominators used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share
resulted in no differéncesgreater than $0.0 betwesn basic and diluted

earnings per share in total or from-continuing or discortinted operations
in‘each of the years ended December 31, 2012, 201 and 2010;

The following outstanding stock options with exercise prices greater
than the average market price of the underlying shares were exchitled
from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 20012, 2001 and 2010:

Options Range of
Year Outstanding Exercise Prices
2017 92,437
: : 156397
2010 -

7. Sﬁ&RE BASED PAYMENTS
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Purchase Plan

The Purchase Plan allows employees through payroll withholding 1o
purchase shares of the Company’s common stack-at a 15% discount
from the average roarket price onthe last day of s six month investvient
period. Under ASC 718, Compensation™Stock Compensation, the Company
is required to record compensation expense related to the 15% discount.
The 15% discount resulted in compensation expense of $179,000'm
2012, $257.0001n 2011 and $277,000 in 20710 The 15% discount i vot
taxable to'the emplovee and is not a deductible expense for tax
purposes for the Company.



Stock Options Granted Under the Incentive Plan of the options). The estimated fairvalue of all options granted underthe

Since'the inceptiorvot the Incentive Planin 1999, the Company has Incentive Planwas based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
granted 2,041,500 options for the purchase of the Company's.common Thedollowing table provides information about options outstanding
stock:Allof the options granted had vested or were forfeited as of asof December 31, 2012 3

December 31, 2007 The exercise price of the options granted was the
average market price of the Company's common stock on the grant date:

BED A AL Wy

Remaining

Under ASC 718 accounting requirements, compensation expense is i i 6?“&“{"&"5:’;3 . Reming
recorded based on the estimated fair value of the options ontheir grant yercise Price Exercisable as of 12/21/ ontractysi Lite (yrs

date using afair-value option pricing model, Under ASC 718 actounting $.24.93 19,800 2.3

requirernents, the fair value of the options granted has been recorded as 526495 20,100 13
) R & 1

compensation expense over the requisite service period {the vesting period $.27:245 52,597 0.3

Presented below is a summary of the stock options activity:

ettt s s beiareenaennans R

Average Average. - Average

Exercise : Exercise Exercise

Options Price s Qptions Price Options Price

Outstanding, Beginning of Year 156,397 $ 2853 ; 383,460 2 27.28 444,810 $ 26.82
Granted — e B - - e
Exercised o o i - - 27,800 19.7%
Forfeited or Expired 63,900 31:34 ! 227,063 26,43 33,550 27.38
Outstanding, End of Year 92,497 : 26,59 166,397 28.53 383,460 2728
Exercisable, End of Year 92,497 26.59 1F56,3‘§7 28.53 383,460 27.28
Cash Received for Options Exercised - ] o 8. 549,000
Fair Value of Options Granted During Year none granted none grafted none granted

Restricted Stock Granted to Directors :
Under the Incentive Plan, restricted shares of the Company's common stock have been granted to' members of the Company’s Board of Directors as a
forrn of compensation. Under ASC-718 accounting requirements, compensation expense related to restricted sharesis based on the fair value of the
restricted shares on their grant dates. On April 16, 2012 the Company’s Board of Directors granted 24,000 shares of restricted stock to the Company’s
nonemployee directors. The restricted shares vest 25% per year an April 8 of ach yéar in‘the period 2013 through 2016 and are eligible for full dividend
and voting rights, Restricted shares not vested and dividends on those restricted shares are subject to forfeiture under the terms of the restricted stock
award agreement. The grant date fair value of each share of restricted stock was $21.32 per share, the average market price onthe date of grant.
Presented below is a surnmary of the status of directors’ restricted stock awards for the years ended Decernber 31

R N R  E T TS L r Lo S ahvssanuEass

201 2010

Weighted = . Weighted Weighted

Average i Average Average

Grant-Date 3 Grant-Date Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value : Sharés Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Naonvested, Beginning of Year 54,250 $ 23.26 | 59,725 $ 24,95 54,300 % 27.81
Granted 24,000 21.32 24,000 22.51 24,800 21835

Vested 21,350 24.86 29,475 2607 19,375 28,98

Forfeited e ; i e

Nénvested, End of Year 56,900 21.84 54,250 23.26 59,725 2495

Compensation Expense Recognized $ 552,000 ‘ $ 740,000 & 595,000

Fair Value of Shares Vested in Year 531,000 768,000 561,000

OTTER TAIL CORPORATION 30172 ANNUAL REW



&e&%m tod Stock Granted o Emplovess
| restricted shares of the Company'scammon stock have been granted to emplovees asa form of cormpensation: Under ASC
nents compensationexpense related to restricted shaves is basedorthe fair value of the restricted shares on theirgrant dates)
sany's Board of Directorsgranted 24500 shares of restricted stock to the Company's execttive officers under the Incentive.

25t 25% per vear.on April 8 of pac hoyear in the period: 2013 through 2016 and are eligible for full dividend and voting

(ot vested and dividends on ’clmw restricted shares are: subjectto forfelture under the terms of the restricted stack avard

fai value of each share of restricted stock was $21.32 per share; the average market pricé onthe date ol grant,

mpany’s Board of Divectors granted 1,620 shares of rstricted stockto the Cormpany's Vice President of Hurman Resources

: rﬁst?‘cied harm vest 25% w_r year onApril & of each year in'the period 2013 through 2016 and are eligible for full:

¢ dividends on thoserestricted shares are subject to forfeitureurider the terms of the

a9y gefrmr*t The wam datefair vsa%‘ gl the awarri was $23.93 pershare; the-average market price or the dateofthe
sok awards for the years ended: December 31

rant:

Prasented below 5o sundmary of the status of emiplovess

5 A N e E R Y e SR A AR R AR NN e e s R VAR R e R e WA N

201 200
Walghted Weighted . . Weiphled
Average Average . Average
Grant-Date . Gramt-Date = = 0 Grant-Dale
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Valie
4,868 % 2286 % 24879 50,478 $
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Stock Performance Awards granted to Executive Officers

The Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors has-approved stock performance award agreements under the Incentive Plan-for
the Company's executive officers. Under these agreements, the officers.could be awarded shares of the Company’s commaon-stock based on-the
Company's total shareholder return relative to that of its-peer group of companies inthe Edison Electric Institute (EEL) Index-over a three-year period
beginning on January 1 of the year the awards-are granted: The number of shares earned;if any, will be awarded and issued at the end of each three-year
performance measurement period. The participants have no voting or dividend rights-under these award agreements until the shares are issued at.the
end of the performance measurement period. The terms of the outstanding awards dictate that these awards be classified and accounted for as lability
awards, in accordance with the requirements of ASC 718, with compensation measured over the performance period based on the fair value of the

award at the end of each reporting period subsequent to the grant date,

On April 16, 2012 the Company's Board of Directors granted performance share awards to the Company's executive officers under the Incentive

Plarn for-the 2012-2014 performance measurement period.

The table below provides a'summary of stock performance awards granted and amounts expensed related to the stock performance awards:

P

Performance Max;mam Shares Shares Used To  Grant Date Expense Recognized in the Shares
iod FairValue Year F.nded December 31 Awarded

2()11 e 2010

2012-2014 161,600 1,001,000 % - % e
2011~2013 97,200 15,435 323,61 254,000 553,000 - 26,100
2010-2012 146,800 73,400 ¥ 20,97 e 572,000 513,000 49,500
2009-2011 181,200 90,600 § 2798 e 746,000 €178,000) 64,500
2008-2010 114,800 70,843 $ 37.59 hrc - 888,000 18,600
Total $ 1,255,000 $:1,871,000 $.1,223,000 158,700

The Company’s former Chief Executive Officer resigned his employment
with the Company effective December 15, 2011, and his resignation was
treated as a termination without cause for the purposes of his employment
agreement. Under the terms of his employment agreement, he received
the targeted number of the Company's common shares for the performance
awards granted him in 2009, 2010 and 2011, or 88,300 shares, valued at
the average of the high and low price of the Company’s comimon shares
on December.14, 2011 of $21.191 per share, for a total value of $1,871,165.

The Company's former Chief Operating Officer resigned his
employment with the Company effective December 30, 2010 with good
reason as that term is defined in his employment agreement. Under the
terms of his employment agreement, he received the targeted number
of the Company’s common shares for the performance awards granted
him in 2008, 2009 and 2010, or 70,400 shares, valued at the average of
the high and low price of the Cormpany’s common shares on December 30,
2010 of $22.78 per share, for a total value of $1,603,712.

The shares awarded shown in the table above for the 2008-2010,
2009-2011, 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 performance periods reflect only
shares received under the executive employment agreements. The
Company's 2008-2010, 2009-201 and 2010-2012 total shareholder
return rankings resulted in no incentive share awards for the Company's
active plan participants for the 2008-2010, 2009-2011 and 2010-2012
performance measurement periods,

The expense recorded in 2010 related to the 2008-2010 performance
measurement period reflects one-third of the grant-date fair value of the
total targeted number of awards for that performance period. The expense
recorded in 2010 related to the 2009-2011 performance measurement
period liability awards reflects the December 31, 2010 fair value of these
awards, estimated to be $0, which resulted in a reversal of $845,000 of
expense accrued in 2009, plus the December 30, 2010 market value of
the former Chief Operating Officer’s 2009-201 targeted share awards
of $667,000. The expense recorded in 2010 related to the 2010-2012
performance measurement period liability awards reflects the December 31,
2010 fair value of these awards, estimated to be $0, plus the December 30,
2010 market value of the former Chief Operating Officer's 2010-2012
targeted share awards of $513,000.

As of December 31, 2012 the total remaining unrecognized amount of
compensation expense related to stock-based compensation for all of
the Company's stock-based payment programs was approximately
$4.0 million {before income taxes), which will be amortized over a
weighted-average period of 2.2 years.

k 8. RETAINED &ARNINGS AND DIVIDEND RESTRIC? ION

The Company’s-Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, contain
provisions that limitthe amount of dividends that may be paid to common
shareholders by the amount of any declared but unpaid dividends to
holders of the Company’s cumulative preferred shares. Under these
provisions none of the Company's retained earnings were restricted at
Decemnber 31, 2012

The Company is a holding company with no significant operations of
its own. The primary source of funds for payments of dividends to the
Company's shareholders is from dividends paid or distributions made by
the Company's subsidiaries. As'a result of certain statutory limitations or
regulatory or financing agreements, restrictions could occur onthe amount
of distributions allowed to be made by the Company's subsidiaries.

Both the Company and OTP's credit agreements contain restrictions
on the payment of cash dividends upon a default or event of default, An
event of default would be considered to have occurred if the Company
did not meet certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company was in compliance with the debt covenants. See note 10 for
further information on the covenants.

Under the Federal Power Act, a public utility may not pay dividends
from any funds properly included in a capital account. What constitutes
“funds properly included ina capital account” is undefined in the Federal
Power Act or the related regulations; however, FERC has consistently
interpreted the provision to allow dividends to be paid as long as (1) the
source of the dividends is clearly disclosed, (2) the dividend is not
excessive and (3) there is no self-dealing on the part of corporate officials.

The MPUC indiréctly limits the amount of dividends OTP can pay to
the Company by requiring an eguity o total capitalization ratio between
46.3% and 56.7%. OTP's equity to total capitalization ratio was 52.0%
as of December 31, 2012, Total capitalization for OTP cannot exceed
$809 million.

9. COMM!TMENTS AND CONTINGENGES
Construction and Other Purchase Commitments
At December 31, 2012-0TP had commitments under contracts in
connection with construction programs aggregating approximately
$79,413,000.
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T, SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
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Short-Term Debt
Thefollowing tabi@ pmsomx the status of the Comipany'slines of credit
au of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201k ' :

mm»wwmmw

Restricted
S dueto
Inise on- Dutstanding ~ Available on

Avaitableon
Aetters: ‘Docomber 31 Decamber 31,
of Cradit 200 201

Line: -December 3%
Limit 200

Otter Tail
Corppration

{oredit

b 150,000 G e 738 B 049 067 5198 e

170,000 — 3,189 166,811 150
$ 320000 $ e F 39220 8 316078 5364106

Under the Otter Tall Corporation Credit Agreement referencedtbélow,
the maximum amount of debt outstanding in 2012 was $66,236.000 bn
July 13, 2012 and the average daily balance of debt outstanding duri ing
2012 was $12,078,000. The weighted average interest rate paid on debt
outstanding under the Otter Tail L,orpcwatxon Credit fkgwegmwﬂ durd ing
2012 was 3.6% compared with 3, 7% in 2011 Under the OTP C“mclxt
Agreefment referenced below, the maximum amount of debt outstanding
i 2012 was $16,582,000 on August 15, 2012 and the average daily
balance of debi cmiatandx.zg during 2012 was $5,867,000. The wei
avérage interest rate paid on debt outstanding under the OTP Credit
Agreement during 2012 was 1.7% compared with 5% in 201

On Ottober 29, 2012 the Company entered into a Third Amended and
Restatod Credit- Agreement (the Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement)
with'the Banks named thergin, which is an unsecured $150 million
revolving credit Tacility that the Company can drabvon to support it
’&piﬁ!’aﬁﬁ s and the operations of the businesses of Varistar The Ot
Corporation Credit Agreement amends and restates the Company’s
*wm' d Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated a5 of May 4,
2010, which was set to expire on May 4, 2013, and provided for &
$200 mitlion Jing of credit: Borrowings under the Otter Tail Corporation
Credit Agreement currently bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.75%, subject to
adjustment based on the Company's senior unsecured-credit ratings.
The interest rate being charged under the Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement prior to the renewal was LIBOR plus 3.25%.
Under the Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement, the Company is
required to pay the Banks” commitiment fees based on the average daily
unused amount available to be drawn under the revolving credit fac

hted

The Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agresmentis set to expire on - October 29,
2017 The Giter Tail Carporation Credit Agreement contains a number of
rastrictions o

1 the Company and the businesses of Varistar, and its
: Jd faries, including restrictions on the Company's and Varlstar's
fityto merge, sell assels, make investments, create orincor liens on
sarantee the obligations of certain other parties and gein
ofs with related parties: The Otter Tait Corporation Credit
Agreement also contains certain financial covenants. Specificaily, the
Company must not permit the ratio of its “Interest- bearir ing Debt"to
otal Capitalization” {egch as defined in the Otter Tall Corporation
Credit Agreement) to be greater than 0.60 1o 100 as of the last day of
any figcal quarter of the Company, or permit its “interest and Dividend
Coverage Ratio” (a3 defined in the Otter Tail Corporation Credit -
Agresment) for any period of four consecutive fiscal quarters to be fess
than 1.50t0 1.00. The Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agresment also
containg atfirmative covenants and events of default. It does notinclade
provisions for the termination of the agreement or the accélerationof
went of amounts outstanding due'to changes inthe Company's
tratings. The Cormpany's obligations under the Otter Tail Corporation

crech



Credit Agreement are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s material
subsidiaries. Qutstanding letters of credit issued by the Company under
the Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement can reduce the amount
available for borrowing under the line by up to $40 million. The Otter Tail
Cotporation Credit' Agreement has an accordion feature whereby the
line can be increased to $250 million on the terms and subject to the
conditions described in the Otter Tail Corporation Credit Agreement.

On October 29, 2012 OTP entered into a Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement (the OTP Credit Agreement) with the Banks
narmed therein. The OTP Credit Agreement amends and restates the
$170 million OTP Credit Agreement dated as of March 3, 2011, which
was set to expire on March 3, 2016. The OTP Credit Agreement provides
for a $170 million line of credit that may be increased to $250 miflion on
the terms and subject to the conditions described in the OTP Credit
Agreement. The OTP Credit Agreement is an unsecured revolving credit
facility that OTP can draw on to support the working capital needs and
other capital requirements of its operations, including letters of credit in
dn-aggregate amount not to exceed $50 million outstanding at any time.
Borrowings under the OTP Credit Agreement currently bear interest at
LIBOR plus 1.25%, subject to adjustment based on the ratings of OTP's
senior unsecured debt. The interest rate being charged under the OTP
Credit Agreement prior to the renewal was LIBOR plus 1.5%. Under the
OTP-Credit Agreement; OTP is required to pay the Banks' commitment
fees based on the average daily unused amount available to be drawn
under the revolving credit facility. The OTP Credit Agreament is set to
expire on October 29, 2017, The OTP Credit Agreement contains a number
of restrictions on the business of OTP, including restrictions on its ability
to'metge, sell assets, riake investments, create or incur liens on assets,
guarantee the obligations of any other party, and engage in transactions
with related parties. The OTP Credit Agreement also contains affirmative
cavenants and events of default, as well as a financial covenant under
which OTP may not permit the ratio of its “Interest-bearing Debt” to
“Total Capitalization” (as defined in the OTP Credit Agreement) to be
greater than 0.60 to 1.00. The prior OTP Credit Agreement included
sirnilar covenants and events of default, but also included a financial
covenant that is not included in the current OTP Credit Agreement, under
which OTP could not permit its “Interest and Dividend Coverage Ratio”
(as defined in the prior OTP Credit Agreement) to be less than 1.50 to 100
The OTP Credit Agreement does not include provisions for the termination
of the agreement or the acceleration of repayment of amounts outstanding
due to changes in OTP's credit ratings, OTP's obligations under the OTP
Credit Agreement are not guaranteed by any other party.

Long-Term Debt

On May 11, 2012 the Company filed a shelf registration statement with
the SEC under which it may offer for sale, from time to time, either
separately or together inany combination, equity and/or debt securities
described in the shelf registration statement.

On March 18, 2011 the Company borrowed $1.5 million under a
Partnership in Assisting Community Expansion loan to finance capital
investments at Northern Pipe Products, Inc. (Northern Pipe); the
Company's PVC pipe manufacturing subsidiary located in Fargo, North
Dakota. The ten-year unsecured note bears interest at 2.54% with
monthly principal and interest payments through March 2021 Or April 6,
2017 Otter Tail Corporation borrowed $0.5 million-under a North Dakota
Development Fund loan to finance additional capital investrments at
Northern Pipe. The seven-year unsecured:note bears interest-at 3.95%
with monthly principal and interest payments through April 1, 2018.

Senior Unsecured Notes 4.63%, due December 1, 2021

On December1, 2011, OTP issued $140 million aggregate principal
amount of OTP's 4.63% Senior Unsecured Notes due December 1,2021
(the 2021 Notes) pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement (the 2011
Note Purchase Agreement), dated as of July 29, 2011, with the
purchasers named therein.

[Debt Retirements

On July 13, 2012 the Company prepaid in full its outstanding $50 million,
8.89% Senior Unsecured Note due November 30, 2017 (the Cascade
Note) issued pursuait to the Note Purchase Agreement.dated as of

“February 23; 2007, as-amended, between the Company and Cascade

Investment, L.L.C. (Cascade). Immediately before the prepayment, the
Cascade Note bore interest at 8,.89% annually. The price paid'by the
Company to prepay the Cascade Note was $63,031,000, which included
the principal amount of the Cascade Note plus accrued interest of
$531,000 and a negotiated prepayment premium of $12,500,000. The
Company used funds available under the Otter Tail Corporation Credit
Agreement for the prepayment. This early retirement reflects the
Company's desire to lower its long-term debt sutstanding given its recent
divestitures. On repayment, $606,000 in unamortized debt expense
related to this note was immediately récognized as expense along with
the $12,500,000 negotiated prepayment premium, which, in total,
reduced diluted earnings per share by $0.22 in the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, Cascade owned approximately 9.6% of the
Company's outstanding cormmon stock as of Decemnber 31, 2012,

In the third quarter of 2012, $25,000 of Grant County, South Dakota
Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds 4.65%, dueSeptember 1,
2017, and $35,000 of Mercer County, North Dakota Pollution Control
Refunding Revenue Bonds 4.85%, due September 1, 2022, were
redeemed for estate settlement purposes.

On December 1, 2011 OTP.used a portion of the proceeds from the
F021 Notes toretire $90 million aggregate principal amount of its
6.63% Senior Notes due December 1, 2011 at maturity and to retire early
$10.4 million aggregate principal amount of its pollution control refunding
revenue bonds due Decernber 1, 2012. No penalty was paid-for the early
retirament,

2007 and 2011 Note Purchase Agreements
The note purchase agreement (the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement)
relating to OTP's $155 million senior unsecured notes issuedin four series
consisting of $33 million aggregate principal amount of 5.95% Senior
Unsecured Notes, Series A, due 2017: $30 million aggregate principal
armount of £.15% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series B, due 2022; $42 million
aggregate principal amount of 6,37% Senior Unsecured Notes, Series C,
due 2027; and $50 million aggregate principal amount of 6.47% Senior
Unsecured Notes, Serigs D, due 2037, as amended and the 2011 Note
Purchase Agreement each states that OTP may prepay all or any part.of
the notes issued thereunder (in an amount not less than 10% of the
aggregate principal amount of the notes then outstanding inthe case of
a partial prepayment) at 100% of the principal amount prepaid, together
with accrued interest and a make-whole amount. The 2011 Note Purchase
Agreement states in the event.of a transfer of utility assets put event,
the noteholders thereunder have the right to require QTP to repurchase
the notes held by tham in full, together with accrued interest and a
make-whole amount, on the terms and conditions specifiedin the 201
Note Purchase Agreement. The 2007 Note Purchase Agreement and
the 2011 Note Purchase Agreement each also states OTP must offer to
prepay.all of the outstanding notes issued thereunder at100% of the
principal amount together with unpaid acerued interest in the gvent of a
change of control of QTP and each containga number of restrictions on
OTP: These include restrictions on-OTP's-ability to merge, sell assets,
create or incur liens on assets, guarantee the obligations ofany other
party, and engage in transactions with related parties.

The aggregate amounts of maturities on bonds outstanding and other
longterm obligations at December 31, 2012 for each of the nextfive
years are!

Aggregate amounts of
Debt Maturities ¢ 176 % 188 % 201 $100,206 $38,284
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17. CLASS B STOCK OPTIONS OF SUBSIDIARY
Inrconjunction with the sale'of IPH on May 6, 2011, all:363 outstanding
IPH Class B common share options - were cancelled by mutual agreement
between the issuer and the holders of the options and a liability to the
holders of the options was established based orithe fair value of the
options on'May 6, 2011 The liability was assumed by the new owner of
IPH. The options wére adjusted to their fair value based on the fair value
of an underlying share of Class B Common Stock of $2,973.90 per share
on May 6, 2011, The book value of IPH Class B-.common share options
prior to their cancellation on May 6, 201 was based o an IPH Class B
common share valte of $2,085.88 per share. The $322,000 difference
between the fair value and book value of the options was charged to
retainied earnings and earnings available Tor common shares were
reduced by $322,000 in the second quarter of 2011

12. PENSION PLAN-AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
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Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory funded pension plan covers substantially
all corporate employees and OTP nonunion employees hired prior to
January 1, 2006, and all union employees of OTP. The plan provides 100%
vesting after five vesting years of service and for retirement compensation
at age 65, with reduced compensation in cases of retirement priot to age
62. The Company reserves the right to discontinue the plan but no
change or discontinuance may affect the pensions theretofore vested.

The pension plan has a trustee who is responsible for pension payments
to yetirees and aseparate pension fund manager responsible for managing
the plan’s assets. An independent actuary assists the Company in
performing the necessary actuarial valuations for the plan.

The plan asséts consist of common stock and bonds of public
companies, U.S. government securities, cash and cash equivalents and
alternative investments. None of the plan assets are invested in common
stock; preferred stock or debt securities of the Company.

Components of net periodic pension benefit cost:

Service Costs

Benefit Farned During the Period $ 5,084 % 4,415 % 4,654
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit

Obligation 12,465 | 12,666 12,067
Expected Return on Assets (14,430): C14,140) (13,741)
Amortization.of Prior-Service Cost 409 . 434 683
Amortization of Net Actuarial Loss 5,041 2617 2,002

Net Periodic Pension Cost $ 8,569 % 5,992, % 5,695

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic
pension cost for the year ended December 3%
201 2010

Discount Rate 5.15% 6.00% 6.00%
Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets 8.00% 8.00% 3.50%
Rate of Increase inFuture

Compensation Level 3.38% 3.75% 3.75%

The following table presents amounts recognized-in the consolidated
balance sheets as of December31:

bap ey Al

20m

Regulatory Assets;
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost

1,109 1,507

Unrecognized Actuarial Loss 98,808 89,820
Total Regulatory Assets 99,917 : 91,327
Accumnuiated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 22 28
Unrecognized Actuarial Loss 1,114 1,131
Total Accumulated Gther Comprehensive Loss 1,138 1,159
Deferred mcome Taxes 758 772
Noncurrent Liability . $ . BAKIG - $ 77,495

Funded status as of Decernber 31

- 2011
§ (288,706) $.(211,324)

$ (275,634)  § (246,098)
191,018 168,603

(84,616) .~ $ - (77,495)

Accumulated Benefit Obligation
Projected Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded:Status %

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the fair
value of plan assets and the plan’s benefit obligations over the two-year
petiod ended December 3T

20M
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets!
Fair Value of Plan Assets at January '} $ 168,603 - § 171,308
Actual Return on Plan Assets 22,656 6,764
Discretionary Company Contributions 10,000 -
Benefit Payments {10,241 (9,469)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at December 31 % 191,018 $ 168803
Estimated Asset Return 13.44% 4.06%
Reconciliation of Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected Benefit Obligation at January 1 $ 246,098 % 217,049
Service Cost 5,084 4,415
Interest Cost 12,465 12,666
Benefit Payments (10,241) (9,469)
ActuariakLoss 22,228 21,437
Projected Benefit Obtrigaticm at December 31 $ 275634 $ 246,098

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
at Decernber 37;

20M
4.50% 5.15%
3.13% 3.38%

Discount Rate
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Level

The assumed rate of return on pensionfund assets used for the
determination of 2013 net periodic pension cost is 7.75%. The assumed
{ong-term rate of returm on'plan assetsis based primarily on asset
category studies using historical market return and volatility data with
forward looking estirnates based on éxisting financial market conditions
and forecasts of capital markets. Modest excess returnexpectations
versus sbme marketindices are incorporated into the réturn projections
based on the actively managed structure of the investment programs
and their records of achieving such returns historically. We review our
rate of return on plan asset assumptions annually. The assumptions are
largely based on the asset category rate-of-return assumptions
developed annually with our pension plan investment advisors, as
well as input from actuaries who work with the pension plan,
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The asset allocation strategy contains guideling percentages, ot roarkel
value ol the total Planinvested invarious asset classes: Thesteategic
target-aliocation and the tactical range shown in the table that follows s

a-guide thatwill at timeshot be reflectedin actualasset alicaanw 15 that
iy be dictated by prevailing market conditions; independent actionsiof
the Investment Committes and/br investment managey and reqgiired -
cash flowsAoand fromithe Plan. The tactical range provides flexibility for
therinvestimentmanager’'s portiolia o vary around the targetallocation
withautthe need forimmediate rebalancing.

Allocation targets and tactical ranges shown below reflect the
Investment Policy Statementapproved by the Company'sinvestment
Committes: Each ofthe assetcategories 5 within te respective tadtics

range. The lnvestment Committee monitors actual asset allocati
directs contributions and withdrawals toward maintaining th
o allocation percantageslisted below,
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Strategic Taveet - Tactical Ran‘g@,

Equity Lies 5%
Fixed-Incorie 44%
Altermatives 59
Cash : 6%

The Company's pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2012
arid 2011 by asset category. are as follows:

B8y

201

24 T%

International Equity Secirities 12.8%
%rr all and: Mid=Capitatization Eguity Securities F:3%
2 t-Allocation Fund 48%

Tanie A

Equity Secuvities
Fixedstnconie Securities and Cash
Other—SE] Special SHuation Collective lnvestment Trust AEYs

100:0%

Fair Value Measurements of Pension Fund Assels

ASC 715, Compensation -~Pezfremﬂm‘ﬁeneﬁts requires disclosures about
on plan assets identified by the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
astablished by ASC 820<10-35, The three levels defined by the hisraichy
and examples of each level are as follows:

Level TQunted prices are available in active markets for identical agsets
arfiabilities asof the reparted date. The types of assets and labilities
included in Leval 1 are highly liquid and actively traded instrimeants with
guoted prices, such as eguities listed by the New York Stock Exchange
and comimodity dérivative contracts listed on'the New York Mercantile
Excharge;

Level 2-Pricing inputs are otherthan quoted prices in active markets,
bt are sither divectly or indirsctly observable as of the reported data,
The types of assets and Habilities included in Level 2 are typically either
comparable toactively traded securities or contracts, such as treasury
securities with.pricing interpolated from recent trades of similar securitie
o priced with models using highly observable inputs, such as commodity
options priced using observabte forward prices and volatilities

Level 3--Significant inputs to pricing have little or no observability as of
the reporting date. The types of assets and Habilities included in Level 3
are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or
estimation and may inchide complex and subjective madels and forecasts.



The following table presents, for each ofthese hierarchy levels, the
Company's pension fund assets measured at fair value as of December 31;
2012 and 201k

.......... Cae NG P LRk ey S Rseybas

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Large Capitalization Equity Securities % 47,083
International Equity Securities 34,088
Small and Mid-Capitalization Equity Securities 13,613
SEl Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund 9177
Fixed Income Securities 78,480
Cash Managemant-=-Money Market Fund 11
SEI Special Situation Collective Investment Trust $ 8,566
Total Assets $182,452 % — 58,566
Large Capitalization Equity Securities % 43,334
International Equity Securities 24,294
Srall and Mid-Capitalization Equity Securities 11,567
SE Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund 8,133
Fixed Income Securities 72233
Cash Management—~Working Capital Account $ 911
SEl Special Situation Collective Investment Trust % 8,131
Total Assets $159,561 § 911§ 8131

The Company's level 3 investments in the SEI Special Situation Collective
Investment Trust consist of investments primarily in hedge funds that
pursue altefnative strategies, private equity funds and - hybrid funds; as
well as investments directly in other securities and financial instruments,
with the objective of achieving high returns balanced against an
appropriate level of volatility and market exposure over a full market
cycle. The net asset value of the SEf Special Situations Collective
Investment Trust is determined by using the fair value of the portfolio as
of the close of business at the end of the year. The fair value of the fund
is calculated independently by the fund's administrator and is reviewed
by the management team. There were no significant transfers between
Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the vear ended December 31, 2012, The Company’s
initial investment in the SE! Special Situation Collective Investment Trust
was made in January 2011

Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement Plan (ESSRP)
The ESSRP is an unfunded, nonqualified benefit plan for executive officers
and certain key management employees. The ESSRP provides defined
benefit payments to these employees on their retirements for life or to
their beneficiaries on their deaths for a 15-year postretirement period.
Life insurance carried on certain plan participants is payable to the
Company on the employee’s death. There are no plan assets in this
riongualified benefit plan due to the nature of the plan.

Components of net periodic pension benefit cost:

201 2010
Service Cost-Benefit Earned
During the Period % 45 % 81 % 660
Interest Cost on Projected
Benefit Obligation 1,479 1,632 1,670
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 73 73 74
Arnortization of Net Actuarial Loss 327 245 477
Net Periodic Pengion Cost 4 1,924 % 2,031 % 2,881

Di

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic
pensioncost for the yearended December 3%

BrrasEiTaes e

201 2010
6.00%

5.15% - 6.00%

Rate of Increase in Future

Compensation Level 4.59% - 4.65% 4,69%

The following table presents amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets as of December 3%

Regulatory Assets:
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost & 135 0% 215
Unrecognized Actuarial Loss 2,788 2,427
Total Regulatory Assets 2,923 2,642
Projectad Berefit Obligation Liability—
Net Amount Recognized (31,925) (29,323)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 187 184
Unredognized Actuarial Loss 3,057 2,067
Total Accurmulated Other Comprehensive Loss 3,244 2,251
Deferred Income Taxes 2,163 1,500
Cumulative Employer Contributions in Excess of ‘
Net Periodic Benefit Cost $ - (23,595)  § . (22,930)

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the fair
value of plarassets and the plan's projected benefit obligations over the
two-year period ended December 31, 2012 and a statement of the
funded status as of December 31 of both years:

EEavasia

201

Reconciliation of Fair-Value of Plan Assets:

Fair Value of PlaimAssats at January 1 $

Actual Return on Plan Assets e —
Employer Contributions : 1,259 1,072

Benefit Payments (1,259 (1,072
Fair Value of Plan Assets at December 31 % - $ e
Reconciliation of Projected Benefit Obligation:
Projected Benefit Obligation at January 1 $ 29,323 $ 27,797
Service Cost 45 81
Interest Cost 1,479 1,632
Banefit Payments (1,259) (1,072)
Plan Amendments - -
Actuarial Loss 2,337 885

Projected Benefit Obligation at December 31 $ 31,925 % 29,323

Reconciliation of Funded Status:

Funded Status at December 31 $ (31,925 % (29323)
Unrecognized Net Actuarial Loss 7,882 5,872
Unrecogrized Prior Service Cost 448 521

Cumulative Employer Contributions in

Excess of Net Perindic Banefit Cost $ (23,595 % (24,930

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations
at December 31

20Mm
Discount Rate 4.50% 5.15%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Level 3.19% 4.59%
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acered postretirement benefit cost over the two-year period ended
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(4,296)
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¥ Ag,263
sdlicare Part D Sunsidy) 1544
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2340
§.A57
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Projected Benefit Obligation at Decembe 3
Reconciliation of Acerlied Postretirement Ce
Actiued Postretirement Cost at January 1 (39,794)
Experise (5,736)
Net Company Contribution : 1,956
{43,574)

(37,242)
(4 638)
2066

Aceriied Postrativerant Cost at December 31

Weighted- mvor;rge assumiptions used to determine benelit abligations

at Decermnbe

4.25%

Assumed healtl
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Healthear
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Rate at Which the Cost-Trend Rate i umedto Dacline 5.00% 5.00%
Yaar the Rate Reaches the Ulitimate Trend Rate 2025 2025




Assumed healthcare cost-trend rates have a significant effect onthe
amounts reported for healthcare plans. A one-percentage-point.change
in assurmed healthcare cost-trend rates for 2012 would have the
following effects:

ABH AL e AR DY A AV RT LA W ANy

TPoint 1 Point

Increase Decrease
Ffiact on the Postretirement Benefit Obligation ; & 7,725 $ (6,400
Effect on Total of Service and Interest Cost % 700 $ (560)
Effect on Expense $ 1,330 (1,088

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost  January 1, 2012 January 1, 2011

trid of Year Bensfit Obligations January 1, 2012 January 1, 20T
projected to : projectedto
December 31,2012 . December 31, 2011

The estimated net amounts of unrecognized transition obligation
and prior service costs to be amortized from regulatory assets and
accurnulated other comprehensive loss into the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost in 2013 are:

bk ausy Y

2013
Decrease in Regulatory Assets:
Ambrtization of Unrecognized Prior Service Cost $o 208
Amortization of Unrecognized Actuarial Loss 991
Decrease in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Amortization of Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 5
Amortization of Unrecognized Actuarial Loss 26

Total Estimated Amortization b 1,227

Cash flows—The Company expects to contribute $2.9 million net of
expected employee contributions for the payment of retiree medical
benefits and Medicare Part D subsidy receipts.in-2013. The Company
expects to receive a Medicare Part D subsidy from the Federal government
of approximately $502,000 in 2013, The following benefit payments, which
reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

ands) Years

$20,006

401K Plan

The Company sponsors a 401K plan for the benefit of all corporate and
subsidiary company employees. Contributions made to these plans by
the Company and its subsidiary companies included in continuing
aperations tataled $2,553,000 for 2012, $2,598,000 for 2011 and
$2.122,000 for 2010,

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company has a stock ownership plan for the benefit of all'its electric
utility employees. Contributions made by the Company were $735,000
for 2012, $760,000 for 2011 and $779,000 for 2010

k.

13, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value:

Cash and Short-Term Investments—The carrying amount approximates
fair value because of the short-term maturity of those instruments,

Long-Term Debt— The fait value of the Company's long-term debt is
estimated based on the current market indications of rates available to
the Campany for the issuance of debt. The fair value measurements of
the Company's long-term debt issues fall into fevel 2.of the fairvalie
hierarchy setforth in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurerment:

" December 31, 2011
Carrying Fair
Amount Value

Carrying Fair
Amount Value

{in thousa

Cash and Short-Term
Investments $
Long-Term Debt

52,362 % 52,362 %
(421,680)  (491,244)

15994 %
(471,915)

15,994
(525,041

14; PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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- December 31, 201

Electric Plant in Service

Production $ 872,120 669,805
Transmission 261447 ¢ 229,320
[istribution 405 461 390,382
General 84,775 83026
Flactric Plant in Service 1,423,303 .- 1,372,554
Construction Work in Progress 78,758 - 49,123
Total Gross Electric Plant 1,499,061 1,421,657

Less Accumuplated Depreciation

angd-Amortization 526,467 4@9,’327
Net Electric Plarit $ 972,594 £ 922,330
Nonelectric Qperations Plant
Equipment $ 144,901 $ 137,644
Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 37,209 35,726
Land g 3,984 3,958
Nonglertric Operations Plant 186,094 177,328
Construction Work in Frogress 2,132 3,628
Total Gross Nonelectric Plant 188,226 180,956
Less Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization 111,368 100,424
Net Nonelectric Operations Plant % 76,858 k3 80,532
MNet Plant $ 1,049,452 41,002,862

The estimated service lives for rate-regulated properties is 5 1o 70 years.
For nonelectric property the estimated useful lives are from 3o 40 years,

Service Life Range
(vears) Low High
Electiic Fixad Assets:
Production Plant 34 62
Transmission Plant 40 ;
Distribution Plant 15 55
General Plant 5 70
Nonelectric Fixed Assets:
Equipment 3 12
Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 7 40

GYTERTAW £
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tanenpense differsrom the amount computed by
aralincorme tax rate {35% in 2012, 201 and 20100 e
totalincome tax expense for the following reasois:

Thatotal ineo
applying the fee
nEtincomes bétare
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2011 2010
$ 19861 ¢

10,329
(6,695 (281 e aald
@91 9965 (L 163

(849 (1,186)
725 £926)
(656) (€92
{585y (5563

(584) 1,692

{40%) (3013 (&5

{3043 5073 (845)

(143) 680 989

Pavrraiert and Other Diff (416) 586 2,031
Total fngomie Tax Bxpenges :

Contiruing Operations : $2138 0§ 4120 oF 3281

Incire Tax (Panefity Expenses
IHgcontin CLR 4043 TR0
g Operations  § (12,534)  $§ (92835 § 3951

Stateand

9 {lncorme Taxes $ 7198 ¢
& Inorme Taxes {1,4025
15,878 14,308
: 3,181 4,002
wonlaxd i {6,695) (7280 (5:441)
Vird Tax
Nat (891) (996 (1,163
fnvestrent Tax Credit Amiortizatio {7200 {855) (926)
Jutil $ 0 2433 % 4121, %0 3251

;

=US $13.428) 1% (7547
(4,381) (14,979

$ 13,670
(11,06

Chwgs) oorme Bafore di
e Betore ntome Tae

GreiEn

arer income Taxes~—

continued Operations  $.(17,807) © § 579507

The Company'sdeferred tax-assets and-liahilities were composet of
thefollowing onDecember 31

i

Deterrad T :
Notth Dakota Wind Tax Credits

AT
45,459
34,618
27,682
27,048
25,869

BenefitLiabilities

Retirement Bengfits Liabilities
Net Operating koss Carrytorward
Federal Production Tax Credits

Coslt of Rermoval

D nees Related to Propeity
Investrent Tax Credits

Vication Accrual
Dther

Total Detorred Tax Assets

$ 223,

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Differences Related to Properly
Retirar
NorthDakota Wind Tax

$-(301.991)
(34,618)
L9
16,995)
(3,4848)
(1,691)
(934)
(2,442)
$(364,078)
$0140,823)

atory Asset

=

Excess Tax-over Bogk Pey
Impact of State Nat Operating Losse
Regulatory Asset
Renewable Resource Rider Accrued Revenue
Othey
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Income Taxes

ederal Taxes

(7630)
Sh(eag 18l
$ (163.789)

Schedule of expiration of tax net operating losses and tax credits
available as of December 31, 2012

United States
Federal Met
O

$A7824 L g Ty g

srating Losses >
28,051

Fi Tax € : - . . .
State Net Operating

Losges 9,955 s - g
State Tax Credits 43,400 2461 1,950 1,950 1550

The carrviorward period ona portion of the North Dakota wind tax
credits from the Langdon wind project is five vears: OTP hias adjustad ivs
Deferred Tax Assets-and Deferred Tax Credits by $9.2 million for potential
unused North Dakota wind tax credits related to the Langdon wind project:

The following table summarizes the activity related to our unfecognized
tax benefits:

0
vdaEnuany 1213808 0% SO0
Incre Related to Tax Positions
for Prior Yeurs
Decreases Related to Tax Positions
for Prior Ye {H8023
UncertalaPositions Resolved During Year (900).
Balance on December 31 $7 44360 % A2/438 % D00




The balance of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31,2012
would not reduce our effective tax rate if recognized. The totalamount
of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2012 is not expected to
change significantly within the next 12 months. The Company classifies
interest and penalties on tax uncertainties as components of the provision
for income taxes in our consolidated statement of incorne. There was no
amount accrued for interest on tax uncertainties as of December 31, 2012,

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. federal
income tax return and various state and foreign income tax returns.

As of December 31, 2012, with limited exceptions, the Company isno
longer subject to examinations by taxing authorities for tax years
prior to 2009,

16. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS {(AROS)

WS B85 2o s snaikTePa s aEE E20803003CoRs05PeEUOUs0RAVIINIILTIRIBRIONISIOEIUDRRTSE

The Company's AROs are related to OTP’s coal-fired generation plants
and its 92 wind turbines located in North Dakota. The AROs include
itams such as site restoration, closure of ash pits; and removal of certain
structures, generators, asbestos and storage tanks, The Company has
legal obligations associated with the retirement of a variety of other
long-tived tangible assets used in electric operations where the estimated
settlernent.costs are individually and collectively immaterial. The Company
has no assets legally restricted for the settlement of any ofits AROs!

OTP recorded nonew AROs in 2012,

Reconciliations of carrying amounts of the present value of the
Company's lagal AROs, capitalized asset retirement costs and related
accumulated depreciation and a summary of settlement activity for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented in the
following table:

Asset Retirement Obligations
Beginning Balance % 4,808 3 4,402
New Obligations Recognized - e

Adjustments Due to Revisions in

Cash Flow Estimates 20) 22
Accrued Accretion 419 384
Settlements — —

Ending Balance $ 5207 % 4,808

Asset Retirement Costs Capitalized :
Beginning Balance $ 1,497 .0 6 11,497

New Obligations Recognized - -
Adjustments Due to Revisions in

Cash Flow Estimates (20) .
Settlernents — —
Ending Balance 13 1,477 % 1,497

Accumulated Depreciation-—
Asset Retirement Costs Capitalized
Beginning Balance $ 351 $ 290
New Obligations Recognized - -
Adjustments Due to Revisions in
Cash Flow Estirmates o 4
Depreciation Expense
Settlements - e
Ending Balance $ 407 $ 351

Settlements

Original Capitalized Asset Retirement Cost—Retired  $ e % -
Accumulated Depreciation o —
Asset Retirement Obligation $ = k3 -
Settlement Cost — o
Gain on Settlement—Deferred Under
Regulatory Accounting $ — % -

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
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On February 8, 2013 the Company sold substantially all of the assets of

ShoreMaster, its waterfront equipment manufacturer, for approximately

$"!3,D million in cash; subject to certain closing conditions. The Company
recorded a $4.6 million net-of-tax impairment of ShoreMaster's assets in
Decetmber 2012 based-on the market value of the assets. On'November 30,
2012 the Company completed the sale of the fixed assets of DM, Its wind
tower manufacturing corpany, for total proceeds, net of commissions
and selling costs, of $18:1 million. On February 29, 2012 the Company
completed the sale of DMS, its health services company, for $24.0 million
in cash net of commissions and selling costs. On January 18, 2012, the
Company sold the assets of Aviva for $0.3 million in cash. For discontinued
operations reporting, Aviva's results are included in-ShoreMaster's
consolidated results. On December 29, 2011 the Company completed
the sale of Wylie for approximately $25.0 million-in cash. On May 6, 2071
thé Company completed the sale of IPH-for approximately $86:0 raillion
incash. For segment reporting, prior to being included in discontinued
operations, ShoreMaster was included in the Company's Manufacturing
segrment, DMI and Wylie made up the Company’s former Wind Energy
segment, DMS was the only business in the Company's former Health
Services-segment and IPH was the only business in the Company’s former
Food Ingredient Processing segment. The Company's Wind Energy, Health
Services and Food Ingredient Processing segments were eliminated as a
result of the sales.of DMI, Wylie, DMS and IPH.

As of December 31,2012 the Company met the: ASC 360-10-45 criteria
for assets held for sale for the ShoreMaster transaction and appropriately
classified the assets as held for sale on December 31, 2012 and, as stich,
ShoreMaster's activities were required to be reported in discontinued
operations in accordance with ASC 205-20-45.

OYTERTAH CORPGY
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- 2,097
,,,,,, 12,474
$ § (2,188 % % 14852 % 5379 %

A A R G

mnsactiam
Whlie  ShorsMagter DMS 1PH Adjustment
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DM Wylie ShoreMaster DMS iPH

(in thousands)

Current Assets 4 1,367 $ s $o 17,120 % i % s R
Investments - 85 -
Net Plant - - 520 " - -
Assets of Discontinued Operations $ 1,367 $ $ 17,725 % $ %
Current Liabilities $ 4,587 4 - % 6,569 $ e % o L%
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations b 4,587 4 e b 6,569 % . 73 ------ %

(in thousands) DMI Wylie  ShoreMaster DMS IPH Total
Current Assels $ 80897 & i § 43T $ 29,378 3 it 134,583
Goodwill 287 00 T e = = s 287
Net Plant 68,050 6,637 372 : - 75,059

Assets of Discontinued Operations % 149,234 % $B0,948 29747 % s CUg 200,929
Current Liabilities % 24,012 % - % 8,462 £ 14,341 % — g 46,815
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 200 o — e 200
Deferred Income Taxes 4,512 - (791) (1,579) it 2,342
Deferred Credits=Other s e e R = 119
Long-Term Debt . — 715 o 715

Liabilities of Discontinued Operations $ 29,424 $ o $ 7671 $ 13,596 % o $i 50,691

QUARTERLY INFORMATION (NOT AUDITED)

Because of changes in the number of common shares outstanding and the impact of diluted shares, the sum of the quarterly earnings (loss) per
common share may not equal total earnings (loss) per common share. Amounts shown below will differ from-amounts disclosed in previously filed
quarterly reports on Forms 10-Q as a result of the dispesitions of DMband ShoreMaster, which were classified as discontinued operations in the fourth
quarter of 20712, See note 17 to consolidated financial statements for more details. :

Three Months Ended Ma ¢h 31 June 30

December 31

Operating Revenues (D $ 219,800 § 194,281 8 201401 $ 216,677 $7215316 ¢ 221,946 $ 212832 5 207,265

Operating Income (Loss) (1) 18,255 20,626 15,246 19,068 24,373 19,562 24,153 12,641
Net Income (Loss):
Continuing Operations $ 10,475 % 10,019 ¢ 6901 $ 9BOB $ 4801 9 $ 47091 % 5992

Discontinued Operations (2,932) (4,323) (24,257) 9,020 (2,928)  (2,723) (14,124) (50,127
$ 7243 % 5696 § (17,356) % 18828 § 1,873 % 6368 § 2967 § (44,135)

Earnings (Loss) Available for Common Shares:

Continuing Operations ¢ 9uel ¢ 9835 % 8717 $ 9824 $ 4618 0§ 8907 $ 16906 § 5808
Discontinued Operations {2,932y (4,32%) (24,2573 3,698 (2,928) (2,723 (50,127

6
$ 7,058 $ 0 5512 % (17.540) § 18322 § 1,690 § 6184 § $ (44,319

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
g

Continuing Operations $ 28 % 27 % A% % 27 % A3 % 25 % 47§ 16
Discontinued Operations {.08) A2 (.68) 24 .08) 08 (.39) (1.39)
% 20 % a5 9 (4% % 51 0% 05 % a7 0% 08 F (1.23)
Dituted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Continuing Operations $ 28 % 27 % A8 % 27 & A3 % 25 % A7 % 16
Discontinued Operations {.08) ()] (67 24 .08) .08 (39 (1.39)
$ 200 0% 15 0% (48) § 5108 05§ A7 % 08 % (1.23)
Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 2975 % 2975 % 2975 $ 2975 % 2975 % 2975 % 2978 % 2875
Price Range:
High 22.57 23.43 23.00 23.48 24.35 22.07 25.25 22.28
Low 20,70 21.01 20,86 20054 22,50 18.28 22.86 17.53
Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding-Basic 35,995 35877 36,031 35,926 36,061 35,933 36,062 35,953
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding—Diluted 36,129 36,081 36,223 36,164 36,253 36,172 36,256 36,113
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TTEM 9 CHANGES 1N AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING ANDFINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
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Mone,

ITEM 9A; CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

RS T R T G N S R L R R

Foodiation of Disclosures Cordrols and Procedures: Under the superyvision
¥

mzi withthe partic 1{3«”‘?1‘)?’ gf the {"f‘)*ﬂ memt, inchuding the
&

: ,c% of !"9 34 ”mé Exc%%gﬂge Af"f)) a5 f‘si D@w w
riod coversd by This report. Based on that ey

”OE 2 ’ma
&t ion, the
s Dfficer and Chisf Financial Officer congli @w that the
Isure conbrols and procedures were effective ag of

sinternal control over financial reporting

() underthe Exchange Act)-during the fourth
2002 that biave materially affected, or are

iy affect, the Company's internal control

{asdefinedin Ruls
guarter ended Decemibe
reasonably likely fo'm
over financial réporting.

Monagement's Report Regarding Internal Control Over Financial Reparting.
fent i responsible forthe preparation and jnteprity of the

Ol quf fated finar k.mi statements and representations in this Annual
Reporbon ?mm WK The gmse%idatea fmam alstatements ofthe
acteptad
clude some

ITEM BB OTHER INFORMATION
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Mg,

In order to assure the consolidated financial statements are preparadiin
conforrance with generally accepted accounting principles, ma et
is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequateinternal control
ovar financial reporting, a5 QUEC"’} termiis defined in Exchange Act R

a-15(1). These internal controls are/éesigned only to provide reasonable
assurance, ona cost-effective basis, that transactions are cartied out Ie
accordance with management’s authorizations and sssets are
agalnst loss frory unauthorized use or disposition:

Managament has completed its assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s intarmal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2012 4n making this assessment, management-used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commilssion-in internal Control=fntegrated Framework to conduct the
required assessment of the effectiveness of the Company'sintermal
conteol over financial reporting. Based onthis assessment management
concluded that, as of December 31, 20712, the Company's internal control
over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria. The
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte &
Touche LLP, Has audited the Comipany's consolidated financial statements
included inthis Annual Report on Form 10-K and issued an attestation
report on the Company's irnternal control over financial reporting,

Lo

S5 casck

Attestation Reportof Independent Registered Public Acccunting Firm. The
attestation repott of Delgitte & Touche LLP the Corpany's tidepetident
registered public accounting firm, regarding the Company's internal
control over financial reporting s provided on Page 45,
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ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this tem regarding Directors is incorporated
by reference to the information under “Election of Directors” in the
Cornpany's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting. The
information regarding executive officers and family relationships is set
forth in ttem 3A hereto. The information regarding Section 16 reporting
is incorporated by reference to the information under "Security Ownership
of Directors and Officers—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013
Annual Meeting. The information required by this ltem regarding the
Company's procedures for recommending nominees to the Board of
Directors is incorporated by reference to the information under "Meetings
and Committees of the Board of Directors—Corporate Governance
Committee” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013
Annual Meeting. The information required by this ltem in regards to the
Audit Committee is incorporated by reference to the information under
"Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors—Audit Cormpmittee”
in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting,
The information regarding the Company’s Audit Committee financial
experts is incorporated by reference to the information under “Meetings
and Committees of the Board—Audit Committee” in the Company's

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN

BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information reguired by this Item regarding security ownership is
incorporated by reference to the information under "Outstanding Voting
Shares” and “Security Ownership of Directors and Officers” in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2012
about the Comp\any's common stock that may be issued under all of its
equity compensation plans:

Number of securities

to be issued upon

exercise of outstanding
options, warrants and rights

definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct that applies to all of its
directors, officers (including its principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, and its principal accounting officer or-controller or person
performing stmilar functions) and employees. The Company's code of
conduct s available on its website at www.ottertail.com: The Company
intends to satisfythe disclosure requirements urider Item 5.05 of Form
8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver fram, a provision of its code
of condict by posting such information on its website at the address
specified above. Information on the Company's website is not deemed
to be incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
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The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference tothe
information under “Cotnpensation Discussion and Analysis” "Repart of
Corripensation Committee," “Executive Compensation” and "Director
Compensation” inthe Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the
2013 Annual Meeting,

Number of securities ramaining
available for future issuance under
aquity compeénsation plans (excluding
securities reflected in-column (a))

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Plan Category (a) (b ()
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders:

1999 Stock incentive Plan 391,785 (D k3 628 957,359 ()
1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan e N/A 522,22? (3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders . e o
Total 1,479,586

391,785 ) 6.28

(1) Includes 161,600 and 38400 performance based share awar
partof the deferred directorcompensation pragrarn, 92,

(2)The ] ock | Hve Pign provides Jor the issuance ¢

ns, warrants-or stock appr

sutstandinig opti

ati

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the
information under “Policy and Procedures Regarding Transactions with
Related Persons,” “Election of Directors” and “Meetings and Committees
of the Board of Directors” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement
for the 2013 Annual Meeting.

wlable under the plan in

s of December 31, 2012, and 38
ed-stock issued-underthe 199
15 and other types of stock-base

shantorm shares'as
ive Plar.
incaddition

k ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information reguired by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the
information under “Ratification of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm—Fees” and “Ratification of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm—Pre-Approval of Audit/Non-Audit Services
Policy” in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013
Annual Meeting.
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Cunsolidated Balance Sheets December. 312000 ane
ed Statemients of income forthe Thres Yesis £

eV e e e S e B e e 48
pd December 3120020 s s s s s
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201

44,802
te from Subsidiaries 3,587
eivable from Subsidiaries ; 317
sivable from Subsidiariss 1757
16384
ant Agsets gy

invesimentsin Subsidiaries F16453
Notes Receivable from Subsidiaries 67,925
Listerrad indome Taies 18,042

Cther Assuts 24,584

$ 909,251 $o9h3,087

LIABILITIES AND EOUITY.

Cuprent Liabilities
Aeenunts Pavable o b $ 5,035 $ 2725
Notes Pavablets Subsidiaries 231,611 18
Cithar 6,223
Total Current Liabilities 242869

Cithier Noncurrant Liabilities 227,363 6D

Commitments and Conlinperidies

101,545
15,500
521,974

639,019 736,668
953,087

FE

Total Liabilities and Equity.. i o . $ 909,251
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OTTER TAIL CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME—FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Operating income (Loss)
Revenue $ - 4 - [S o
Operating Expenses 15,197 15,798 17,409
Operating Loss (15,197 (15,798 (17,409)
Other Income (Expense)
Equity Income (Loss) in Earnings of Subsidiaries 8,430 (4,205) 8,998
Loss on Early Retirement of Debt (13,106 e
Interest Charges (13,994 (17,1573 (7084
Interest Charges to Subsidiaries (512) (290) (16
interest Incomefrom Subsidiaries 15,700 18,006 15,887
Other Incorme 1,426 548 682
Total Other Income (Expense) (2,056) (3,098) 8,467
Income Before Income Taxes—Continuing Operations (17,253) (18,896) (8,942)
Income Tax Benefit (11,980) (5,653) (7,598)
Net Loss from Continuing Operations (5,273) (13,243) (1,344)
Net Loss from Discontinued Operations e e e
Total Net Loss (5,273) (13,243) (1,344)
Preferred Dividend Reguirement and Other Adjustments 736 1,058 833
Loss Available for Common Shares $ (6,009) % (14,301) $ (2,177
See gecompanying notes to condensed financial staterments.
OTTER TAIL CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS~FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
vensEriaesexes 281? &&&&&&&& 2020
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
MNet Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 43,904 $ 30,833 % 34,220
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment in Subsidiaries (137,726) (24,534) (5,000)
Debt Repaid by (Issued to) Subsidiaries 239,452 98,521 (38,890)
Cash Used in Investing Activities [GE)] (99) (686)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 101,657 73,888 (44,576)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in Checks Written in Excess of Cash o (253) 253
Net Short-Term (Repayments) Borrowings e (54,176) 48,176
Proceeds from tssuance of Common Stock o -— 549
Common Stock Issuance Expenses (370 - (14D
Payrments for Retirement of Common Stock (111 (1,182) 401
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt — 2,006 s
Short-Term and Long-Term Debt Issuance Expenses {700} (14) (1,674)
Payments for Retirement of Long-Term Debt (50,164) ain —
Premium Paid for Early Retirement of Long-Term Debt (12,5003 - e
Dividends Paid and Other Distributions (43,976) (43,9233 (43,698)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (107,821 (97,659 3064
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,740 7,062 (7,292)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 7,062 o 7,292
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period & 44,802 $ 7,062 $ o

See accompanying notes to condensed financial statements
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OTTERTAIL CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY)

Notes 1o Condensed Financial Statements for the years ended Decamber 31, 2012, 200 and 2010

eorporated by relerence are Otter Tail Corporation's congolidated staterments of comprehensive income and common shareholders’ equity in
Part- e B

Basis of Presentation
The cotidenssd financialinfe o
condensed financial mwnm s donotreflect allo wmmmn'mzd rmte% nmrr’maﬂy muude:d thh t’manc:ai étawmom pmpdsed m aasa, rdmm@” :

with GAAR: Therstors, these mndfnnsed financial statements should be read with the consolidated financial statements and related notesinciuded
this Annual Reporton

nethiod of dccounting. Underthis method, the assetsand
a1 d45 mﬁ&, (>H i au?ﬁ sitdlaries are recorded in the balance sheats, Theincome (ogs)
ity income (loss)in earnings of subsidiarias.

are not consolidated. The investments ‘m 1
iong ot the sibsidiaries s reported on s net basis ss &

Bolatod Party Transactions

Current Long=Term Clrrent

Aczounts friberast Notes Notes Actounts Notes

Receivabie Receivable Recgivable Receivable Pavable Pavable

Otk Tail 0,201 % $ - $ 15500 $ 160 % e
Minylhe ¢ 2 32 - 8,500 e 8,251
Nw’ihmr s Prodiicts, The. - 9 i 3725 e 10597
BYDManut mﬁm g, Tne 41 107 e 28,500 i 1773
M ndiustres, Ine. 20 113 1,461 e PR
StioreMastar, Inc 40 12 15,696 B i e
T.0 Plastic, ne, e 28 e 7,400 s 2986
Aevenia, Tng ; 7 - 1800 e 1480
Fotey Cormpany 9 . 2500 s ? 189
Ward ‘»iés’ C“cmvm Hor T B E 4875 25
143 - e o i S

3 $ 317 % 17057 % 67925 $ 5035  §)31ell

Current Long-Term = - Current

Aceounts Interest Nates Notes . - - Accounts Notes

(i by Recelvable Raceivable Receivable Receivable Payable Payable
Otter Tail Power Company % Goy % e % 3 1E.500 $ 236 B e
Vinyltech Corparation 2 39 e 10,500 S 3,596
NM?WN Plive Praducts e, 2 17 5,889 e 5,085
BID Manufactiing, fhe. 24 107 7,023 28500 k5% T
DMFndostvies, Inc. 129 113 89:449 30,956 o o
ShoreMagter e &8 12 30,382 Fhbg e E A s
[ alth ' Group 20 29 3329 ZRNT e T e
28 1,978 7,400 s

7 2,319 1,800 L T e

12 9 9,452 2,500

e e 3,489 172418

1,273 . s e

S BAes % 361 $ 145205 $128817 o 3!?25 $181.106

vitssubsidiaries were as follows:

SRR A 8

201
43370

fules 3 nsunder whichth ey are reguired, because the amounts dre insignmficant or
i}fg(m;sﬁa the intormition feguiredis ncided i the financial @ta’se*m\mau the notes thereto




3. Exhibits
The following Exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this report.

FILENO.

AS EXHIBIT NO.

2-A 8-K filed 7/1/09 21
3-A 8-K filed 7/1/09 31
3-B 8-K filed 7/1/09 32
dofy 8-K filed 8/23/07 4
4-Asd 8-K filed 12/20/07 4.3
4-A-2 8-K filed 9/15/08 4]
4-A-3 8-K filed 7/1/09 4.2
4-8 8-K filed 11/2/12 41
4-C 8-K filed 11/2/12 4.2
4-D 8-K filed 8/3/M 4]
4-F 8-K filed 11/18/97 4-D-11
4-F-1 8-K filed 7/1/09 41
AF-2 8-K filed 12/4/09 41
0-A 2-39794 4-C
10-A-1 10-K for year 10-A1
ended 12/31/92
10-A-2  10-K for year 10-A-2
ended 12/31/92
10-C-1 2-55813 5-E
10-C-2  2-55813 5-E41
10-C-3  2-55813 5-E-2
10-C-4  10-Kfor year 10-C-4
ended 12/31/91
10-C-5  10-K for year 10-C-5
ended 12/31/92
10-C-6  10-Kfor year 10-C-6
ended 12/31/93
10-D 2-55813 5-F
10-E-1 2-55813 5-G
10-E-2  2-62815 5-E+1
10-E-3 10-K for year 10-E-3

ended 12/31/89
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Plan of Merger, dated as of June 30, 2009, by and among Otter Tail Corporation (now known as Otter Tail Power
Company), Otter Tail Holding Company (now known as Otter Tail Corporation) and Otter Tail Merger Sub Inc.

Restated Articles of Incorporation.

Restated Bylaws.

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007.

First Amendment; dated as of December14, 2007, to Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007.
Second Amendment, dated as of September 11, 2008, to Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007.

Third Amendrment, dated as of June 26, 2009, to- Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 20, 2007.

- Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 29, 2012 among Otter Tail Corporation, the

Banks named therein, Bank of America, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Co-Syndication Agents, KeyBank
National Association, as Documentation Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, as administration agent for the
Banks and U.S. Bank National Association, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreeimient dated as of October 29, 2012 among Otter Tail Power Company,
the Banks named therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.ACand Bank of America, N.A., as Co-Syndication Agents,
KeyBank National Association and.CoBank, ACB, as Co-Documentation Agents, U.S. Bank National Association, as
administrative agent for the Banks, and U.S. Bank National Association, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated and J.P, Morgan Securities LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners,

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2017, between Ottér Tail Power Company and the Puychasers
named therein,

Indenture (For Unsecured Debt Securities) dated as of Novernber 1, 1997 between the registrant and U.S. Bank
National Association (ormerly First Trust National Association), as Trustee.

First-Supplemental indenture, dated as of July 1. 2009, to the lndenture (For Unsecured Debt Securities) dated as
of Novemnber 1, 1997,

Officer’s Certificate and Authentication Order, dated December 4, 2009, for the 9.000% Notes due 2016
(which includes the form of Note) issued pursuant to the Indenture (For Unsecured Debt Securities) dated as of
November 1, 1997 and the First Supplemental indenture thereto, dated as-of July1, 2009,

Integrated Transmission Agreement, dated August 25, 1967, between Cooperative Power Association and
the Company.

Amendment No. 1, dated as of September 6, 1979, to Integrated Transmission Agreement, dated as of August 25,
1967, between Cooperative Power Association and the Company.

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 19,1986, to Integrated Transmission Agreement between Cooperative
Power Association and the Company.

Contract dated July 1, 1958, between Central Power Electric Corporation, Inc.; and the Company.

Supplement Seven dated November 21, 1973, (Supplements Nos. One through Six have been superseded and are
no longer in effect.)

Amendment No. T dated December 19, 1973, to Supplement Seven.

Amendment No. 2 dated June 17, 1986, 10 Supplement Seven,

Amendment No, 3 dated June 18, 1992, to Supplement Seven.

Amendment No. 4 dated January 18, 1994 to Supplement Seven.

Contract dated April 12, 1973, between the Bureau of Reclamation and the Company.
Contract dated January 8, 1973, between East River Electric Power Cooperative and the Company.
Supplement One dated February 20, 1978.

Supplement Two dated June 10, 1983,

GYTER TR CORPORATION 2032 ANNUAL HERD,




FLEMO

o
ol

YO

104 1=K for

endisd 12031/

k8

TO-F 10K for

anded12,81/92

1065

‘ f fay

mxt'imi 173

1045 10-Odurguater
FEavies

‘;ffl(jt”t;i 9,

043 0K far

griched Y

Pt

e

yoar

3&%&%%@@&@%?%@@*@&%%@@ﬁ%@@@%’3&‘@&6%@&9&&%&%@@%#ﬁ#‘&ﬁ*‘ﬁ’%ﬂ’?#QQ%@@'&@'%‘?&

Supplement Three dated June 6, 1985,
Supplement No: Four, dated as of September 10, 1986,

Supplement No, Five, dated as of January 7, 1993,

 dated g% of December 2, 1993

pplermient No, &

ship.of Ganerativig Plant by.and betwean the Company, MontanaDaketa Util
Service Company (dated as of January 7, 1970).

Letter of Intentfor purchase of s

{dated as of May B, 1984

vare of Big Stone Plant from Northwestern Public Service Company

Supplemental Agresrment No. Tte Agreement for Sharing Ownershipof Big Stone Plant {datedas of huly

Supplemental Agreement No. 2-to Agreement for Sharing Owoership of Big Stone'Plant
{dated as of March 1, 1985),

Supplemental Agreament No. 3 to Agreement for Sharing Ownership of Big Stone Plant
(dated-asof March.31, 1986),

Supplemental Agréarment No. 4 to Agreement for Sharing Ownership of Big Stone Plant (dated as of April 24, 2003),

Amendment o Letter of Intent dated May 8, 1984, for purchase of share of Big Stone Plant,

skots Wb
of July 1,19

Hes Montapal
npany (dated

5 Northwestern Public Service Cormpany and

Supplemental Agrearment No. One, dated a5 of Novemnber 30, 1978, to Agreement for Sharing Qwnership of
Covote Generating UnitNo 1

Supplemental A ment No. Two, dated as of March 1, 1981, to Agréement for Sharing Gwnership of Coyote
Gererating Unit No. Tand Amendment No.2 dated Mareh 1, 1981, to Coyote Plant Coal Agreement,

Amendment, dated ai of July 29, 1983, to Agreement for Sharing Ownership of Coyote Generating Unit No. 1,

Agresment, dated as of September 5, 1985, containing Amendment No. 3to Agreement for Sharing Ownership of
Coyote Generating Unit No. 1, dated as OF Il 5 1977 and Ameridment No. 5 1o Coyote Plant Coal Agreement;
dated as of January 1, 1978,

Arendment, dated a¢ of June 14, 2001 to Agreement for Sharing Ownership of Coyote Generating Unit No. &

Armendment, dated as of April 24, 2003, to Agreemint for Sharing Ownership of Coyote Generating Unit No. 1.

Coyote Plant Co
Utititie

: ompany, Minnkots Power Cooperative, Ing, Montanabake
Company, Minnesota Power & Light Compary, and Knife River Coal
vy {t;ai(»(’ a8 c}? Mr’uur\ 1,1978),

Mining

of IV

110, 1980, to Coyote Plant Coal Agreement.
Amendment (No. 3), dated ag of May 28, 1980, to Coyote Plant Coal Agreement.

Fourth Amendmant, dated as.of Augist 19, 1985, to Coyote Plait Coal Agreement.




AS EXHIBIT NO.

FILE NG,

10-1-4 10-Q for quarter 19-A
ended 6/30/93

10-1-5 10-K for year 10-1-5
ended 12/31/01

10-)

10-K 10-K for year 10-L
ended 12/31/9

10-K-1 10-K for year 10-L-1
ended 12/31/88

10-L 10-Q for quarter 101
ended 06/30/04

10-M-1  10-K for vear 10-N-1
ended 12/31/02

10-M-1a  10-Kfor year 10-N-1A
ended 12/31/10 '

10-M-2  8-Kfiled 02/04/05. 101

10-M-2a  10-K for year 10-N-2a
ended 12/31/06

10-M-2b  10-K for year 10-N-2B
ended 12/31/10

10-M-3  10-Kfor year 10-N-5
ended 12/31/93

10-M-4  10-0 for quarter 10-B
ended 3/31/02

10-M-5  10-Q for quarter 101
ended 9/30/11

10-M-6  10-Q for quarter 106
ended 6/30/12

1007 8-Kfiled 4/19/12 101

10-M-8  8-Kfiled 4/13/06 104

10-M-9  10-K for year 1ON/ -
ended 12/31/05

10-M-10  8-K filed 4/19/12 10.2

10-M-11 8K filed 4/19/12 103

10-M-12 10K for year 10-N-11
anded 12/31/1

10-M-13 8-Kfiled 4/19/12 104

10-M-14  8-K filed 4/13/06 104

10-N 8-K filed 5/14/12 11

10-041

10-0-2 '

10-0-3

10-0-4
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Sixth Amendment; dated as of February 17,1993, to Coyote Plant Coal Agreement.
Agreement and Consent to Assignment of the Coyote Plant Coal Agreement.

Lignite Sales Agreement between Coyote Creek Mining Company, L.L.C. and Otter Tail Power Company, Northern
Municipal Power Agency, Montana-Dakota Utilities Co,, Northwestern Corporation, dated as'of October 10, 2012.*

Integrated Transmission Agreement by and between the Company, Missourf Basin Municipal Power Agency and
Western Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (dated as of March 31,1986).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 28,1988, to Integrated Transmission Agreement
(dated a5 of March 31, 1986).

Master Coal Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and Kennecott Coal Sales Company——
Hoot Lake Plant (dated as of December 31, 2001).

Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended.”
First Amendment of Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (2003 Restaternent), as amended.”

Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement Plan (2005 Restatement).”

First Amendment of Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement Plan (2005 Restatement).”
Second Amendmant of Executive Survivor and Supplemental Retirement Plan (2005 Restatement).”
Nongualified Profit Sharing Plan*

Nonqualified Retirement Savings Plan, as amended.”

Nonqualified Retirement Plan (2011 Restatement).”

Otter Tail Corporation Executive Restoration Plus Plan.

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, As Amended (2012)
1999 Stock Incentive Plan, As Amended (2006).

Form of Stock Option Agresment.”

Form of 2012 Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executive Officers.”
Form of 2012 Performance Award Agreement.”

Executive Annual Incentive Plan.*

Form of 2012 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.”

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Directors,

Distribution Agreement dated May 14, 2012, between Otter Tail Corporation and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC,
Executive Employment Agreement, Kevin Moug”

Executive Employment Agreement, George Koeck.”

Executive Employment Agreement, Chuck MacFarlane.”

Executive Employment Agreement, Shane Waslaski.”
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0P Changein Control Severance Agreement; Kevin G Moug”

WP 0o year Chahge:n Control Severante Agreement, George Koeck®
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Change in-Cohtrol Severance Agraemaent, Chuck MacFarlane.”

TOPl o 0K foryeue v ContralSeverance Agrasiment; Shahe Waslaski”
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1O-F-5 10 for vear 1037 : Change inControl Severance Agreement; Edward 1 Melptyre®

prded 12731771
123 - Calculation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Chargesand Preferred Dividends.
A Subsidiaries of Registrant.
234 v - T Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
2488 me, Powers of Attormey.
N Wmmwi Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant 1o Section 302 of the Sart)ane§~i“}xiey Act ot 2002,
312 B Certification of Chief Financial: Officer Pursiant o Section 302 of the Sarbanes=Oxley Act of 2002,
321 N Certification of Chiet Executive Officer Pursuantto'Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002,
322 \ T Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Actof 2002,

TOTING - V‘ XBRL Instance Document

TOLECH o XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

TOLCAL T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
TOLLAR . KBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Preséntation Linkbase Document
JOLLEF KBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements.of Section 13 or15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. '

OTTER TAIL CORPORATION

By /s/ Kevin G. Moug
Kevin'G. Moug .
Chiet Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
(authorized officer and principal financial officer)
Dated: February 27, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report hias been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature and Title

Edward J. Mcintyre
Chief Executive Officer-and President
(principal executive officer) and Director

Kevin G, Moug
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
(principal financial- and accounting officer)

Nathan |, Partain
Chairman of the Board and Director

By /s/ Edward ). Mcintyre

Karen M. Bohn, Director , Edward J Melntyre
Pro-Se.and Attorney-in-Fact
John D, Erickson, Director Dated February 27, 2013

Arvid R. Liebe, Director

Joyce Nelson Schuette, Director
Mark W. Olson; Director

Gary J. Spies, Director

James B. Stake, Director
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JRATION
STOUICLIRTING

Otter Tail Corporation common stock
trades on the 3’5}{3{}&?} Global Select
Market Dur ticker symbol 5 OTTR. You
canfind our daily stock price on our web
site, www.ottertail com. Shareholders
whiosign up for intemet-account access

canview their account information online.

Otter Tail Corporation has paid dividends
oy our comimon shaves each quarter
singe 1938 without interruption or
reduction. 2012 dividends were $1.19
per shiare and the vear-end yield was
#:8%. Total shareholder return grew at a
compounded average annual rate of
3:99% for the past 10 years.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

AMD SHARE PLAN

The corporation’s Dividend Reinvestment
and Share Purchase Plan provides
shareholders of record with a convenient
method for purchasing shares of Otter
Tall Corporation common stock. About
819 of eligible shareowners holding
about 14% of our eligible common
shares are entolled: Through this plan,
participants may have their dividends
attpmatically reinvested in additional
shiares without paying any brokerage
fees or service charges, Shareholders
alser may contribute a minitnumof $10
andamaximurn of $10,000 per month.
Automatic withdrawal frorm a checking
or savings account is available for this
servive, Sharsholders may sellbup to

30 sharesa month through the plan,
Formore information, contact
Shareholder Services,

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND DEPOSIT
Sharsholders can arrange for electranic
direct deposit of theiy dividends to their
chacking or savings accounts. Electronic
deposit is safe, reliable and convenient:
For authorization materials, contact
Shaiéﬁéid&ﬁerviiés( ; '

STOUK CERTIFICATES AND DES
Replacing missing cerlificates is a costly
and time-consuming process so
shareholders should keepa separate
record of the certificate number, purchase
date, date of issus, price paid and exact
registration name. if you are enrolled in
the Dividend Reinvestment and Share
Purchase Plan, you have the option of
depositing your common certificates
into your plan account. We also offer
direct registration system (DRS) as s
method of hoidim} ybﬁ:‘: shares in
booleentry form which eliminates the
need to hold stock certificates,

7013 CASH INVESTMENT AND SELL DATES FOR DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

THANSFER A

Shareholder Services

OtrerTall Corporation

V5 South-Castade Siret

PO Bon 496

Fergus Falls, VN E6538-0496

Phone: BOG664-12580r 218-739-8479
F GOR-3165
mailsharesvemntteriaileom

CO-AGENT:
Continental Stack Transfer & Trust Co.
ey Place; BthFloor

f e

Wesw Yok, NY 10004
Phiarie: Bo6-509-5585

2073 ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREMOLDERS

Monday,-April 8, 2013
10:00 ., Central Time
Bigwouod Event Center
921 Westerm Avenue
Fergus Falls, Minnesota

el

EA-DIVIDEND  RELORD PAYMENT
Feb 13 Feb. 15 € Mard
May 13 May 15 C Junell
Aug B3 Aug. 15 C Sept:10
Nov. 13 Nowv, 15 € Decl0

KEY STATISTICS

NASDAQ. v ovacois G e OTTR
Senior unsecured debt ratings

GirerTall Corporation:
FILeh: oo BBE-/ i

Standard & Pooir's . ..., BBB-/stable

Yearend stockprice .............. 2500
Yearend market-to-book ratio. ... T 4
Annual dividendyield ... ... oo BB

Shares outstanding... ... ...... 36 million
Market capitalization

{as of December 31, 2012). . 5904 million
2012 average daily

trading volume. . o o WL 520
Institutional holdings (shares as

of December 31, 2012).. ... 142 million



NATHAN L PARTAIN

Chicago, Hlinois

Chairman of the Board of Dwectors
President and Chief Investment Officer,
Duff & Phelps Investment Management
CouPresident, Chief Executive Officer -

and Chief Investment Officer, DNP Select

Income Fund, Inc. (closed- eﬂd utxhiy
income fund)

HAREN M, BOHN

ALCGE - Edina, Minnésota
President, Galeo Group, LLC
(management consulting firm)

JOHNDCERICKSON
Fergus Falls, Minnesota

“Former Président and Chief Executive
Officer, Otter Tail Corporation

ARVID R, LIEBE
C=Milbank; South Dakota
Board Chalr, Liebe Drug, Inc,

(retail business); Owner, Liebe Farms, Inc.

EDWARD J I MCINTYRE
West-Fargo, North Dakota

President and Chief Executive Officer, i

Otter Tail Corporation

*Committees: A-Audit C=Compensation  CG-Corporate Governance

MARKW. OLSON

A/CG==Potomac, Maryland

Co-Chair Treliant Risk- Advisors;

Ernst & Young's Global Advisory Board,
Past chair of Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, Past member of Federal
Reserve Board of Governors

JOYCE NELSONSCHUETTE

A/C — Walker, Minnesota

Retired Managing Director and
investment Banker, Piper Jaffray & Co.
(financial services)

GARY L SPIES

A/CG —Fergus Falls, Minnesota
Chairman, Service Food, Inc. (retail
business); Vice President, Fergus Falls
Development Company and Midwest
Regional Developrment Company, LLC
(land and housing development)

JAMES B.STAKE

A/C = Eding, Minresota

Retired Executive Vice President;
Enterprise Services, 3M Company
(diversified manufacturing)

EDWARD 30 (V) MOINTYRE - President & Chief Executive Officer

KEVIN G, MOUG. Chief szmc;ml Officer & $r. Vice President

GEORGE & KOECK Sr. Vice President, General c;)unsat & t:.orporate Secretary

PAUL L. KNUTSON Vice President '

CHARLES S, MACFARLANE  Sr.Vice Presxdent Electm: Platform, President & CEO of Otter Tail Power Compamy
SHANE N WASLASKL SrVice President, Manufacturing & Infrastructure Platform; President of Varistar
MICHAEL J. OLSEN: Sr.Vice President of Corporate Communications and Public Affairs
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